AGENDA
Chowchilla City Council
Meeting
Council Chambers, Chowchilla City Hall
130 S. Second Street, Chowchilla, CA 93610

Tuesday, March 27, 2018
7:00 p.m.
Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Civic Center, 130 S.
Second St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must be received by Administrative Services no
less than 7 days prior to the meeting date.
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made
available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter. In addition, most documents will be posted on the city website
at www.ci.Chowchilla.CA.US.
The City of Chowchilla complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chambers is
accessible to the physically disabled. If you need special assistance, please call (559) 665-8615, ext. 102 at least 4
days prior to the meeting.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL:
Mayor: Dennis Haworth
Mayor Pro Tem: Ray Barragan
Council: Waseem Ahmed, John Chavez, Mary Gaumnitz
City staff and contract employees present at the meeting will be noted in the minutes
CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Additions and/or Deletions:
PUBLIC ADDRESS – CLOSED SESSION
This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council on items listed on the closed session
agenda only. It is recommended that speakers limit their comments to no more than 3 minutes each. Speakers are
asked to please use the microphone and provide their name for the record. Any handouts should be provided to the
City Clerk who will distribute them to the Council and appropriate staff.

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM
This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant
to Government Code Section 54957 (b)(1), 54957.6, and 54956.9 (d)(2). Based on the advice of the City
Attorney, discussion in open session would prejudice the position of the City in these matters. The City
Attorney will provide a report, in open session, which details any reportable actions following conclusion of
the closed session agenda.

1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9 Subdivision (d) Paragraph (1)
Name of Case: Brake Parts LLC v City of Chowchilla, Case Number MCV076412
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2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2)
Claimant Name: Salma Vasquez
3. Agency Claimed Against: City of Chowchilla Public Employee Evaluation Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957
Title: Police Chief
4. Conference with Labor Negotiators Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6
Agency Designated Representatives: City Administrator, City Attorney
Employee Organizations: Chowchilla Police Officer Association, Chowchilla City
Employee Association, Chowchilla City Office Employees Association, Chowchilla MidManagement/Confidential Association, Police Chief and Non-Represented Staff
In the event that not all the items on the closed session agenda have been deliberated in the time provided, the City
Council may continue the closed session until the end of the regularly scheduled Council/Board Meeting.

OPEN SESSION – 7:00 PM
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
INVOCATION:
CLOSED SESSION REPORT:
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1
1. Proclamation: Week of the Young Child
2. Proclamation: National Public Safety Telecommunicator’s Week, April 8-14
WORKSHOPS
2018 Rules of Procedure for the Conduct of the City Council and all Other Local Agencies for Which
Members of the City Council Service as Governing Body (Haddix)

PUBLIC ADDRESS
This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council on items of interest that are not on the
Agenda and that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.
It is recommended that speakers limit their comments to no more than 3 minutes each and it is requested that no
comments be made during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called.
The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. No adverse
conclusions should be drawn if the Council does not respond to public comment at this time.
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone and provide their name for the record. Prior to addressing the
Council, any handouts are to be provided to City Clerk who will distribute them to the Council and the appropriate staff.

COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS – Section 2
2.1

COUNCIL REPORTS
Legislative Items
Oral / Written Reports
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STAFF REPORTS
Written/Oral Reports

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. For discussion
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or
any person in the audience.

3.1

Approval of the March 13, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes (McClendon)

3.2

Review of Monthly Financial Reports for March 2018 (Pruett)

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4
4.1

A City Council Resolution Approving General Plan Amendment Application No. 160016 (Amendments to the 2016-2023 Housing Element) (Perea)

DEFERRED BUSINESS – Section 5
None.
NEW BUSINESS – Section 6
6.1

Consideration of a Madera County Economic Development Commission (MCEDC)
Annual Basic Service Budget (Haddix)

6.2

Presentation of the City’s Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Financial Statement Audit (Pruett)

6.3

A City Council Resolution Approving the Proposed Mid-Year Budget Change as Part
of the 2017/2018 Fiscal Year Budget Update (Pruett)

ANNOUNCEMENTS – Section 7
MARCH 30
MARCH 30
APRIL 1
APRIL 8
APRIL 10

GOOD FRIDAY
CHOWCHILLA SKILLED NURSING FACILITY COMMUNITY EASTER EGG HUNT, 11 AM
EASTER SUNDAY
AMERICAN LEGION & VFW BREAKFAST FUNDRAISER, VFW HALL, 7-11 AM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY HALL, 7 PM

ADJOURNMENT
I, Joann McClendon, CMC, City Clerk, do hereby declare under penalty of purjury that the
foregoing agenda was posted at the Chowchilla City Hall, 130 S Second Street, Chowchilla, CA
and made available for public review on this 23rd day of March 2018 at or before 5:00 p.m.
McClendon
Joann McClendon Joann
2018.03.23 15:25:16 -07'00'

Joann McClendon, CMC, City Clerk

Proclamation
DESIGNATING APRIL 16-20, 2018, AS

WEEK OF THE YOUNG CHILD
2018 IN MADERA COUNTY
WHEREAS, Madera County is home to more than 14,083 children ages zero through five
years old; and
WHEREAS, this age group experiences the most critical opportunities for brain growth
and development; and
WHEREAS, it is repeatedly determined that Madera County children are exposed to risk
factors that compromise optimal brain development with 28.1% of families with children
0-5 living in poverty; and
WHEREAS, the most significant of those risk factors impacting Madera County children
include:
• 54.8% of these families with children 0-5 are headed by single moms; and
• 82% of these single moms do not have a high school diploma or equivalent; and
• 46.5% of these single mom households are living in poverty; and
• 70% of the children 0-5 experience substantiated maltreatment; and
WHEREAS, research demonstrates that despite risk factors, early intervention with
families during their child’s first 5 years of life is proven to impact the child’s long term
outcomes; and
WHEREAS, to raise awareness about the importance of early childhood development,
First 5 Madera County will join the rest of the nation in observance of the Week of the
Young Child.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Chowchilla hereby
proclaims the week of April 16-20, 2018, as the Week of the Young Child in Chowchilla
and support the efforts of First 5 Madera County to promote
healthy development of our young children.
Presented this 27th day of March, 2018

_____________________________________________
DENNIS HAWORTH, MAYOR
City of Chowchilla, County of Madera, State of California

Proclamation
DESIGNATING APRIL 8-14, 2018, AS

NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY
TELECOMMUNICATORS WEEK
WHEREAS, emergencies can occur at anytime that require police, fire or emergency medical
services; and
WHEREAS, when an emergency occurs the prompt response of police officers, firefighters
and paramedics is critical to the protection of life and preservation of property; and
WHEREAS, the safety of our police officers and firefighters is dependent upon the quality
and accuracy of information obtained from citizens who telephone the City of Chowchilla
police-fire communications center; and
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the first and most critical contact our
citizens have with emergency services; and
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the single vital link for our police officers
and firefighters by monitoring their activities by radio, providing them information and insuring
their safety; and
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators of the City of Chowchilla have contributed
substantially to the apprehension of criminals, suppression of fires and treatment of patients;
and
WHEREAS, each dispatcher has exhibited compassion, understanding and professionalism
during the performance of their job in the past year.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Chowchilla hereby
proclaims the week of April 8-14, 2018, to be "National Public Safety Telecommunicators
Week" in honor of the men and women whose diligence and professionalism keep our city
and citizens safe.
Presented this 27th day of March, 2018

_____________________________________________
DENNIS HAWORTH, MAYOR
City of Chowchilla, County of Madera, State of California

Rules of Procedure of the Chowchilla City Council
and all other Local Agencies for which
Members of the City Council serve as Governing Body

Approved by the City Council on

.

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
City Council Core Values

• Accountability
• Innovation
• Professional Excellence
• Respect
• Teamwork
• Trustworthiness

Core values adopted by City Council November, 2013 with Resolution # 92-13
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Introduction
The Chowchilla City Council establishes policies and priorities for the community and is
responsible for the fiscal health of a public corporation.

Purpose of the Procedures Manual
City of Chowchilla staff prepared a procedures manual to assist the City Council by
documenting currently accepted practices. Through agreement of the City Council and staff to
be bound by these practices, with the City Administrator having overall responsibility, the
effective administration of City Council affairs is greatly enhanced. While attempting not to be
overly restrictive, procedures are established so that expectations and practices can be clearly
articulated to guide Council Members in their actions. It is anticipated that this Procedures
Manual may be revised from time to time.

Overview of City Documents
This Procedures Manual provides a summary of important aspects of City Council activities.
However, it cannot incorporate all material and information necessary for undertaking the
business of a city council. Many other laws, policies, plans and documents exist which bind the
City Council to certain courses of action and practices. A summary of some of the most notable
documents that establish City Council direction is provided below.
Municipal Code: The Municipal Code contains local laws and regulations adopted by
ordinances. The administrative chapter of the code addresses the time and place of meetings,
compensation of council members and council member attendance at council meetings. It also
describes the organization and appointment of advisory commissions. In addition to these
administrative matters, the Municipal Code contains a variety of laws. The Municipal Code is
available on the City’s website.
California Government Code: The State Government Code contains many requirements for
the operation of city government. Many of these requirements are also replicated within the
Municipal Code to ensure there is broad awareness of such requirements. Chowchilla is a
“general law” city, which means it is organized in accordance with provisions of the State
Government Code. Also described within the government code is the Council-City
Administrator form of government. Basically, this form of government prescribes that a city
council’s role is to establish polices and priorities, while the role of the city Administrator is to
oversee the operations of the city government.
Strategic Plan: Based on the Vision and Mission Statements and in consideration of the
community’s Values, four broad Strategic Plan categories and their applicable goals are
identified for a five-year planning period. The categories provide an organizational framework
for the strategic Action Steps that will be initiated to implement community consensus on these
overall goals. These goals and ensuing Action Steps are the basic elements of the City’s longterm efforts to help Chowchilla grow and thrive in the years ahead and will provide a metric to
determine our progress toward addressing the concerns, desires and priorities of the community.
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Annual Budget: The City’s annual budget provides a description of city services and the
resources used to provide services. The document contains both a broad overview of the budget
as well as descriptions of programs and services organized for convenience by lead department.
The City operates on a July 1 through June 30 fiscal year.
General Plan: The General Plan is comprised of a number of elements, such as land use,
transportation, open space and housing, in accordance with State requirements, and provides a
policy framework for various matters that fall within these areas.

Orientation of New Council Members
It is important that members of the Council have an understanding of the full range of
services and programs provided by the organization. As new members join the City Council,
the City Clerk coordinates an orientation session with each Council Member which includes
meeting with Department Heads to provide tours of City facilities and meetings with key staff.
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Chowchilla City Council:
Powers and Responsibilities
City Council Generally
The powers of a city council in California to establish policy are quite broad. Essentially,
councils may undertake any action related to city affairs other than those forbidden or preempted by
state or federal law. Specifically, the Council shall have the power, in the name of the city, to do
and perform all acts and things appropriate to a municipal corporation and the general welfare of
its inhabitants and which are not specifically forbidden by the Constitution and laws of the State of
California (California Government Code).
It is important to note that the Council acts as a body. No member has any extraordinary powers
beyond those of other members. While the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem have some additional
ceremonial and administrative responsibilities as described below, in the establishment of policies,
voting and in other significant areas, all members are equal. It is also important to note that policy
is established by at least a majority vote of the Council. While individual members may disagree
with decisions of the majority, a decision of the majority does bind the Council to a course of action.
In turn, it is staff’s responsibility to ensure the policy of the Council is upheld. Actions of staff to
pursue the policy direction established by a majority of Council do not reflect any bias against
Council Members who held a minority opinion on an issue.
Limitations are imposed on a Council Member’s ability to serve on appointed boards of the city.
State law expresses that no member of the Council shall serve as a voting member of any city board,
committee, or commission, whether composed of citizen volunteers, city employees, or a
combination of both. This is not construed as prohibiting members of the Council from serving on
committees or subcommittees of the Council itself, or of agencies representing other levels of
government. In fact, Council Members often participate and provide leadership in regional and state
programs and meetings. Council Members are strongly encouraged to report to the Council on
matters discussed at subcommittees and other regional or state board/agency/group activities in
which they have been involved.

Role of Mayor & Mayor Pro Tem
Mayor:
As reflected in the Municipal Code, the Mayor is to preside at all meetings of the City
Council and perform such other duties consistent with the office as may be imposed by the
Council or by vote of the people. As presiding officer of the Council, the Mayor is to faithfully
communicate the will of the Council majority in matters of policy. The Mayor is also recognized
as the official head of the city for all ceremonial purposes. As such, the Mayor shall be the chief
spokesperson for the City, representing the City at all ceremonial events and functions, and shall
issue all ceremonial proclamations, certificates, and awards.
The Mayor, unless unavailable, shall sign all ordinances, and other documents that have been
adopted by the City Council and require an official signature; except when the City
7

Administrator has been authorized by Council action to sign documents. In the event the Mayor
is unavailable, the Mayor Pro Tem’s signature may be used.
The Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall consult and coordinate with the City Administrator in the
development of agendas for meetings of the City Council. The scope of such review focuses on the
timing of business items and the volume of business that can be considered at any one meeting.
Such review does not allow for a unilateral unlimited delay of items to be considered by the Council
or the introduction of new items not otherwise part of the Council’s identified priorities or staff’s
work plan. Should any significant disagreement arise regarding the scheduling of items, these
matters are to be resolved by the full City Council. The staff maintains a “tentative” Agenda
Forecast that establishes when matters will likely be considered at future meetings.
Mayor Pro Tem: The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council and serve at the pleasure
of the Council. The Mayor Pro Tem shall perform the duties of the Mayor whenever the Mayor is
absent or is unable to perform such duties.

Appointment of City Administrator, Police Chief
The City Council appoints two positions within the city organization: the City Administrator
and Police Chief. Both positions serve at the will of the City Council. The City Administrator
and the Police Chief are employees of the City and have employment agreements that specify
certain terms of employment. The City Administrator is responsible for all other personnel
appointments within the City.

Appointment of Advisory Bodies
The city has a number of standing advisory bodies. Chapter 2 of the Municipal Code
contains adopted policy on the appointment, roles and responsibilities of the various
Commissions and Committees. These procedures apply to all appointments and reappointments
to standing advisory bodies.
In addition, resident committees and task forces are occasionally appointed by the City
Council to address issues of interest. A task force or other ad hoc body is a body created by
Council for a specific task. Council subcommittees, when used, are to help the Council do its
job. Committees ordinarily will assist the Council by preparing policy alternatives and
implications for Council deliberation. Council subcommittees will normally not have direct
dealings with staff operations. Council subcommittees may not speak or act for the Council.
Subcommittees will be used sparingly and ordinarily in an ad hoc capacity. This policy applies
to any group that is formed by Council action, whether or not it is called a subcommittee. Unless
otherwise stated, a subcommittee ceases to exist as soon as its task is complete. The Council
may assign, and specify the role of, one or two Council Members to the task force (if more, it
becomes a defacto Council meeting). Unless otherwise specified, Council Members have all the
rights, and only the rights, of ordinary citizens with respect to task forces and other ad hoc
bodies.
Note that both appointed advisory bodies and ad hoc committees are usually subject to the
open meetings laws commonly known as the Brown Act. There is one exception to
subcommittees being subject to the Brown Act: ad hoc advisory committees consisting of less
than a quorum of members of the governing body and with the following conditions: (1) the
committee must be purely an advisory committee with no decision making authority; (2) the
committee must be composed solely of less than a quorum of members of the governing body;
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(3) the committee must not have continuing subject matter jurisdiction; and (4) the committee
must not have a meeting schedule fixed by formal action of the governing body.

Council Relationship with Advisory Bodies
The City Council has determined that Council Members should not lobby
commissioners/committee members for particular votes. However, Council Members may attend
meetings as residents and request that commissioners/committee members consider certain issues
during their deliberations or in unusual instances as Council Members to reflect the views of the
Council as a body.
Council Members choosing to attend commission or committee meetings should be sensitive
to the fact that they are not participating members of the body. Council Members have the
rights, and only the rights, of ordinary citizens with respect to Commissions – including the right
to write to and speak to the Commission during public comment periods.

Role of Commission/Committee Liaison
Members of the Council are assigned to serve in a liaison capacity with one or more city
commissions and/or committees. The purpose of the liaison assignment is to facilitate
communication between the City Council and the advisory body. The liaison also helps to
increase the Council's familiarity with the membership, programs and issues of the advisory
body. In fulfilling their liaison assignment, members may elect to attend commission/committee
meetings periodically to observe the activities of the advisory body or simply maintain
communication with the commission/committee chair on a regular basis.
Members should be sensitive to the fact that they are not participating members of the
commission/committee, but are there rather to create a linkage between the City Council and
commission/committee. In interacting with commissions/committees, Council Members are to
reflect the views of the Council as a body. Being a commission liaison bestows no special right
with respect to commission business.
Typically, commission/committee liaison positons are assigned to annual terms beginning in
January. The Mayor will ask Council Members which liaison assignments they desire and will
submit recommendations to the full Council regarding the various committees, boards, and
commissions which City Council Members will represent as a liaison. In the rare instance where
more than one Council Member wishes to be the appointed liaison to a particular commission, a
vote of the Council will be taken to confirm appointments.
Additionally, members of the Council are assigned to serve as representatives or designees to
outside agencies and boards.
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City Council Meetings
General Procedures
By resolution, the City Council adopts this document as a modified version of Roberts Rules
of Order.
Presiding Officer: The Mayor is the presiding officer and acts as chair at Council meetings.
In the absence or incapacity of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem serves as presiding officer. In the
absence of both, the Council Members present shall elect a Presiding Officer for that meeting.
Seating arrangement of the Council: The Mayor Pro Tem is seated immediately next to
the Mayor. The Mayor, with the approval of individual Council Members, shall establish the
seating arrangement for regular Council meetings.
Quorum: Three-fifths of the Council Members constitute a quorum for the transaction of
Council business. If a quorum is not in attendance, those attending will be named in the minutes.
They shall reschedule the meeting to a later set time. If there are repeated absences by Council
Members, those members in attendance may adjourn from day to day and/or institute
proceedings to compel attendance of the absent Council Member as prescribed by law.
Council Member Attendance: In accordance with the Municipal Code, members of the City
Council are expected to attend all meetings. If a Council Member is absent from one-half or
more of a Council meeting, as measured by the time duration of that meeting, then the Council
Member will be considered to have been absent from that entire meeting.
Additionally, if a Council Member has unexcused absences from three (3) consecutive
regular meetings or half or more of all regular meetings held in a given calendar quarter of the
calendar year, then the City Council may declare the absent Member’s seat abandoned and
vacant [California Government Code § 36513(a)]. An absence will be considered unexcused
unless the City Council finds that at the time of the absence the Council Member was performing
services for the city, was ill or on sequestered jury duty or the absence was due to a hardship
deemed acceptable by the City Council.
City Administrator Attendance: The City Administrator shall attend all meetings of the
Council unless excused. In his/her absence, the City Administrator shall designate a substitute.
The City Administrator may make recommendations and shall have the right to take part in all
discussion of the Council when recognized by the Mayor to do so, but shall have no vote.
City Attorney Attendance: The City Attorney shall attend all meetings of the Council
unless excused. In his/her absence, the City Attorney shall designate a substitute. The City
Attorney shall give opinions, either written or oral, on questions of law and shall act as the
Council’s parliamentarian.
City Clerk Attendance: The City Clerk shall attend all meetings of the Council unless
excused. In his/her absence, the City Administrator shall designate the Deputy City Clerk as the
substitute. The City Clerk shall prepare and post the agenda, record, prepare and maintain the
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official record of the Council, and perform other related duties as prescribed by the Council
and/or City Administrator.
Department Heads/Employee Attendance: Department Heads and City employees, as
directed by the City Administrator, shall attend Council meetings.
Media Attendance: In accordance with the Brown Act, all meetings of the City Council and
City Boards/Commissions (except closed sessions as authorized by State law) shall be open to
the media, and may be recorded and/or broadcast by tape, radio, television or photography,
provided that the manner in which such recording or broadcast is made does not unreasonably
disrupt the meeting.
Minutes of Proceedings: An account of all public proceedings of the City Council shall be
recorded by the City Clerk and entered into official minute books of the Council. The minutes
shall publicly report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member
present for the action. The minutes shall be available for inspection by the public.
Right of Floor: A member desiring to speak shall first be recognized by the Mayor and shall
confine his/her remarks to the subject under consideration.
Preservation of Order: The Mayor shall preserve strict order and decorum, and except for
matters raised by members of the public during the Public Forum, shall confine debate to the
item under discussion.
Point of Order: The Mayor shall determine all points of order, subject to the right of any
member to appeal the decision to the full Council. If an appeal is taken, the question to the
Council shall be: “Shall the decision of the Mayor be sustained?”
Rules of Order: Except in cases of conflict with these Rules or the Brown Act, the current
official edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of the City Council.
Motion and Vote to be Stated: The Mayor, or a Council Member designated by the Mayor,
shall state any motion submitted for a vote, and the Mayor shall announce the result of all votes.
A roll call vote shall be taken by the City Clerk upon the request of any Council Member.
No Secret Ballots or Voting: Except as otherwise allowed by the Brown Act, all votes shall
be conducted in public and the Council shall not take any action by secret ballot, whether
preliminary or final. All actions of the Council require at least three (3) affirmative votes.

Meeting Schedule
All meetings of the City Council (except closed sessions authorized by State law) shall be
open to the public. No member of the public shall be required, as a condition to attendance at a
Council meeting, to register his or her name, to provide other information, to complete a
questionnaire, or otherwise to fulfill any other condition precedent to his/her attendance.
Regular meetings are usually held in the Council Chambers, 130 South Second Street, on the
second and forth Tuesdays of the month. Typically, closed sessions convene at 6 p.m. and
regular sessions convene at 7 p.m. The City will schedule Town Hall meetings from time to time
during the year.
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No Council meeting will typically be held in the event that a regular meeting of the Council
falls on a legal holiday. Other meetings throughout the year may be cancelled as well. Council
Members should inform the City Administrator as soon as possible if they intend to be out of
town on a set meeting date. On occasion, arrangements may be made in order for Council
Members to remotely participate in Council meetings by telephone conference call when out of
town.

Special Meetings
Special meetings may be called by the Mayor or by a majority of the City Council, in
accordance with the Brown Act. The call for a special meeting shall specify the date, place, and
time of the meeting, and all items of business to be considered. At least twenty-four (24) hours
written notice of the special meeting shall be delivered to and received by all Council Members,
to each local newspaper of general circulation, and to each radio and television station that
requested such notice in writing. The notice of special meeting shall also be posted at the front
entrance of City Hall, and a copy thereof shall be sent to the Public Library. Only those matters
specified in the call for the special meeting may be discussed at the meeting. Every notice of a
special meeting at which action is proposed to be taken on an item shall provide an opportunity
for members of the public to address the Council directly on that item before action is taken.

Adjourned Meetings
Any meeting of the City Council may be adjourned to a later date, place, and time, provided
that no adjournment is for a period beyond the next regular meeting. The Clerk shall
conspicuously post the notice or order of adjournment at the front entrance of City Hall and send
a copy thereof to the Public Library within 24 hours of adjournment of the meeting.

Development of Agenda
Staff will provide a yearly meeting calendar identifying meeting dates and to aid members
and staff with planning and scheduling.
All agenda items must be within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City.
A draft of the agenda for each Council meeting shall be prepared by the City Clerk under the
direction of the City Administrator. The final agenda shall be posted and delivered to the Mayor
and Council Members no later than 6:00 p.m. on the Saturday preceding the Tuesday meeting.
Any agenda item not in compliance with the procedures established herein is subject to being
removed from the Agenda by the Council.
City Council meetings shall end, as appropriate, by no later than 10:00 p.m. At 10:00 p.m.,
the City Council will vote to either proceed with the meeting or carry the remaining items over to
the following City Council meeting.
Given this agenda development schedule, it is extremely difficult when Council requests at a
Tuesday meeting that a report be prepared for consideration the following regular meeting.
Preparation of an agenda item which includes vetting by the City Administrator, Finance
Director and City Attorney takes a considerable amount of time. Complex reports, of course, will
require even greater time to prepare. As such, new agenda items requested by Council will be
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brought back to Council no less than two council meetings later. Among other considerations,
the ability to schedule new agenda items depends on, the nature of the item itself, other agenda
subjects that are already scheduled, and the amount of time available in a Council meeting. On
occasion there will be an item of an extraordinary nature necessitating quick resolution. If
possible, staff will strive to bring that item back to Council as soon as possible.

Placing Items on Agenda
City Council: A Council Member may request an item be considered on a future agenda
and, upon agreement of a majority of Council, staff will prepare a staff report if formal Council
action is required. Council Members may make this request verbally during a meeting or may
submit written requests. Normally, the process involves two steps: initial consideration of the
request by the full Council at the soonest possible regularly scheduled meeting; and, if a majority
agrees, the matter is then scheduled for further consideration on an upcoming meeting agenda.
Members of the Public: Requests by members of the public for placement of an item on
the Agenda shall be referred to the City Administrator, who shall determine if and when such
matters shall be placed on the Agenda.
Emergency and Subsequent Need Items: Emergency and subsequent need items may be
added to an agenda only in accordance with state law. Emergency items are only those matters
affecting public health or safety such as work stoppages, disasters and other severe emergencies.
Adding an emergency item requires a majority vote. Emergency items are very rare. After the
agenda is posted an item (subsequent need) arises that requires Council action. Subsequent need
items may be added to the agenda only if the Council makes findings that (1) the need to
consider the item arose after the posting of the agenda; and, (2) there is a need to take immediate
action at this meeting of the City Council. These findings must be approved by two-thirds (2/3)
vote; if less than five members of Council are present, the findings require a unanimous vote of
those present.

Notification and Advertising
The City attempts to well publicize matters of significant neighborhood or community public
interest that appear on a City Council agenda, as well as all matters where advertising is required
by law. Advertisements and notifications are intended to inform all interested individuals.
The City Clerk shall post the agenda at the front entrance of Chowchilla City Hall and send a
copy thereof to the Public Library at least 72 hours before any regular meeting. The agenda shall
specify the time, date, and location of the meeting, and contain a brief description of each item of
business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including closed session items, and any
other information required by law.

Order of Business
The order of the agenda is as follows:
1. At 6:00 pm, the Council will convene, with a public Call to Order; Roll Call;
Consideration of Approval of Agenda where the Council will then consider Agenda
approval: additions, deletions, modifications, and at the discretion of the Mayor, the order
of agenda items can be re-arranged; and Public Forum regarding Closed Session agenda
items. The Council will then adjourn to Closed Session. If any Closed Session agenda
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item has not been completed in the time allotted, then the Council may carry it over to a
later time during the meeting, and/or to another regular or special meeting of the Council.
2. If time allows, Council Members may meet and greet members of the public from
approximately 6:30 – 7:00 p.m.
3. At 7:00 p.m., the Council will reconvene in Open Session, with a Pledge of Allegiance,
and Invocation.
4. The City Attorney and/or City Administrator will announce any reportable Closed
Session actions.
5. The Council will next consider Ceremonial Matters: Proclamations, Presentations,
Awards, Guest Introductions, and Ceremonial Resolutions.
6. Workshops (as needed).
7. Public Forum (Open).
8. Council and Staff Reports (as needed).
9. The Council will next consider the Consent Calendar. Consent items are of a routine
nature that do not set new Council policy.
10. The Council will next hold any listed Public Hearings.
11. The Council will next consider Deferred Business. This pertains to New Business agenda
items carried over from a previous Council meeting.
12. The Council will next consider Department Reports.
13. Continuation of Closed Session, if needed.
14. Reconvene in Public Session, if continuation of Closed Session held.
15. The City Attorney and/or City Administrator will announce any additional reportable
Closed Session actions.
16. Announcements.
17. Adjournment.
The following section describes the various types of meeting components
1. Closed Sessions (closed to the public): The ability of the City Council to conduct sessions
not open to the public is restricted by state law to ensure open proceedings. Certain defined
circumstances exist wherein a city council may meet without the public in attendance. While
the Government Code allows for various reasons permissible for closed session, some of the
major reasons include:
Real Property: The purchase, sale, exchange or lease of real property with the City’s
negotiator; the real property and the person(s) with whom the City may negotiate must be
announced in open session prior to the closed session (Cal Govt Code 54956.8).
Litigation: Pending or a significant exposure to litigation or the decision to initiate
litigation; the litigation title must be identified in open session prior to the closed session
unless the Council states that to do so would jeopardize its ability to conclude existing
settlement negotiations or effectuate service of process.
Compensation: Salaries and benefits of employees; Council meets in closed session to
review its position and instruct designated representatives (Cal Govt Code §54957.6).
Personnel: A closed session is held to discuss the appointment, employment, evaluation
of performance, or dismissal of a public employee, or to hear a complaint against the
employee unless the employee requests a public hearing (Cal Govt Code §54957.6).
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It is critical to stress that there shall be no disclosure of closed session confidential
information. Members of the Council, employees of the City, or anyone else present shall
not disclose to any person, including affected/opposing parties, the press, or anyone else, the
content or substance of any discussion which takes place in a closed session without Council
direction and concurrence. Whenever possible, written reports received for closed session
items will be turned in at the end of the meeting.
Typically, closed sessions will be scheduled prior to the public portions of the meeting or
at the end of the meeting after public business has been concluded. This is done so public
portions of the meeting are not interrupted by closed sessions. In addition, such sessions may
require the attendance of special legal counsel and consultants. In an attempt to manage the
costs of these professionals, it is beneficial to conduct closed sessions at a time certain. On
occasion, during the course of a regular meeting, an issue arises that requires the Council to
adjourn to a closed session on the advice of the City Attorney.
2. Consent Calendar: Those items on the Council agenda that are considered to be of a
routine and non-controversial nature by the City Administrator are placed on the “Consent
Calendar.” These items shall be approved, adopted, accepted, etc., by one motion of the
Council. Typical consent calendar items include the final reading and adoption of
ordinances, various resolutions approving agreements, awards of contracts, minor budgetary
adjustments, meeting minutes, status reports, and reports of routine city operations.
Council Members may request that any item listed under “Consent Calendar” be removed
from the Consent Calendar, and Council will then take action separately on this item. A
member of the public may request that an item listed under “Consent Calendar” be removed
and Council action taken separately on the item; the City Council must concur with such a
request. Items that are removed (“pulled”) by members of the Council for discussion will
typically be heard after other Consent Calendar items are approved unless the majority of
Council chooses an earlier or later time.
Council Members are encouraged to contact the City Administrator’s office prior to
12:00 noon on the day of a Council meeting day to provide notification of items to be
removed from the Consent Calendar. This practice allows the City Administrator to notify
staff that may need to be present to respond to removed items.
3. Public Comment: During the Public Forum portion of the meeting, any person may
address the Council on any item of interest to the public, provided that the item is within the
subject matter of the jurisdiction of the Council and is not otherwise on the agenda. Except as
allowed by the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by the Council on any item not on the
agenda.
When written materials are presented, they should be submitted to the City Clerk for
distribution and record keeping. Comments are typically limited to three minutes per speaker
so that all have an opportunity to address the Council.
Before any item is opened for public comment, the Mayor may inquire as to the number
of persons wishing to address the Council on that item. If more than five (5) persons wish to
address the Council on the same side of an item, the Mayor may direct that such persons
designate a limited number of speakers (the number to be determined by the Mayor based on
the complexity and controversial nature of the issue) to represent that side of the issue. If
such persons fail or refuse to designate representative speakers, the Mayor may do so for
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them. The representative speakers shall be limited to five (5) minutes, and shall be allotted
sufficient time to fairly address the issue. If a speaker is being repetitious or discussing
matters that are not relevant to the issue under consideration, the Mayor may limit the
speaker’s comments.
All remarks shall be directed to the Mayor and the Council as a body, and not to any
particular Council Member, or member of staff. No person, other than members of the
Council and the person having the floor shall be permitted to enter into the discussion unless
requested by the Mayor to speak. No member of the public shall direct questions to Council
Members individually, or to members of staff, except through the Mayor.
Persons making impertinent or slanderous remarks, or who become boisterous so as to
disrupt the meeting, may be requested by the Mayor to leave. The Mayor shall discourage
demonstrations before the Council, such as applauding or “booing.” Upon instructions by the
Mayor, a police officer may be called for the purpose of removing any person who, in the
Mayor’s judgment, is disrupting the meeting. Persons ejected for disrupting Council
meetings shall be subject to prosecution for violation of Penal Code Section 403 and/or the
Brown Act.
Any person may submit written comments to the Council through the City Clerk or City
Administrator’s Office, and request that members of the Council receive copies of such
materials in the agenda packet, provided that such materials are received in sufficient time to
be included for distribution in the agenda packet. Otherwise, such materials shall be
distributed prior to or at the meeting during which the subject matter will be considered. The
Clerk shall charge for the cost of reproducing copies of such written materials if they are in
excess of three (3) pages.
Videos, PowerPoint or similar presentations may accompany in-person testimony but are
subject to the same speaking time limits. Prior notice and coordination with the City Clerk is
strongly encouraged and the Mayor reserves the privilege to limit such requests as necessary
for the effective conduct of the meeting. Speakers are to address their comments to the City
Council from the podium.
Public comment on regular business items normally follows staff’s presentation of the
staff report, clarifying questions from Council Members as necessary and appropriate.
4. Public Hearing: In the case of public hearings, once the Council has voted to close the
hearing, no member of the public shall be permitted to address the Council or the staff from
the audience, except at the discretion of the presiding officer (Mayor).
Procedures regarding public hearings are as follows:
Introduction. The Mayor announces the subject of the public hearing and declares the
public hearing open.
Staff and Written Material Presentation.
1. Staff reports and other written materials included in the agenda packet are
received and filed. Written comments previously submitted to staff or the Clerk
(e.g. letters, protests, and the like) are noted in the record. All parties to the public
hearing shall have a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on any
written materials submitted to the Council before action is taken.
2. Oral reports are presented by staff members.
3. Staff responds to Council Member questions.
Public Comment
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1. The purpose of the public comment is to provide an opportunity for the applicant
and members of the public to testify in support or in opposition to the matter
being heard.
2. The Mayor instructs members of the public:
a. To speak from the podium.
b. That repetition should be avoided.
3. The applicant and/or his/her representative will normally speak first. The
applicant (and/or his/her representatives and witnesses), as well as any organized
opposition to the matter under consideration (and their representatives and
witnesses), will be limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes per side. The applicant
shall also be entitled to rebuttal, not to exceed five (5) minutes. The Mayor may
inquire as to the number of persons wishing to speak for or against the matter
under consideration; or the Mayor may direct all persons wishing to address the
Council on the item to submit written requests to speak with the Clerk. If more
than five (5) persons wish to address the Council on the same side of the item, the
Mayor may direct such persons to designate a limited number of speakers (the
number to be determined by the Mayor based on the complexity and controversial
nature of the issue) to represent that side of the issue. If such persons fail or refuse
to designate representative speakers, the Mayor may do so for them. In complex
or controversial matters, the Mayor may extend the time limits commensurate
with the amount of time reasonably necessary to present the matter fully.
Testimony. Testimony need not be given under oath, and cross examination of witnesses
is not permitted, unless either is required by law.
Council Deliberation.
1. After the Mayor has determined that no other member of the public wishes to
speak, or that all other speakers will be repetitious of the matters previously
stated, the item shall be returned to the Council for deliberation.
2. Council Members make and second a motion, and then discuss the motion.
3. Members of the public may request permission of the Mayor to comment on
the motion.
4. The Mayor, at his/her discretion, may allow public comment on the motion.
Council Action.
1. The Council may continue the open public hearing to a specific date if it
wishes to receive additional information (e.g., a supplemental staff report); or
2. The Council may:
a. Close the public hearing and vote on the motion on the floor;
b. Offer amendments or substitute motions (additional public comment
on the amended or substitute motion is subject to the Mayor’s
discretion); or
c. Close the public hearing and continue the matter to a later date for
decision (no additional reports or testimony may be received unless the
hearing is reopened).
5. Department Reports: Regular items are shown on the agenda and are normally taken in the
order listed.

6. Council and Staff Reports: Council and Staff Reports provide an opportunity for Council
members, City Administrator and Department Directors to address the Council on matters of
importance or to update the Council and community on studies that are underway.
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Order of Presentation of Agenda Items
1. The Mayor introduces the agenda item.
2. The relevant City Staff as identified in the agenda item presents a ‘brief’ overview of the
specific agenda item.
3. The floor is returned to the Mayor.
4. The Mayor entertains questions of Council.
5. The time allotted for public comment on both information and action agenda items is
limited to three (3) minutes per person, except that the Mayor has the discretion to allow
more time as circumstances warrant. Questions and/or requests are to be directed to the
Mayor. Upon closing of public comment ALL questions and requests shall be addressed
by the Mayor to appropriate staff person.
6. The Mayor will return time to Council Members for follow-up comments/questions
and/or closing remarks associated solely with the specific agenda item.
7. The Mayor to call for a motion and second based on the recommendation of City Staff
and/or Council desire. The Mayor shall then call for a vote on motions properly made and
seconded. The Mayor shall be in charge of making a record and/or providing said
wording when requesting motion. Requests for additional wording may be entertained in
the form of a motion.
8. If a motion fails, the Mayor may request another motion.
9. When the Council has completed its consideration of an agenda item, then the Mayor
shall call the next agenda item.

Ordinances, Resolutions, and Contracts
All ordinances, resolutions, and contracts shall be approved as to form and legality by the
City Attorney and as to content by the City Administrator, before submission to the Council. All
contracts shall be executed by the other party before submission to the City Council. The City
Administrator may waive this requirement.
Unless a member requests full reading, a proposed ordinance will be read by title only. An
affirmative vote of at least three members of the full Council shall be necessary to adopt any
ordinance. Urgency ordinances and supplemental appropriations must be adopted by at least a
four-fifths (4/5) vote of the full Council.
The City Clerk will assign a number to the ordinance, and publish and post the ordinance, or
a summary thereof, as required by law. Any summary must be approved by the City Attorney
before it may be posted and published. The ordinance shall be filed and preserved in the City
Clerk’s office.

Discussion Rules
To assist the City Council in the orderly discussion of items, rules are followed which
represent accepted practices for the management of Council meetings.
1. Interruptions:
a. Once recognized, a Council Member is considered to have the floor, and another
Council Member may not interrupt the speaker except to make a point of order or
point of personal privilege. In such a circumstance, the Council Member holding the
floor shall cease speaking until the point of order or privilege is resolved.
b. Upon being recognized by the Mayor, members of the staff shall hold the floor until
completion of their remarks or until recognition is withdrawn by the Mayor.
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2. Discussion: A Council Member should not speak more than once on a particular subject
until every other Council Member has had the opportunity to speak. Council Members
are encouraged to discuss items during the decision-making process and may ask the City
Administrator to respond when appropriate. The Mayor normally allows other members
to speak first, then will give his/her views and summarize.
3. Tabling Procedure: Tabling an item immediately stops discussion and causes a vote to
postpone a matter indefinitely or to a time and date certain. A motion to “continue” an
agenda item has the same effect, but is generally used when a scheduling problem arises
or when insufficient time is available to address the matter thoroughly.
4. Right of Protest: A Council Member is not required to state reasons for a dissenting
vote, but may do so if done in a professional manner.
5. Calling for the Question: The purpose of calling for the question is to disallow further
debate and put an issue to an immediate vote. A Council Member may move to “call for
the question” on an item which is being considered. The motion requires a second, is not
debatable, and must pass by a four-fifths vote. If the motion carries, the item is no longer
debatable and the City Council must vote on it.
6. Personal Privilege: The right of a Council Member to address the Council on a question
of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which the integrity, character, or motives
of the Council Member have been brought into question. The Council Member shall not
interrupt the speaker and shall be recognized by the Mayor before speaking.

Voting Procedures
When present, all Council Members are to vote. Failure of a seated member to orally express
a vote constitutes an affirmative vote.
Council Members wishing to abstain from a particular vote shall orally state their
abstentions.
No ordinance, resolution or motion shall be passed or become effective without an
affirmative vote by the majority with a quorum present or as required by law.
A conflict of interest shall be declared whenever appropriate and in compliance with state
law. The affected Council Member will step down from the dais and leave the Chambers.
Upon the request of any Council Member, a roll call vote will be taken and recorded by the
Clerk on the motion before the Council. The Mayor’s name shall be called last with other
member’s names called at random by the City Clerk. Members shall not give explanations for
their vote during a roll call.
Tie Vote: A tie vote is equivalent to a motion that has failed. The presiding officer may
publicly explain the effect of the tie vote for the audience or may direct a member of the staff to
do so.
Rules of Debate: The Mayor as presiding officer may move, second, and debate items from
the Chair, and shall not be deprived of any rights or privileges of a Council Member. Any ruling
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of the Mayor may be appealed at the request of any Council Member. The Mayor shall call for a
roll call vote to determine if the ruling is upheld.
When a motion is before the Council, no motion shall be entertained except:
1. Motion to Amend. Amendments that modify a motion on the floor are in order and may
be debated only if the modification does not significantly alter the substance of the
original motion. The proposed amendment is voted on first; the main motion is voted on
last (as amended or in its original form if the amendment is defeated). A motion may be
amended more than once with each amendment being voted on separately. There shall be
only one amending motion on the floor at any time.
2. Motion to Postpone. A motion to postpone indefinitely is always in order and is subject
to debate. If such a motion is adopted, the principal question is lost. A motion to postpone
to a definite time is always in order, but is not subject to debate except as to the proposed
continued date. If such a motion is adopted, the principal question is not lost.
3. Motion to Table. A motion to table is always in order. It is not subject to debate or to
amendment. The purpose of a motion to table is to bypass the item temporarily. If a
motion to table is adopted, the item may be taken from the table at any time prior to
adjournment of the next regular meeting. Items that are tabled shall automatically be set
on the agenda for the next regular meeting. If the item is not taken from the table within
the time specified, the principal question is lost.
Continuation of an Item: Any Council Member may, as a matter of personal privilege,
continue an item that is not subject to a deadline to the next regular Council meeting. This
continuance may be overruled by majority vote of the Council Members present.
Any person may request continuance of an item. The Council, by majority vote of those
present, may grant the continuance.
Motion to Reconsider: A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Council may be
made within thirty (30) days after the Council’s vote. A four-fifths (4/5) vote of the full Council
shall be required for the Council to change any action after the City has completed the activities
authorized in the Council’s prior vote.

Other Guidelines
Other guidelines have been developed to ensure that meetings of the Council are conducted
in a civil and professional manner. Council Members and staff shall:
1. Work to preserve appropriate order and decorum during all meetings.
2. Discourage side conversations, disruptions, interruptions or delaying efforts.
3. Inform the Mayor before departing from a meeting.
4. Limit disruptive behavior. The Mayor will call persons demonstrating rude, boisterous,
or profane behavior to order. If such conduct continues, the Mayor may call a recess,
request the removal of such person(s) from the Council Chambers, adjourn the meeting,
or take such other appropriate action. The Council has a policy to discourage applause,
booing or other similar behaviors from the public during meetings.
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5. Limit breaks of the City Council to 5-10 minutes. The Mayor may resume the meeting if
a quorum exists and other members have not returned from the break within the
announced time period.
6. Impose time limits on speakers. While the City Council encourages and embraces the
need for and right of public participation, it acknowledges that public comments must, at
times, be limited. Therefore, the Mayor, as presiding officer, may poll the audience for
an indication of the number of people wishing to speak, and to impose time limits per
speaker. Typically, speakers are limited to three (3) minutes but a shorter time limit may
be established as deemed necessary. When a member of the public is to speak on behalf
of others in attendance, a maximum time limit of ten (10) minutes is usually imposed.
After the time limit, Council may ask questions of the speaker for clarification, if needed.
Each speaker will be thanked for his or her participation.
Values of Respect: The City Council has also recognized the importance of approaching the
public’s business in an environment of personal respect and courtesy, which places emphasis on
the consideration of policy and avoids personalization of comments. Some guidelines utilized by
the City Council include:
1. Discussion should focus on policy matters
2. Personal criticism of members is inappropriate
3. Proper decorum should be displayed as other members express their views
4. Treat members of the public equally, applying rules in a fair and consistent manner
Enforcement of Order: The Police Chief or his/her designee acts as the Sergeant-At-Arms.
The Mayor may request the Police Chief or his/her designee to enforce the rules of protocol.

Open Meeting Laws (“The Brown Act”)
Operations and procedures of the City and City Council incorporate requirements of the
state’s open meeting law (commonly referred to as the Brown Act). Because this law is such an
important part of local government operations, some specific requirements of the law are
highlighted below.
Applicability and Penalties: The entire city organization conducts its business in
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, State Government Code Section 54950. The intent of
the Act is to ensure that deliberation and actions of local public agencies are conducted in open
and at public meetings.
A. Applicability: The Act applies to Council and all commissions, boards and Council
appointed subcommittees (except if comprised entirely of two Council Members) and
task forces that advise Council. Staff cannot promote actions that would violate the Act.
B. Meetings: All meetings shall be open and public. A City Council meeting takes place
whenever a quorum (3 or more members) is present and information about the business
of the body is received; discussions qualify as a meeting. Social functions (e.g.,
receptions, dinners) do not fall under the Act unless city business is discussed.
Serial meetings take place when any member of Council or city staff contact more than
two Council Members for the purpose of deliberating or acting upon an item pending
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before the City Council. This restriction does not apply to the public or media who may
contact Council Members. Correspondence that merely takes a position on an issue is
acceptable. Note that the Brown Act applies to City Council Members immediately after
their election and prior to their swearing-in ceremony.
C. Agendas: Agendas for regular meetings must be posted 72 hours in advance of the
meeting and must meet various requirements.
D. Actions: No action can be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda.
Exceptions: 1) An emergency situation exists (determined by a majority of the Council).
2) The need to take action arose subsequent to the agenda being posted and there is a
need for immediate action (determined by 2/3 vote of the Council; or if less than 2/3 are
present, by unanimous vote). 3) The item was continued to another meeting that was
scheduled and posted within 5 days of the original agenda.
E. Public Input: The public, by law, has an opportunity to address the Council on any item
of interest to the public that is within the jurisdiction of the Council, at the time the matter
is heard. The Mayor has the right to establish a time limit on speakers and the total time
allocated for a particular issue. Three minutes per speaker has been standard, but in
unusual cases either shorter or longer time periods may be established by the Mayor or
the Council.
F. Public Disruptions: A portion or all of the public may be removed if willful disruption
makes conducting the meeting "unfeasible"; the press may remain unless they participate
in the disruption.
G. Correspondence: All writings distributed for discussion or consideration at a public
meeting are public records.
H. Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called by the City Clerk or City
Administrator with strict notification requirements for delivery to the media and Council
24 hours before the time of the meeting.
I. Emergency Meetings: Emergency meetings may be called without notification due to the
disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities. Only work stoppages or crippling
disasters that impair the public health and/or safety qualify for emergency meetings.
J. Other Provisions: The Act provides many other restrictions and requirements; this
chapter is intended merely as a Council summary and overview of the Act, and nothing in
this Chapter supersedes the provisions of the Brown Act. Please check with the City
Attorney and/or the City Clerk for more information.
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Council Communications
Overview
Perhaps the most fundamental role of a Council Member is communication—communication
with the public to assess community opinions and needs—communication with staff to provide
policy direction and to gain an understanding of the implications of various policy alternatives.
Because the City Council performs as a body (that is, acting based on the will of the majority as
opposed to individuals), it is important that general guidelines be understood when speaking as a
Council Member. Equally important, when members are expressing personal views and not
those of the Council, the public should be so advised.

Correspondence from Council Members
Members of the City Council may occasionally be called upon to write letters to citizens,
businesses or other public agencies. Typically, the Mayor will be charged with transmitting the
City’s position on policy matters to outside agencies on behalf of the City Council.
Correspondence sent on behalf of the Council is placed on official City letterhead and is signed
by the Mayor or City Administrator. Individual members of Council may prepare letters to
constituents in response to inquiries or to provide requested information. Individualized City
Council Member letterhead is available for this purpose, and staff can assist in the preparation of
such correspondence.
On occasion, members may wish to transmit correspondence on an issue upon which the
Council has yet to take a position or about an issue for which the Council has no position. In
these circumstances, members should use their individualized letterhead and clearly indicate
within letters that they are not speaking for the City Council as a whole, but for themselves as
one member of Council.
Council Members may be asked to prepare letters of recommendation for students and others
seeking appointment. It is appropriate for individual Council Members to utilize City letterhead
and their Council titles for such letters. No review by the full Council is required, however,
copies will be kept on file.

Speaking for “The City”
Similar to written correspondence, when members are requested to speak to groups or are
asked the Council’s position on an issue, the response should reflect the position of the Council
as a whole. Of course, a member may clarify their vote on a matter by stating, for example,
“While I voted against “X”, the City Council voted in support of it.” When representing the City
at meetings or other venues, it is important that those in attendance gain an understanding of the
City Council’s position rather than that of an individual member.
When dealing with members of the media, it is usually the Mayor who represents the position
and interest of the City Council if time allows. The City Administrator or a Department Head
may be authorized to speak on issues within their expertise. Similarly, when the City issues a
Press Release, the Mayor is consulted in terms of any Council Member quotes or references.
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The City Administrator decides whether staff is available to respond to media requests directly or
not.

Local Ballot Measures
At times measures that affect City Council policy may be placed on the ballot. There are
restrictions regarding what actions a City Council or individual Members may take on ballot
measures. Guidelines as to what is permissible are available from the City Clerk or City
Attorney upon request.

State Legislation, Propositions
The City has been a member of the League of California Cities for many years. When and
advisory is received from this organization or as a result of City staff following key legislative
bills of importance to the City, the Council is at times requested to take a position or an action on
pending state legislation. Unless Council has previously acted on a similar bill in the recent past,
in which the City’s position is clear, the Council has a practice of requiring analysis and
discussion of bills prior to taking an official position. The analysis includes a summary of the
legislation’s purpose and a listing of those entities both in support of and against the proposed
legislation.

Proclamations
Ceremonial proclamations are often requested of the City in recognition of an event or
individual. Proclamations are not statements of policy but a manner in which the city can make
special recognition of an event (e.g., Recycling Week) or individual. As part of his/her
ceremonial responsibilities, the Mayor is charged with administration of proclamations.
Individual Council Members do not issue proclamations. Proclamations can be sent to the
requestor or presented at a City Council meeting as arranged with the requesting body and at the
Mayor’s discretion.
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Interaction with City Staff
Overview
City Council policy is implemented on a daily basis through staff. Therefore, it is critical
that the relationship between Council and staff be well understood by all parties so that policies
and programs may be implemented successfully. The City of Chowchilla has a long tradition
of positive relationships between members of the City Council and staff. To maintain these
effective relationships it is important that roles are clearly recognized.

Council-Administrator Form of Government
Like most California cities, Chowchilla has adopted a City Council-City Administrator form
of government. The Council appoints a City Administrator to implement policy, enforce its
laws, to direct the daily operations of city government, and to prepare and monitor the municipal
budget. Council Members work through the City Administrator in dealing with City staff. The
City Administrator is responsible to the City Council as a body rather than to individual Council
Members.

Council-Administrator Relationship
The employment relationship between the City Council and City Administrator reflects the
fact that the City Administrator is the chief executive officer of the City. The City Administrator
has an employment agreement with the City Council. Regular communication between the City
Council and City Administrator is important in maintaining effective interpersonal relations. All
dealings with the City Administrator, whether in public or private, should be consistent with the
authority of the City Administrator in administrative and personnel matters. Council Members
should avoid situations that can result in City staff being directed, intentionally or
unintentionally, by one or more members of the City Council. Further, Council Members should
avoid involving themselves in matters regarding individual City employees or related affairs.
As in any professional relationship, it is important that the City Administrator keep the City
Council informed. The City Administrator respects that the final responsibility for establishing
the policy direction of the City is held by the City Council. The City Administrator
communicates with City Council in various ways. In addition to the formal Council meetings,
there are periodic briefing meetings with individual Council Members and written memoranda
and email. Communication must be undertaken in such a way that all Council Members are
treated similarly and kept equally informed. It is also important that the Council provide
ongoing feedback, information and perceptions to the City Administrator including responses to
written communications and surveys requesting feedback.

City Administrator Code of Ethics
The City Administrator is subject to a professional code of ethics, as outlined by the
International City/County Management Association (ICMA), that binds the City Administrator
to certain practices that are designed to ensure his or her actions are in support of the City’s best
interests. Violations of such standards can result in censure by ICMA.
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City Council-City Attorney Relationship
The City Attorney is the legal advisor for the Council, City Administrator and departments.
The general legal responsibilities of the City Attorney are to: 1) provide legal assistance
necessary for formulation and implementation of legislative policies and projects; 2) represent
the City's interest, as determined by the City Council, in litigation, administrative hearings,
negotiations and similar proceedings; 3) prepare and/or review ordinances, resolutions, contracts
and other legal documents to best reflect and implement the purposes for which they are
prepared; and 4) keep City Council and staff apprised of court rulings and legislation affecting
the legal interest of the City. It is important to note that the City Attorney does not represent
individual members of Council, but the City Council as a whole.

Roles and Information Flow
Objectives: It is the intent of staff to ensure Council Members have free and easy access to
information from the City and to ensure that such information is communicated completely, with
candor and without bias. Individual Council Members may not intervene in staff decisionmaking, the development of staff recommendations, scheduling of work, or executing
department priorities without the prior knowledge and approval of the City Council as a whole.
This is necessary to protect staff from undue influence and pressure from individual Council
Members, and to allow staff to execute the priorities given by management and the Council as a
whole without fear of reprisal.
Council Roles: The full City Council retains power to accept, reject, amend, influence, or
otherwise guide and direct staff actions, decisions, recommendations, service levels, work loads
and schedules, departmental priorities, and the performance of City business. If a Council
Member wishes to influence the actions, decisions, recommendations, workloads, work schedule,
and priorities of staff, that member must prevail upon the Council to do so as a matter of Council
policy.
Should a Council Member become dissatisfied about a department, he/she should always talk
it over with the City Administrator, not the Department Head. Concerns about a Department
Head must be taken to the City Administrator only.
Access to Information: Individual Council Members as well as the Council as a whole shall
receive the full cooperation and candor of staff in being provided with any requested
information. The City Administrator or appropriate staff will inform council when a critical or
unusual event occurs about which the public would be concerned.
To assist the City Administrator in his ability to monitor the flow of information, requests for
information are best tracked if submitted in writing, either in memorandum form or through
email.
There are limited restrictions when information cannot be provided. Draft documents (e.g.,
staff reports in progress, administrative draft EIRs) under review are not available for release
until complete and after review by city management. In addition, there are legal restrictions on
the City’s ability to release certain personnel information even to members of the City Council.
Certain aspects of Police Department affairs (access to restricted or confidential information
related to crimes) may not be available to members of the Council.
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City Council Members have a responsibility in this information flow as well. It is critical
that they make use of staff reports and commission minutes. Council Members should come to
meetings well prepared – having read staff reports and attachments, and requesting in advance
any necessary and available information from the City Administrator. If a Council Member has
questions on an agenda item, that member should preferably contact the City Administrator or
the relevant department head prior to the meeting in order to allow staff time to research a
response for the meeting.
Staff Roles: The Council recognizes the primary functions of staff as serving the
community, executing Council policy and actions and in keeping the Council informed. Staff is
obligated to take guidance and direction only from the City Administrator who operates at the
guidance and direction of the Council. Staff is directed to report to the City Administrator any
attempts by individual members of the Council to unduly direct or otherwise pressure them into
making, changing or otherwise influencing recommendations.
City staff will make every effort to respond in a timely and professional manner to all
requests made by individual Council Members for information or assistance; provided that, in the
judgment of the City Administrator, the request is not of a magnitude, either in terms of
workload or policy, which would require that it would be more appropriately assigned to staff
through the direction of the full City Council. If a request by an individual Council Member is
determined by the City Administrator to take one hour or more of staff time to complete, that
request may be included on the formal Council agenda for full Council discussion.

Dissemination of Information
In cases where a staff response to an individual Council Member request involves written
materials that may be of interest to other Council Members, the City Administrator will provide
copies of the material to all other Council Members. In making this judgment, the City
Administrator will consider whether the information is significant, new, otherwise not available
to the Council or of interest to the Council.

Magnitude of Information Request
Any information, service-related request, or revised policy position perceived as necessary
by individual Council Members, and that cannot be fulfilled based on the above guidelines,
should be submitted by the individual Council Member in writing to the Council as a whole.
When raised at a Council meeting, the full Council can decide whether and when to agendize the
request for further consideration. The City Administrator will seek necessary clarification as to
whether the Council desires staff research or a report prepared; and, if so, the relative priority
that should be given to such a request in light of other priorities and potential workload impacts.

Staff Relationship with Advisory Bodies
Staff support and assistance is typically provided to commissions and task forces. However,
advisory bodies do not have authority over City employees. While staff may work closely with
advisory bodies, staff members remain responsible to their immediate supervisors and ultimately
the City Administrator. The members of the commission/ board/committee are responsible for
the functions of the advisory body, and the chairperson is responsible for committee compliance
with City policies.
Staff support often includes preparation of an agenda and its posting in compliance with the
Brown Act. Staff may also prepare reports providing background on the issue, alternatives, a
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recommendation, and appropriate backup materials, if necessary. Advisory body members
should have sufficient information to reach decisions based upon a clear explanation of the
issues. The assigned staff person may serve as secretary, taking minutes as needed. Staff
members are to assist the advisory body chair to ensure appropriate compliance with state and
local laws and regulations.
It is important that advisory bodies wishing to communicate recommendations to the City
Council do so through approved Council agenda procedures. In addition, if a commission wishes
to correspond with an outside agency, that correspondence will be prepared by staff for review
by the City Administrator and possible approval by the City Council. Individuals who would
like staff to perform research or for the commission to review a particular issue must gain the
approval for such a request from the full City Council before any work is planned or done.

Restrictions on Political Involvement by Staff
Local governments are non-partisan entities. Professional staff, as reflected within the
principles of the Council-Administrator form of government, formulates recommendations in
compliance with Council policy and for the good of the community and is not influenced by
political factors. For this reason, it is very important to understand the restrictions of staff in any
level of political involvement through campaigns, fund-raisers, or other means.
By working for the City, staff members do not surrender rights to be involved in local
elections. Indeed, laws are in place to preserve those rights. However, there are limitations to
such involvement. Different restrictions apply to management and to general employees.
General employees have no restrictions while off the job. No participation in campaigns or
other activities may take place while on the job. No City resources may be used by staff in
support of any campaign. Even while off the job, no employee may participate in campaign or
other activities in a City uniform. For example, posing for a promotional photograph for a
candidate for local office while in uniform is inappropriate. The support of the City Council in
these matters is requested. A Council Member asking staff to sign petitions or similar items can
similarly create an awkward situation.
For management staff, the City Administrator strongly discourages any involvement in a
local campaign even while on personal time. Such involvement could erode the tenet that staff is
to provide an equal level of service to all members of the City Council. The City Administrator
specifically prohibits any political involvement in local campaigns by Department Heads.
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Support Provided to City Council
Staff Support
General administrative support to members of the City Council is provided through the City
Administrator’s Office. Secretarial services including scheduling of appointments, receipt of
telephone messages, and word processing are available as needed. In addition to supporting the
five City Council Members, the administrative support staff member also assists the City
Administrator and acts as Deputy City Clerk. Sensitivity to the workload of support staff
members in the City Administrator’s Office is appreciated. Should requested tasks require
significant time commitments, prior consultation with the City Administrator is requested.

Office Equipment
To enhance Council Members’ ability to communicate with staff and the public, the City
Council office is equipped with a computer and telephones with voicemail. The Council can also
receive and send faxes. In addition, Council Member’s cell phones can be used to access their
City email.
These technologies facilitate efficient communication by Council Members. However, their
use also raises important legal issues to which Council Members must pay special attention. First,
the Brown Act prohibits members from using “technological devices” to develop a concurrence by
a majority regarding an action to be taken by the Council. “Technological devices” under the
Brown Act include phones, faxes, computer email, public access cable TV and video. Council
Members should not use e-mail, faxes or phones for communicating with other Council Members in
order to develop a majority position on any particular issue that may come before the full Council.
Be aware that most emails sent by Council Members probably are public records under the
Public Records Act. Even though it does not create paper, sending email is more similar to mailing
a letter than placing a telephone call. The information in the email is stored on the computer
network until deleted, and may continue to exist on the network’s back-up systems even after being
deleted. As a result, emails can become records of the City maintained in the course of business,
and thus available for public disclosure under the Public Records Act. This restriction applies to the
conducting of City business on a private email account as well.
Finally, the City’s email system is intended for the conduct of official business, and not for
political reasons. See CHAPTER 8 for a detailed discussion on the prohibition against using City
property and funds for personal or political purposes.

Meeting Rooms
An office is available for shared use by members of the City Council. Council Members can
also reserve larger meeting space for use by contacting the City Administrator’s Office staff.

Mail, Deliveries
Members of the City Council receive mail and other materials from the public, private
interests and staff. The City Administrator’s Office staff maintains a mail folder for each
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member. Meeting agenda materials are typically available for pick up Friday evenings at 6:30
p.m. and are posted on the City’s website.
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Financial Matters
Council Compensation
State law and the Municipal Code provide for modest compensation to members of the City
Council. State law limits an increase in city council salaries to 5% per year, effective only
following the next election after adoption. Currently, Council Members receive a stipend of
$300 per month. Council Members are also eligible for participation in group insurance benefits
including medical, dental, vision, and life insurance plans.

Expenditure Allowance
The annual city budget includes limited funding for members to undertake official City
business. Eligible expenses include travel for attendance at conferences or educational seminars,
and the purchase of publications and annual subscriptions. Travel expense reimbursement for
meals does not allow reimbursement for alcohol. Donations to organizations are not eligible nor
are meals for individuals other than Council Members. Available funds are disbursed on a first
come first served basis, with the Finance Director and City Administrator monitoring expenses
during the year.

Expenditure Guidelines
It is important to note that any expense must be related to City affairs. Public property and
funds may not be used for any private or personal purpose. Courts have ruled that this
prohibition includes personal political purposes. For example, reimbursement could not be
allowed to pay for meals at a meeting designed to discuss political or campaign strategies. It is
also inappropriate for City funds to pay for a meal or other expenses of a private citizen.
City budgetary practices and accounting controls apply to expenditures within the City
Council budget. Reimbursement requests should be made through the City Administrator’s
Office with receipts. Expenditure records are public information. Questions arising as to the
proper application or interpretation of the adopted policy will result in the City Administrator
conferring with the Mayor.
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Conflicts & Liability
Conflict of Interest
State laws are in place to prevent an action by a Council Member that would or may
constitute a conflict of interest. The purpose of such laws and regulations is to ensure that all
actions are taken in the public interest. At any time a Member believes a potential for conflict of
interest exists, he/she is encouraged to consult with the City Attorney or private legal counsel for
advice. Staff may also request an opinion from the City Attorney regarding a member’s potential
conflict. Laws that regulate conflicts are very complicated. Violations may result in significant
penalties including criminal prosecution.
There are two primary laws that govern conflicts of interest for public officials in California the Political Reform Act and Government Code §1090. In general terms, the Political Reform
Act prohibits a public official from having a financial interest in a decision before the official;
§1090 prohibits a public official from having an interest in government contracts.
The Political Reform Act prohibits public officials from making, participating in, or in any
way attempting to use their official position to influence a governmental decision in which they
know, or have reason to know, that they have a financial interest. Therefore, if a public official
has a conflict of interest, the official must disqualify himself or herself from acting on or
participating in the decision before the City. Once a year Council Members and certain staff are
required to file statements of economic interests.
Government Code §1090 is similar to the Political Reform Act, but applies only to City
contracts in which a public official has a financial interest. The financial interests covered by
§1090 are different from those in the Political Reform Act. A Member having an interest in a
contract may preclude the City from entering into the contract at all. In addition, the penalties
for violating §1090 are severe. If a Council Member believes that he or she may have any
financial interest in a contract that will be before the Council, the Member should immediately
seek advice from the City Attorney or the Member’s personal attorney.
There are a number of other restrictions placed on Council actions that include prohibitions
on secrecy and discrimination as well as assurance that all city funds are spent for public
purposes. Violations of these restrictions may result in personal liability for individual Council
Members.

City Attorney Advice
The City Attorney has an affirmative duty to protect the City and City Council from conflicts
of interest wherever possible. It is critical to note that while the City Attorney can render advice
on the interpretation of state laws and regulations on conflict matters, such advice is solely an
interpretation of the law. The only authority that can provide binding interpretations on such
matters is the State Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC). Members or the full Council
may also solicit opinions on such matters directly from the FPPC; however, such opinions often
take time to develop and may not readily respond to urgent matters. It is important to note that
the City Attorney does not represent individual members of Council, but the City Council as a
whole.
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Conflict of Interest Forms
Annual disclosure statements are required of all Council members, designated commissioners
and senior staff which indicate potential conflicts of interest including sources of income,
ownership of property and receipt of loans and gifts. Council Members and the City
Administrator often serve on the governing board of other agencies as a result of their positions.
These agencies also require submittal of disclosure forms. These forms require information
including income, loans, receipt of gifts, and interest in real property among other items.

Liability
The City offers a variety of services and may occasionally find itself subject to legal actions
through lawsuits. For example, those involved in automobile accidents sometimes choose to
take actions against a City since the accident occurred on a City roadway. The City must always
approach its responsibilities in a manner that reduces risk to all involved; however, with such a
wide variety of high-profile services all risk cannot be eliminated. The City belongs to an
agency with other governments to manage insurance and risk activities.
It is important to note that violations of certain laws and regulations by individual members
of the City Council may result in that member’s being personally liable for damages which
would not be covered by the City’s insurance. Examples may include discrimination,
harassment or fraud.
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Additional Training & Resource Materials
League of California Cities
The League is an association of virtually all cities in California. It provides many services
including the production of educational conferences for local officials, publication of various
newsletters and the monthly magazine Western City. The League has lobbyists on staff to
represent the interest of cities before the state legislature and federal government and supports
committees having local officials as members that are organized to address issues as they arise.
The League has an Internet web site at www.cacities.org. The City of Chowchilla participates in
League activities through the South San Joaquin Valley Division.

Local Government Commission
The Commission is a California-based organization that focuses largely on planning and
resource conservation issues. It conducts workshops, offers periodic seminars, and publishes
newsletters.

International City/County Management Association (ICMA)
ICMA is a professional association of local government chief executives/city Administrators.
The association has an extensive list of publications to assist local officials.

Other Reference Material Available
Open & Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act (LOCC publication)
A Guide to the Political Reform Act
City Council Resource Binder that includes publications relating to:
Responsibilities & Powers
Leadership Skills
Public Trust & Transparency
Making Decisions
Land Use
Finance Management
Working with Residents and the Media
Working with Staff
City of Chowchilla Municipal Code
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Item 3.1

MINUTES
Chowchilla City Council
Meeting

CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

Council Chambers, Chowchilla City Hall
130 S. Second Street, Chowchilla, CA 93610

Tuesday, March 13, 2018
7:00 p.m.
ROLL CALL: 6:06PM
Mayor: Dennis Haworth
Mayor Pro Tem: Ray Barragan
Council: Waseem Ahmed (6:15PM), John Chavez, Mary Gaumnitz (absent)
City staff and contract employees present: Police Chief Dave Riviere, City Attorney David
Ritchie, Fire Chief Harry Turner, Finance Director Rod Pruett, Public Works Director Jason
Rogers, Recreation and Public Engagement Director Marty Piepenbrok, Contract Engineer Jerry
Jones, City Clerk Joann McClendon
CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Additions and/or Deletions:

Closed Session Item 1 was withdrawn from the Closed Session calendar as the City Administrator
was absent.
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Haworth, Seconded by Council Member Chavez to Approve the
Agenda as Amended. Motion passed by voice vote with Council Members Ahmed and Gaumnitz
absent.
PUBLIC ADDRESS – CLOSED SESSION
No one present.
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM
1. Public Employee Evaluation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957
Title: Police Chief
2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation Pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9 Subdivision (d) Paragraph (3)
Number of Potential Cases: 1
OPEN SESSION – 7:00 PM
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
INVOCATION:

Police Chief Riviere

Mr. Alfred Hansen

City Council MINUNTES

March 13, 2018

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: No reportable action; direction given to staff.
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1
1. Recognition: Tenaya Guild
2. Mid Valley Disposal Quarterly Presentation by Anette Kwok
PUBLIC ADDRESS
No one spoke.
COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS – Section 2
2.1

COUNCIL REPORTS
Legislative Items
Oral / Written Reports

Council Member Ahmed attended the International Conference of Shopping Centers in Monterey
and a Madera Chamber of Commerce Sister City event.
Council Member Chavez attended the Chicano Correctional Workers Association’s Crab Feed.
2.2

STAFF REPORTS
Written/Oral Reports

City Clerk McClendon reminded Council and Staff of the State of the County event on March 28
and the FPPC Form 700 April 2 filing deadline. She is also RSVP’ing for the Council, whoever is
interested in attending the League of California Cities Legislative Action Days on April 18 in
Sacramento. City Clerk McClendon also reported and showed a photo on the monitors of the
brand new CATX buses.
Recreation and Public Engagement Director Piepenbrok discussed upcoming events and
important dates including the Easter Event. Thursday April 19 is the date for the next Town Hall
Meeting; topic will focus on the 2018/2019 fiscal year budget.
Public Works Director Rogers reported on recent storm, water meter installation project, and
AT&T fiber optic installation.
Finance Director Pruett reported on the year-end audit wrapping up, midyear budget, and the
Internal Revenue Service Audit that revealed some findings.
Fire Chief Turner reported that everything sold that was sent to auction.
CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3
3.1

Approval of the February 27, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes (McClendon)

3.2

Approval of the February 27, 2018 Special City Council Meeting Minutes (McClendon)

3.3

Review of Monthly Check Register for February 2018 (Pruett)

3.4

A City Council Resolution (26-18) Authorizing the City Administrator or Designee(s)
to Make Application and Sign Certifications and Assurances for Federal

City Council MINUNTES

March 13, 2018

Transportation Administration (FTA) Applications, Programs, Projects or Grants and
all Related Documents Thereto (Roman)
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Barragan, Seconded by Council Member Ahmed to Approve the
Consent Calendar as Presented. Motion passed by roll call vote with Council Member Gaumnitz
absent.
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4
None.
DEFERRED BUSINESS – Section 5
None.
NEW BUSINESS – Section 6
6.1

Consideration of a Madera County Economic Development Commission (MCEDC)
Annual Basic Service Budget (Haddix)

MCEDC Director Bobby Kahn presented the item.
Spoke:
Emil Stagnaro
No action taken at this time. Item will return on the March 27, 2018 Council meeting agenda.
6.2

A City Council Resolution (27-18) Awarding the Construction Contract for the
Rehabilitation of Well No. 5A and No. 11 to Zim Industries, Inc. in the Amount of
$128,660.00 and Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute the Contract on Behalf
of the City (Jones)

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Barragan, Seconded by Council Member Chavez to Approve Council
Resolution #27-18, Awarding the Construction Contract for the Rehabilitation of Well No. 5A and
No. 11 to Zim Industries, Inc. in the Amount of $128,660.00 and Authorizing the City Administrator
to Execute the Contract on Behalf of the City. Motion passed by roll call vote with Council Member
Gaumnitz absent.
6.3

A City Council Resolution (28-18) Approving New Agreements with the Chowchilla
Union High School District and the Chowchilla Elementary School District to
Continue the Campus Resource Officer Program (Riviere)

Motion by Mayor Haworth, Seconded by Council Member Ahmed to Approve Council Resolution
#28-17, Approving New Agreements with the Chowchilla Union High School District and the
Chowchilla Elementary School District to Continue the Campus Resource Officer Program.
Motion passed by roll call vote with Council Member Gaumnitz absent.
ANNOUNCEMENTS – Section 7
MAR 17
MAR 17
MAR 21

CHOWCHILLA LITTLE LEAGUE OPENING DAY & BBQ 11 AM & 1 PM
CHOWCHILLA LIONS CLUB SPRING ROUND-UP DINNER, EASTMAN HALL, FAIRGROUNDS 6:00 PM
INDUSTRIAL SPECIFIC PLAN STUDY SESSION #3, CITY HALL, 6:00 PM
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING, CITY HALL, 7 PM

City Council MINUNTES

MAR 20
MAR 20
MAR 24
MAR 24
MAR 24-APR 2
MAR 27
MAR 27

March 13, 2018

COFFEE WITH A COP, STARBUCKS, 8 AM
COMMUNITY CONVERSATION, CITY HALL, 5:30 PM
AMERICAN LEGION & VFW BREAKFAST FUNDRAISER, EDWARD RAY PARK, 8 AM -12 PM
CITY EASTER EGG SCRAMBLE, EDWARD RAY PARK 10 AM
SCHOOL DISTRICTS SPRING/EASTER BREAK
DEVELOPERS, BUILDERS, REALTORS BREAKFAST FORUM, CITY HALL, 8:30 AM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY HALL, 7PM

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Barragan, Seconded by Council Member Ahmed to Adjourn the March
13, 2018 City Council Meeting at 7:45PM. Motion passed with Council Member Gaumnitz absent.
ATTEST:

APPROVED:

Joann McClendon, CMC, City Clerk

Mayor Dennis Haworth

Item 3.2

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

Meeting of: March 27, 2018
AGENDA SECTION:

Consent

SUBJECT:

Consideration of Monthly Financial Statements

PREPARED BY:

Rod Pruett, City Treasurer/Finance Director

ATTACHMENTS:

February 2018 Budget vs Actual and Balance Sheet

REVIEWED BY
ADMINISTRATOR

☒

REVIEWED BY
ATTORNEY

☒

REVIEWED BY
FINANCE

☒

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the February 2018 Financial Statements shown in the attachment.
BACKGROUND:
Staff provides Council with monthly financial information as an ongoing financial status update.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:
The monthly financial statements consist of a Budget vs Actual and a Balance Sheet for the General
Fund. The Budget vs Actual shows the current year Revenues and Expenses by Department in summary
form compared to the current year budget, as well as the prior year revenues and expenses compared to
budget for the same time period. This report presents year-to-date amounts. The Balance Sheet shows
the Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balance at the time the report is generated. This provides an overview of
cash, amounts owed to the City, amounts the City owes and the fund balance at a specific point in time.
The financial statements are being presented as an overview of the City’s finances and are not meant to
be a comprehensive in-depth review. As a reference to compare to the percentage columns in the report,
the percentage of the year that has expired is 67%
If there are questions regarding the actual amounts or budget vs actual variances, please forward your
questions to me in enough time before the meeting for staff to research them
FISCAL IMPACT:
Revenues
We received our 1st property tax and VLF distribution in January so we have a better idea of where our
revenues are at

General Admin- Preliminary mid-year budget review shows Property Tax and VLF tracking slightly above
budget but Sales Tax is coming in below budget by about $200k. The last 2 quarter reports from
MuniServices has shown a negative growth in sales tax as compared to last year so this projection is
reflective of that. This is the same notation made for January 2018 report.
General Services- This is revenue from the JCI Bonds to pay for project expenses. The revenue and
expense increases will be presented in the Mid-Year budget as an amendment
City Attorney- This is where the VLF settlement monies are budgeted and we received the once a year
payment in July
Police Net- Most of this revenue is from grants and reimbursement agreements that won’t get paid until
later in the fiscal year.
Police K-9- This is for the fundraiser dinner and that has not happened yet this fiscal year.
Fire- Revenue was increased in November for a transfer in from Impact Fees to cover additional
expenses on the fire engine. The transfer in has not happened yet
Parks and Facilities- This is mostly comprised of Overhead allocations from LLMD that have not occurred
yet.

Expenses
The city chose to pay all of the PERS unfunded liability portion for the year up front. This saved the city
approximately $25k and will cause many departments to be over the monthly average since the whole
year’s cost was incurred in July
General Services- We have $240k in savings from not needing to use $300k for the JCI project. The roof
replacement used $60k and the mid-year is requesting to use $50k for the sales tax add-on consultant.
The main increase is for JCI project related costs and a budget amendment will be present with the midyear
City Property Rents- We paid all the property taxes for the year plus we had railroad spur costs incurred
here. Revenues are at 87% as a reflection of recovering costs for the railroad spur as well.
Senior Services- PERS payment mentioned above
ALTERNATIVES:
Pull the item for further discussion
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL:
None

City of Chowchilla

City Council Monthly Financial Report

Page:

Period: 02/18

Prior Budget

Prior Actual

Percent

Current Budget

Current Actual

Difference

Percent

GENERAL FUND
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
Total Expenditure:

56,000.00

50,881.19

4%

18,000.00

5,446.10

12,553.90

30%

5,947,895.00

6,299,667.34

0%

6,315,560.00

3,091,237.45

3,224,322.55

49%

70,373.00

44,421.07

3%

84,052.00

32,845.05

51,206.95

39%

144,005.00

132,134.62

8%

194,042.00

103,783.72

90,258.28

53%

.00

91.01

0%

.00

317.51

Total Expenditure:

200,000.00

141,550.49

7%

180,000.00

106,334.30

73,665.70

59%

Total Revenue:

514,000.00

544,622.74

0%

554,667.00

511,701.67

42,965.33

92%

1,207,941.00

1,152,031.52

0%

890,377.50

2,796,135.72

1,905,758.22-

314%

.00

.00

0%

.00

2,496,457.83

2,496,457.83-

0%

458,125.00

433,547.54

6%

287,433.00

188,308.67

99,124.33

66%

.00

459.46

0%

.00

348.91

Total Revenue:
CITY COUNCIL
Total Expenditure:
CITY CLERK
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:

317.51-

0%

CITY ATTORNEY

GENERAL SERVICES
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:

348.91-

0%

CITY PROPERTY - RENTS
Total Expenditure:

39,190.00

35,882.32

0%

48,340.00

35,249.43

13,090.57

73%

117,960.00

111,963.24

6%

138,666.00

120,402.22

18,263.78

87%

654,350.00

646,838.28

6%

716,027.00

413,921.31

302,105.69

.00

4,495.81

0%

2,500.00

3,286.40

786.40-

131%

550.00

539.40

0%

550.00

539.40

10.60

98%

3,038,985.00

2,806,201.68

6%

2,970,777.00

1,944,798.13

1,025,978.87

65%

524,658.00

561,124.68

6%

354,225.00

293,936.43

60,288.57

83%

Total Expenditure:

193,055.00

61,022.85

0%

233,402.00

18,696.57

214,705.43

8%

Total Revenue:

157,300.00

61,022.85

11%

90,000.00

15,860.13

74,139.87

18%

295,227.00

206,640.14

4%

285,340.00

107,059.99

178,280.01

38%

15,000.00

34,513.88

5%

15,000.00

362.58

14,637.42

2%

Total Expenditure:

893,143.00

863,449.56

2%

389,880.00

236,724.06

153,155.94

61%

Total Revenue:

409,500.00

236,746.26

0%

5,819.00

226.06

5,592.94

4%

132,354.00

114,479.60

6%

211,564.00

74,519.13

137,044.87

8,800.00

11,937.59

4%

4,000.00

7,038.58

509,058.00

336,323.20

6%

542,740.00

256,323.98

8,700.00

7,829.15

19%

7,500.00

9,622.50

Total Expenditure:

235,424.00

173,953.79

10%

227,537.00

108,139.72

119,397.28

Total Revenue:

208,850.00

249,155.50

5%

210,500.00

323,626.58

113,126.58-

154%

36,219.00

33,421.75

7%

44,640.00

32,650.53

11,989.47

73%

9,050.00

125.73

0%

350.00

181.29

168.71

52%

347,229.00

330,132.43

5%

407,603.00

262,581.84

145,021.16

64%

61,697.00

61,975.53

0%

80,932.00

30,196.57

50,735.43

37%

Total Expenditure:

57,191.00

39,667.97

-9%

186,164.00

101,393.79

84,770.21

54%

Total Revenue:

16,300.00

9,605.58

1%

13,500.00

8,783.43

4,716.57

65%

Total Revenue:
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:

58%

PROPERTY TAXES
Total Expenditure:
POLICE - SWORN
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:
POLICE - NET

POLICE - K-9
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:
FIRE SERVICES

ANIMAL CONTROL
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:

3,038.58-

35%
176%

PLANNING & ZONING
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:

286,416.02
2,122.50-

47%
128%

BUILDING & CODE ENFORCEMENT
48%

SENIOR SERVICES
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:
PARKS AND FACILITIES
Total Expenditure:
Total Revenue:
COMMUNITY RELATIONS

GENERAL FUND Revenue Total:

1
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City of Chowchilla

City Council Monthly Financial Report

Page:

Period: 02/18

Prior Budget
7,999,710.00

Prior Actual

Percent

Current Budget

Current Actual

Difference

Percent

8,195,336.35

1%

7,793,219.00

6,913,586.14

879,632.86

89%

7,603,119.40

5%

7,918,468.50

6,825,451.44

1,093,017.06

86%

GENERAL FUND Expenditure Total:
8,568,419.00

2
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Net Total GENERAL FUND:

568,709.00-

592,216.95

57%

125,249.50-

88,134.70

213,384.20-

-70%

Net Grand Totals:

568,709.00-

592,216.95

59%

125,249.50-

88,134.70

213,384.20-

-70%

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
BALANCE SHEET
FEBRUARY 28, 2018
GENERAL FUND

ASSETS
100-0100-0000-0200-000

CASH - COMBINED FUND

100-0100-0000-0201-000

PETTY CASH

100-0100-0000-0201-001

CASH DRAWER

100-0100-0000-0202-000

PRE-PAID POSTAGE ACCOUNT

100-0100-0000-0209-000

CASH IN LAIF

100-0100-0000-0220-000

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-LEGAL

100-0100-0000-0221-000

A/R - ACCRUED REVENUES

100-0100-0000-0222-000

INTERGOVERNMENTAL A/R

100-0100-0000-0224-000

A/R MODULE ONLY RECEIVALBLE

100-0100-0000-0226-000

ADVANCE TO OTHER FUNDS

100-0100-0000-0227-000

LIENS RECEIVABLES GENERAL

100-0100-0000-0228-000

PENDING CHARGES OR REFUND

100-0100-0000-0229-000

A/R BUSINESS LICENSE

100-0100-0000-0232-000

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL

100-0100-0000-0260-000

NOTES RECEIVABLE-GENERAL

(

8,091,568.21)
200.00
2,000.00
170.61
11,160,136.07
287.03

(

461,132.35)
488,027.66
59,242.29
542,559.22
237,598.46

(

3,234.71)
55,638.63

(

395,000.00)
395,000.00

TOTAL ASSETS

3,989,924.70

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
100-0200-0000-0420-000

TRADE PAYABLES

100-0200-0000-0421-000

DEPOSITS ON HOLD

62,574.22

100-0200-0000-0421-001

BONDS FOR WORK-REFUNDAB

7,500.00

100-0200-0000-0465-000

UNCLAIMED PROP/STALE DATE

947.17

(

500.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

70,521.39

FUND EQUITY
100-0300-0000-0602-000

RESERVE FOR L/T A/R

100-0300-0000-0601-000

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALA
FUND BALANCE

100-0300-0000-0601-004

RESERVE FOR CONTINGENCIES

100-0300-0000-0601-005

DESIGNATED FOR PREPAID IT
REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE
BALANCE - CURRENT DATE

542,559.22

2,377,111.78
910,223.00
1,374.61
88,134.70
3,376,844.09

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

3,919,403.31

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3,989,924.70

Item 4.1

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

Meeting of: March 27, 2018

AGENDA SECTION:

Public Hearing

SUBJECT:

General Plan Amendment No. 2016-0016: Amendments to the 2016-2023
Housing Element Update

PREPARED BY:

Annalisa Perea, AICP, Contract Planner

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution, related to amendments to the GPA Application No. 16-0016
Exhibit A - 2016-2023 Housing Element Update – MAJOR REVISED PAGES
ONLY

REVIEWED BY
ADMINISTRATOR

☒

REVIEWED BY
ATTORNEY

☒

REVIEWED BY
FINANCE

☒

RECOMMENDATION:
The Chowchilla Planning Commission recommends that the City Council approve General Plan
Amendment No. 2016-0016: Amendments to the 2016-2023 Housing Element Update to bring the
document into compliance with State Law.
HISTORY / BACKGROUND:
The purpose of the Housing Element update is to identify the community's housing needs; to state the
community’s goals and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and conservation to
meet those needs; and to define the policies and programs that the community will implement to achieve
the stated goals and objectives. Housing Elements are required by State law to be updated every 4-8
years. The law acknowledges that, in order for the private market to adequately address housing needs
and demand, local governments must adopt land use plans and regulatory systems that provide
opportunities for, and do not unduly constrain, housing development. State law also requires cities and
counties to address the needs of all income groups in their Housing Elements.
The Housing Element was previously adopted by the Chowchilla City Council on April 11, 2017, and was
sent to the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for review. At the end of their 90day review period, it was determined that clarifications and further amendments were warranted to meet
State Housing law. HCD also advised that the City hold another public outreach meeting to continue the
dialogue between the City and the community in regards to housing needs. The amendments to the
document are required to be heard by the Planning Commission and to be adopted by the City Council.
HCD has provided the City with notice that if the City adopts the Housing Element, as amended to address
HCD’s concerns, HCD will certify the Housing Element. This will make the Housing Element consistent
with the City’s other General Plan elements, as required by law.
Below is a summary of key dates from the review process:

•

April 11, 2017 – Housing element adopted by the City Council (and subsequently sent to HCD for
review).

•

July 19, 2017 – City receives HCD’s comment letter back which stated that further amendments
would be required in order to be in compliance with State law.

•

September 5, 2017 – Public Workshop held as requested by HCD.

•

January 26, 2018 – City receives letter from HCD stating the amended document was acceptable.

•

February 21, 2018 –Heard by the Planning Commission at their regularly scheduled meeting where
they voted to recommend approval of the item to the City Council.

•

March 27, 2018 –Scheduled to be heard by the City Council.

HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE ANALYSIS:
The City of Chowchilla Planning Department initiated General Plan Amendment Application No. 16-0016
which, if approved, would replace the existing 2009-2014 Housing Element with the updated proposed
Housing Element (2016-2023) as part of the City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan. This is a city-wide
housing program and future development projects will be individually evaluated.
The Housing Element is one of eight state mandated elements that every general plan must contain. The
purpose of the Housing Element is to identify the community's housing needs; to state the community’s
goals and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and conservation; and to define the
policies and programs that the community will implement to achieve the stated goals and objectives.
During the preparation of the 2016-2023 Housing Element Update, the City solicited public input in
numerous ways, including advertising in newspaper ads, city newsletter clips, adding housing surveys
within utility bills, website outreach, social media outreach, and met with stakeholders, city departments
and advocacy organizations. Throughout the update process, revised drafts of the Housing Element were
made available at Chowchilla City Hall, on the City’s website, and links to download the document were
sent out to all stakeholders for review and further comment.
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ANALYSIS:
A Negative Declaration was prepared for the Housing Element Update in accordance with the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. This process included the distribution of
requests for comment from other responsible or affected agencies and interested organizations.
Preparation of the environmental document necessitated a thorough review of the proposed project and
relevant environmental issues and considered previously prepared environmental and technical studies
pertinent to the City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan (SCH # 2009022007) and Program Environmental
Impact Report (PEIR), certified on May 2, 2011.
The required public review period for the CEQA document was held from February 23, 2017 to March 15,
2017. No comments were received during the public review period. The amendments to the Housing
Element are covered under the existing CEQA document, therefore, the CEQA document is not required
to be amended or re-adopted.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the revised document would bring the City’s Housing Element into compliance with State
Housing Law and would allow the City to continue to pursue State housing grant money.
FISCAL IMPACT:
None. Adoption of the 2016-2023 Housing Element and certification of the document by HCD will qualify
the City to pursue granting opportunities to assist lower income residents with housing-related projects.
ALTERNATIVES:

If denied, the City’s Housing Element would remain out of conformance with State housing law and would
make the City ineligible to pursue State funding for new housing projects.
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL:
Following approval by the City Council, the revised Housing Element would be sent to HCD for final
certification.

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION # -18
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHOWCHILLA, CALIFORNIA,
APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION NO. 16-0016 (AMENDMENTS
TO THE 2016-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT)
WHEREAS, State of California Housing Element law was enacted in 1969 and requires jurisdictions
to prepare and adopt a Housing Element as part of its respective General Plan; and,
WHERAS, the purpose of the Housing Element is to identify the community's housing needs, to
state the community’s goals and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and
conservation to meet those needs, and to define the policies and programs that the community will
implement to achieve the stated goals and objectives; and,
WHEREAS, the Housing Element is one of eight state mandated elements that every general plan
must contain; and,
WHERAS, the City of Chowchilla initiated General Plan Amendment Application No. 16-0016,
proposing to incorporate the Housing Element (2016-2023) as part of the City of Chowchilla 2040 General
Plan; and,
WHEREAS, this is a city-wide housing program; and,
WHEREAS, during the preparation of the 2016-2023 Housing Element, the City solicited public
input in numerous ways including advertising in newspaper ads, city newsletter clips, adding surveys within
utility bills, website outreach, social media outreach, met with various stakeholders, city departments and
advocacy organizations; and,
WHEREAS, the Community and Economic Development Department issued a Notice of Intent to
Adopt a Negative Declaration on February 23, 2017, and received no comments during the public review
period; and,
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing to review this
proposal and recommended approval of the document; and,
WHEREAS, the Chowchilla City Council subsequently held a public hearing to review this proposal
and voted to adopt the document and the accompanied CEQA document at their April 11, 2017 meeting;
and,
WHEREAS, the adopted Housing Element was sent to the Department of Housing and Community
Development for review and upon completion of review, it was determined that further amendments would
be required to be made prior to certification, and those revisions were completed and acknowledged by
Department of Housing and Community Development; and,
WHEREAS, the amendments to the Housing Element are covered by the adopted Initial Study/
Negative Declaration which was prepared and previously adopted for this Project; and,
WHEREAS, the Chowchilla Planning Commission voted at their February 21, 2018 meeting to
unanimously recommend that the City Council approve this item;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chowchilla hereby finds and
determines the following:

1. The above recitals are true and correct;
2. That the Chowchilla City Council hereby finds and determines that there is no substantial
evidence in the record to indicate that the amended General Plan Amendment Application No.
16-0016 would have a significant effect on the environment as identified by, and evaluated
within the adopted Negative Declaration;
3. That the Chowchilla City Council following the public hearing hereby adopts the amended 20162023 Housing Element;
4. This resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chowchilla this 27th day of March, 2018 by
the following vote to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
APPROVED:

Dennis Haworth, Mayor
ATTEST:

Joann McClendon, CMC
City Clerk
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Housing Element
required square footage for the use to be considered. The conditions of the use permit
are specific to each use. Generally, the conditions are designed to make the housing for
the requested use and the surrounding uses compatible. For example, a residential use
for the disabled may provide comprehensive supportive services on site and the use
permit condition may require additional parking.
Table HE – 42
Zoning Districts and Allowable Uses
Land Use

MA

PO

C-1

C-2

C-3

R-1

R1-6

R1-7

R18

R-2

R-3

P

CUP

NA

NA

NA

NA

P

P
P

P

P

P

SINGLE FAMILY
Mobile homes (with foundation: does
not inc. factory-built manufactured
home)
Single-family housing (inc. mobile
w/foundation)

CUP

CUP

Single-family housing (no mobile
w/foundation)

CUP

CUP

Detached dwellings with no kitchen
(accessory or guest)

CUP

Second dwelling unit (accessory)

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

MULTI FAMILY
Two-family housing/duplexes
Multi-family housing

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

--

--

--

--

P

CUP

P*

CUP

CUP

CUP

`

--

--

--

P

P

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

NA

CUP

NA

SENIOR
Small family rest home, licensed, < 6
persons
Rest home, adult (>15 persons,
licensed)

CUP

FOSTER/GROUP/REST
Rest home, nursing home, family
care home, foster home, group
homes for those with disabilities (no
#)
Small family rest home, licensed, < 6
persons
Rest homes and convalescent
hospitals (over 15 residents) Same
as Group Home, or Guest Home,
Home for the Aged

P

CUP*

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

NA

CUP

CUP*

NA

CUP

ROOMING/SANITARIUM/HOTEL
Rooming/boarding
houses/lodginghouse (non transient)
5-15 persons

CUP*

CUP

CUP

Sanitarium (health station,
retreat/medical -not inc. mental
institution or drug rehab)

CUP*

CUP

CUP

Hotels/Motels

P

P

CUP

CUP

P

FAMILY DAY CARE

City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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Family day care <6 children
(nonmedical)+

CUP

CUP

P

P

P

P

P

P

Family day care >6 and <17 children
(nonmedical)+

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

CUP

NA

CUP

CUP

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

EMERGENCY/DRUG
REHAB/OTHER
Residential Drug Treatment
Recovery Homes

CUP*

Temporary emergency shelters
Emergency Shelters1

P

Housing1

Transitional/Supportive
Community Care Facility/Group
Home
Unlicensed or licensed (6 or fewer)
Licensed (7 or more)
P
CUP=Conditional Use Permit;
P= Permitted

CUP

CUP

Source: City of Chowchilla Zoning Ordinance

CUP* - in PO zone, allows "hospitals, sanitariums, rest homes, nursing homes, family care homes, foster homes, group
homes for mentally disordered or otherwise handicapped person, inc. state authorized homes. Does not restrict size
minimum or maximum; boarding homes/rooming houses do not exclude "transient." Also includes guest house.

As can be seen in Table HE – 42, multifamily housing in commercial districts require a
CUP. Facilities for children and adults, including seniors, typically require a CUP in both
the commercial and residential zoning districts. The City’s zoning ordinance will be
revised to allow these facilities to be considered as residential use, as required by law,
with no additional conditions applied. The City utilizes the California Uniform Building
Codes, that provide standards that apply to all residential projects, and are therefore, not
considered a constraint. These uses are considered in greater detail on pages 80 through
83.
In 2017, the City made a number of amendments to the zoning ordinance. This included
a change to the definition of Family, consistent with State Fair Housing law. Family is
defined as “an individual or a group living together who constitute a bona fide single-family
housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit, not including a fraternity, sorority, club, or other
group of persons occupying a hotel, lodging house or institution of any kind.”
DENSITY BONUS
In 2017, the City of Chowchilla adopted a density bonus in compliance with Government
Code Sections 6519 through 65918 to provide a density bonus of up to 35 percent. State
density bonus law (SDBL) provides a density bonus of up to 35 percent for rental
developments of five or more residential units which include a minimum five percent of
the units are affordable to very low income households, or a senior citizens housing
development.
The Density Bonus applicant shall agree to, and the city shall ensure, continued
affordability of all low and very low income units that qualified the applicant for the award
of the density bonus for 55 years or a longer period of time if required by the construction
City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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or mortgage financing assistance program, mortgage insurance program, or rental
subsidy program. Rents for the lower income density bonus units shall be set at an
affordable rent established by Section 50053 of California Health and Safety Code.
HE – 43
Affordable Rents Established by HUD, 2016
Program
Low HOME Rent
Limit
High HOME Rent
Limit
Fair Market Rent

Efficiency 1 BD

2 BD

3 BD

4 BD

5 BD

6 BD

$516

$533

$663

$766

$855

$943

$1,030

$671
$699

$704
$704

$867
$942

$994
$1,368

$1,089
$1,546

$1,182
$1,778

$1,277
$2,010

Source: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, April 2016.

An applicant shall agree to, and the City shall ensure that, the initial occupant of the
moderate-income units of the project are persons and families of moderate income, as
defined in HE – 43 and that the units are offered at an affordable housing cost
commensurate with the income. The City shall enforce an equity sharing agreement,
unless it is in conflict with the requirements of another public funding source or law. The
following apply to the equity sharing agreement:
1. Upon resale, the seller of the unit shall retain the value of any improvements, the
down payment, and the seller's proportionate share of appreciation. The City
shall recapture any initial subsidy, as defined (2) below, and its proportionate
share of appreciation, as defined in subparagraph (3).
2. The City’s initial subsidy shall be equal to the fair market value of the home at
the time of initial sale minus the initial sale price to the moderate-income
household, plus the amount of any down payment assistance or mortgage
assistance. If upon resale the market value is lower than the initial market value,
then the value at the time of the resale shall be used as the initial market value.
3. The City’s proportionate share of appreciation shall be equal to the ratio of the
City’s initial subsidy to the fair market value of the home at the time of initial sale.
The City may provide additional incentives for the developer, unless the City Council finds
that additional incentives are not necessary to make the proposed development
economically feasible.
ACESSORY OR SECONDARY DWELLING UNITS
One type of housing appropriate for lower-income persons is second dwelling units, now
referred to as “accessory dwelling units.” "Accessory dwelling unit" means an attached or
a detached residential dwelling unit which provides complete independent living facilities
for one or more persons. It includes permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating,
cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as that where the primary single-family
dwelling is situated. A second unit also includes attached or detached efficiency units, or
manufactured homes, as defined in Sections 17958.1 and 18007 of the Health and Safety
City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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Code.
Assembly Bill (AB) 1866 (Chapter 1062, Statutes of 2002), also known as the “second
unit law,” amended the California Government Code to facilitate the development of
second units. This amendment now requires localities to allow second units ministerially
without discretionary review or hearings. To be considered a ministerial review, the
process used to approve second units must “apply predictable, objective, fixed,
quantifiable and clear standards.” Applications for second units should not be subject to
onerous conditions of approval or public hearing process or public comment.
The zoning ordinance has been updated to comply with recent accessory dwelling unit
legislation. The Chowchilla City Council adopted Ordinance 482-17, bringing the City into
conformance with AB 1866, SB 1069 (Chapter 720, Statutes of 2016), AB 2299 (Chapter
735, Statues of 2016), and AB 2406 (Chapter 755, Statues of 2016).
The second unit law established maximum standards for second units on lots zoned for
residential use that contain existing single-family dwellings. No other standards can be
applied to the approval of second units than those listed in Section 65852.2(b) of the
Government Code, except the City may require that the primary structure be owneroccupied. The City may apply the following standards:
1. The unit is not intended for sale and may be rented;
2. The lot is zoned for single-family or multi-family use;
3. The lot contains an existing single-family dwelling;
4. The second unit is either attached to the existing dwelling and located within the
living area of the existing dwelling or detached from the existing dwelling and
located on the same lot as the existing dwelling;
5. The increased floor area of an attached second unit shall not exceed 30 percent
of the existing living area;
6. The total area of floor space for a detached second unit shall not exceed 1,200
square feet;
7. Requirements relating to height, setback, lot coverage, architectural review, site
plan review, fees, charges, and other zoning requirements generally applicable to
residential construction in the zone in which the property is located;
8. Local building code requirements which apply to detached dwellings, as
appropriate; and
9. Approval by the local health officer where a private sewage disposal system is
being used, if required.
City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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10. No other local ordinance, policy, or regulation shall be the basis for the denial of a
building permit or a use permit under this subdivision.
11. This subdivision establishes the maximum standards that local agencies shall use
to evaluate proposed second units on lots zoned for residential use which contain
an existing single-family dwelling. No additional standards, other than those
provided in this subdivision or subdivision (a), shall be utilized or imposed, except
that a local agency may require an applicant for a permit issued pursuant to this
subdivision to be an owner-occupant.
12. No changes in zoning ordinances or other ordinances or any changes in the
general plan shall be required to implement this subdivision. Any local agency may
amend its zoning ordinance or general plan to incorporate the policies, procedures,
or other provisions applicable to the creation of second units if these provisions
are consistent with the limitations of this subdivision.
13. A second unit which conforms to the requirements of this subdivision shall not be
considered to exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which it is located, and
shall be deemed to be a residential use which is consistent with the existing
general plan and zoning designations for the lot. The second units shall not be
considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit
residential growth.
14. A local agency may establish minimum and maximum unit size requirements for
both attached and detached second units. No minimum or maximum size for a
second unit, or size based upon a percentage of the existing dwelling, shall be
established by ordinance for either attached or detached dwellings which does not
permit at least an efficiency unit to be constructed in compliance with local
development standards.
15. Parking requirements for second units shall not exceed one parking space per unit
or per bedroom. Additional parking may be required provided that a finding is
made that the additional parking requirements are directly related to the use of the
second unit and are consistent with existing neighborhood standards applicable to
existing dwellings. Off-street parking shall be permitted in setback areas in
locations determined by the local agency or through tandem parking, unless
specific findings are made that parking in setback areas or tandem parking is not
feasible based upon specific site or regional topographical or fire and life safety
conditions, or that it is not permitted anywhere else in the jurisdiction.
16. Fees charged for the construction of second units shall be determined in
accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 66000).
MANUFACTURED HOUSING
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Manufactured housing, including modular housing, is built off-site and then transported to
the building site. The city’s zoning code defines “Manufactured home” “as structure that
was constructed on or after June 15, 1976, is transportable in one or more sections, is
eight body feet or more in width, or 40 body feet or more in length, in the traveling mode,
or, when erected on site, is three hundred twenty or more square feet, and is designed to
be used as a single-family dwelling when connected to the required utilities. These homes
can provide quality housing at a reasonable price. Manufactured homes, before 1976
known as mobile homes, are those meeting National Manufactured Home Construction
and Safety Standards. Mobile homes have not been manufactured since 1976, when the
(more stringent) federal preemptive HUD code became effective. Modular homes (also
called Factory-built homes), are constructed to comply with the California Uniform
Building Code (CBC): this is the same code with which all site built construction conforms.
State legislation allows manufactured homes on permanent foundations on any lot zoned
for site-built homes. Local governments may only impose architectural requirements on
the manufactured home itself which are limited to roof overhang, roofing material, and
siding materials, so long as the requirements, or any other lot development standards
imposed on the manufactured home installation, do not exceed those required for a
conventional home on the same lot. The same State level of entitlement indicated above,
that has been in effect for HUD code housing is now applied to California Building Code
(CBC) Modular Housing. Therefore, the use of manufactured homes in single-family
residential zones is constrained only by the ability to meet CBC requirements and other
site specific requirements (such as seismic structural package) as required for site built
homes. As a result, manufactured homes, as well as factory-built housing may now be
taxed as real estate and may be set on permanent foundations, in common with
conventional site-built housing.
California SB 1960 (1981) prohibited local jurisdictions from excluding manufactured
homes from all lots zoned for single-family dwellings; in other words, limiting the location
of these homes to mobile home parks is forbidden. However, SB 1960 does allow the
local jurisdiction to designate certain single-family lots for manufactured homes based on
compatibility for this type of use.
The City of Chowchilla Zoning Ordinance allows Manufactured homes in the R-1 and R2 zones by right, and in the C-1 and C-2 zones with a CUP; however, they must have
been manufactured no more than 10 years before the date of application for a building
permit for installation, and must meet certain site or architectural standards.
The City of Chowchilla Zoning Ordinance defines a “mobile home” under the older
definition, which does not include “factory built housing.” It allows a single family “mobile
home” with a foundation in the R-1-6 zone only, and pursuant to Section 18551 of the
Health and Safety Code. Zone T-P is a special district for mobile homes, allowed only
with a CUP. SB2 and CCR Section 65582.3 require that manufactured homes be
permitted by right in residential zones. The zoning ordinance will be revised to address
the terms “mobile home” and “manufactured home” as appropriate throughout, and to
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allow the use of manufactured (factory built) homes compliant with State requirements in
all residential zone districts as a by right use.
EMERGENCY SHELTERS
In effect since January 1, 2008, Senate Bill (SB) 2 (Cedillo, 2007) requires the City to
allow emergency shelters without any discretionary action in at least one zone that is
appropriate for permanent emergency shelters (i.e., with commercial uses compatible
with residential or light industrial zones in transition), regardless of its demonstrated need.
The goal of SB 2 was to ensure that local governments are sharing the responsibility of
providing opportunities for the development of emergency shelters.
To that end, the legislation also requires that the City demonstrate site capacity in the
zone identified to be appropriate for the development of emergency shelters. Within the
identified zone, only objective development and management standards may be applied,
given they are designed to encourage and facilitate the development of or conversion to
an emergency shelter. Those standards may include:
1) The maximum number of beds or persons permitted to be served nightly by the
facility;
2) Off-street parking based upon demonstrated need, provided that the standards
do not require more parking for emergency shelters than for other residential or
commercial uses within the same zone;
3) The size and location of exterior and interior on-site waiting and client intake
areas;
4) The provision of on-site management;
5) The proximity to other emergency shelters provided that emergency shelters are
not required to be more than 30 feet apart;
6) The length of stay;
7) Lighting; and
8) Security during hours that the emergency shelter is in operation.
In 2017, the City amended the Zoning Ordinance to allow emergency shelters as a byright use in the C-3 zone to accommodate the need for emergency shelters. The element
includes the identification of sites under consideration in order to complete the capacity
analysis for emergency shelters. Also see the discussion on land use and emergency
shelters, which describes the sites available in the C-3 zoning district that could be
considered for emergency shelters.
This C-3 zone district is well suited for the development of emergency shelters with its full
access to public transit and proposed proximity to services, such as grocery and retail
stores. Public transit opportunities included the Chowchilla Area Transit with connections
to Madera and Merced. The C-3 zone district permitted uses are also compatible to
emergency shelters, with social services, grocery stores, retail stores and medical offices
allowed nearby.
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Pertaining to emergency shelters, there are approximately 230 parcels within the C-3
zone district, where shelters are proposed to be allowed by right. The parcels are
predominantly located within close proximity (less than a ¼ mile) of Robertson Boulevard,
the main avenue through town, and access to infrastructure (sewer and water) and
transportation services is readily available. Approximately 60 parcels (26 percent) of the
C-3 zoned parcels are vacant and could be developed for emergency shelter uses. Of
these, 40 are less than 1 acre in size and 20 are between 1 and 2 acres in size.
Chowchilla must amend its Zoning Ordinance to provide for meeting and implementing
regulations and laws passed by the State. Because of other land use issues and needs,
the City is considering amending its Zoning Ordinance to include a Institutional (INST)
Classification which would include all parks, public buildings, corporation yards, fair
grounds, airport, wastewater treatment facility, County, and school district lands. This
zone would be consistent with the General Plan designation of Public Facility.
TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
“Supportive housing” is defined as housing with no limit of stay, that is occupied by the
target population, and that is linked on an onsite or offsite service that assists the
supportive housing resident in retaining the housing, improving his or her health status,
and maximizing his or her ability to live and, when possible, work in the community.
“Target population” means persons “with low incomes who have one or more disabilities,
including mental illness, HIV or AIDS, substance abuse, or other chronic health condition,
or individuals eligible for services provided pursuant to the Lanterman Developmental
Disabilities Services Act, and may include, among other populations, adults, emancipated
minors, families with children, elderly persons, young adults aging out of the foster care
system, individuals exiting from institutional settings, veterans, and homeless people.:
“Transitional housing” means buildings configured as rental housing developments, but
operated under program requirements that require the termination of assistance and
recirculating of the assisted unit to another eligible program recipient at a predetermined
future point in time that shall be no less than six (6) months from the beginning of the
assistance. It may be designated for a homeless individual or family transitioning to
permanent housing. This housing can take many structural forms such as group housing
and multi-family units and may include supportive services to allow individuals to gain
necessary life skills in support of independent living.
There are a variety of local families and persons in need of emergency, supportive, and
temporary shelter. This group includes the chronically homeless, those in need of
emergency shelter, those threatened with homelessness, and those needing transitional
housing.
SB2 Statutory Requirements: SB 2 requires that transitional and supportive housing
types be treated as residential uses and subject only to those restrictions that apply to
other residential uses of the same type in the same zone. Both transitional and supportive
housing types must be explicitly permitted in the municipal code.
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It should also be noted that SB2 is not limited to emergency and transitional housing. SB2
does not permit the imposition of such occupancy standards unless they are equally
applicable to other residential dwellings of the same type (e.g., single family home,
duplex, apartments) in the same zone district.
SB 745 took effect in January 2014. It amends Section 65582 of the Government Code
to replace prior health and Safety Code definitions of “supportive housing,” “target
population,” and “transitional housing” with definitions now more specific to housing
element law. Supportive housing was revised to remove the time limits of occupancy.
The City’s 2017 Zoning Code amendments defined “supportive housing,” “target
population,” and “transitional housing.” It also included as a permitted use, supportive
and transitional housing in the R-1, R-2, and R-3 zones. However, supportive housing
and transitional housing must be considered a permitted use in all zones where single
family dwellings are permitted. Although the City’s zoning permits single-family dwellings
in the C-1 and C-2 zones with a CUP, the amendments failed to include supportive and
transitional uses in these zones.
The municipal code will be revised to include the permitting of supportive and transitional
housing in all residential zones including the C-1 and C-2 commercial zones, subject only
to the restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type in the same
zone. This will be amended in the Municipal Code to be updated within twelve months of
the adoption of this Housing Element.
GROUP HOMES/REST HOMES AND SIMILAR FACILITIES
A number of terms are used by the City to mean group living accommodations for children
and adults. Some are for children over age six to age 18, some are for those with
developmental disabilities of various ages, and some are for seniors. Facilities offer
varying degrees of “care,” and may offer services for six or fewer people (small facilities),
or seven or greater people (large facilities).
Small Facilities
The City’s zoning ordinance has been amended throughout the years, but has not been
thoroughly updated to clear up inconsistencies in definitions and uses within various zone
districts. The zoning ordinance currently includes small family rest homes, family day
care, family care home, foster home, and residential care facilities. Small facilities also
include group homes and “group homes for those with disabilities” or elderly when they
care for six or fewer. Small family rest homes, residential care facilities, and group homes
must be licensed by the State, while family day care, and some other types of small group
living arrangements may not require licensing if they do not provide medical or support
services.
“Residential care facility” means a single-family dwelling, group care facility, or similar
facility licensed by the State of California for twenty-four (24) hour non-medical care of
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persons in need of personal services, supervision or assistance essential for sustaining
the activities of daily living or for the protection of the individual.
“Community Care Facilities” are defined as those facilities for developmentally disabled
children and adults: some provide limited care and supervision, while others provide more
intensive care and supervision for those with behavioral and/or physical disabilities.
These facilities must be licensed by the California Department of Social Services.
The State defines “Group Homes” as facilities for children only – usually children in foster
care. The care and supervision provided shall be nonmedical. Group homes serving six
or fewer residents must be treated like single-family homes or single dwelling units for
zoning purposes.
By law (Lanterman Development Disabilities Services Act) a State-authorized, certified or
licensed family home, foster home, or group home serving six or fewer disabled persons
or dependent and neglected children on a 24-hour-a-day basis is considered a residential
use that is to be permitted in all residential zones. Therefore, the Zoning Code must
include licensed “residential care limited” (six or fewer occupants) residents as a
permitted use in all residential zoning districts.
Unlicensed family day care facilities for fewer than seven are currently permitted in all
residential zones by right, and in commercial zones C-1 and C-2 with a CUP (the same
as single dwelling units). However, although the City’s current codes vary by type of
facility, several are currently permitted in residential zones only with a CUP (such as small
family rest homes). To be consistent with legal requirements, the City’s recent zoning
ordinance amendments did include a revision to permit licensed residential care facilities
by right in the R-1, R-2, and R-3 zones, however; it failed to include them in the C-1 and
C-2 zones where residential use is permitted.
The City will revise its zoning ordinance to utilize the standard definitions for various small
group facilities, and eliminate other outdated, undefined, or extraneous terms now in the
code. The City will revise its zoning ordinance (see Action 2.b) to allow licensed and
unlicensed facilities serving six or fewer people to be allowed in the same zones as singlefamily units, with the same considerations as other single dwelling units.
Large Facilities
The City’s zoning ordinance has several terms for facilities that provide care for seven or
greater residents, including children, those with disabilities, and seniors. These uses
include rest homes for 15 or greater persons, nursing homes, convalescent hospitals
(considered the same as group home, guest home, or home for the aged) for greater than
15 residents, and rooming/boarding houses for seven to 15 residents. The State
definition also includes group homes and community care facilities for seven or greater
residents.

City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan

Page HE-79

Housing Element
Community care facilities and large group homes are licensed facilities. These facilities
contain seven or greater units (large facilities) and may include, “nonambulatory”
residents or others who receive personal assistance (dressing, eating, bathing, etc.) or
assistance with medication. Large facilities are currently permitted in the MA, PO, and R3 zones, with a CUP required in the PO and R-3 zones. Large facilities may be subject
to a process to ensure that they are distributed within the community, and not clustered
in low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. Limiting the number of these facilities is
not considered a constraint, but rather, ensures that the facilities do not result in an undue
burden to low- and moderate-income neighborhoods.
Other facilities for seniors that do not provide medical services or care (i.e., senior living
or senior communities that do not offer personal or medical assistance) may not be
licensed. Housing in which some services are provided to persons with disabilities may
not require licensing. Supportive housing and independent living facilities with “community
living support services” generally do not need to be licensed. It is illegal for cities to
discriminate against facilities merely because they are unlicensed. This has been
interpreted to mean that ordinances cannot require greater regulation for unlicensed
homes with fewer services than for licensed homes providing more services.
Large facilities, such as rest homes, nursing homes, family care homes, foster homes,
group homes for those with disabilities and sanitariums are currently permitted in the PO
and C-1 and C-2 zones. Convalescent hospitals for over 15 residents are permitted by
right in the MA zone, and with a CUP in the PO and R-3 zoning districts. Sanitariums are
permitted in the PO, C-1, C-2, R-2 and R-3 zones with a CUP. Rooming houses are
permitted by right in the R-3 zone, and with a CUP in the PO, C-1 and C-2 zones.
State law does not have specific zoning restrictions for licensed or unlicensed facilities
for seven or greater residents other than those required by fair housing laws. Use permits,
restrictions on zones where these facilities are permitted, and adoption of parking and
other standards are sometimes used to restrict locations of large licensed and unlicensed
facilities. Typically, the requirement of a CUP for a facility of a size not found in a
residential area is not considered a violation of the Fair Housing Act. The City will review
the definitions, standards, and zoning requirements for large facilities (see Action 2.b) to
ensure they meet State and federal requirements2.
Large facilities may be subject to a process to ensure that they are distributed within the
community, and not clustered in low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The City will
review the zoning requirements for small and large facilities to ensure they meet State
and federal requirements.
Incorporated in the comprehensive changes to the zoning ordinances that are proposed
for 2018 would be development standards, defining terms including numbers of residents

2

Select California Laws Relating to Residential Recovery Facilities and Group Homes, State Bar of
California, Real Property Law Section, Fair Housing and Public Accommodations Section. 2011.
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(i.e., 7 to 15), and zoning districts where each use is permitted to be consistent with State
and federal law, as described in Action 2.b.
The City does not consider the number of parking spaces required for various senior
housing to be a constraint. Housing that provides professional care includes sufficient
parking for employees and visitors, as one space is required for every 2.5 beds. Rental
housing for seniors, intended for those who can live independently requires one parking
space for every three dwelling units. Table HE – 41 provides information on the
development standards required for each of the residential and commercial zoning
districts. These standards are not considered a constraint to lower income housing, or
housing for those with disabilities or seniors.
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
As part of a governmental constraints analysis, Housing Element law requires each
jurisdiction to analyze potential governmental constraints to the development,
improvement, and maintenance of housing for persons with disabilities, demonstrate local
efforts to remove any such constraints, and provide for reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities through programs that remove constraints.
There are a number of individuals who have one or more physical and/or developmental
disabilities, with varying needs. Some are capable of living on their own, or in small family
rest homes, where assistance with self-care, shopping, and visits to the doctor is
available. These individuals may need facilities with accommodations such as ramps
instead of stairs, wider hallways that accommodate wheelchairs and walkers, and
handrails in bathrooms, or aides for vision and hearing loss. The City does not have any
processes for individuals with disabilities to make requests for reasonable
accommodations with respect to zoning, permit processing, or building laws. However,
the City does allow residential retrofitting to increase the suitability of homes for persons
with disabilities in compliance with accessibility requirements. Such retrofitting is
permitted under Chapter 11, 1998 version of the California Code. Further, the City works
with applicants who need special accommodations in their homes to ensure that
application of building code requirements does not create a constraint.
Other individuals, including seniors, may need more intensive care or assistance,
including licensed persons who can administer medication. The City provides for a variety
of housing intended to care for the special needs of the disabled. The City permits small
family rest homes as State licensed facilities for six or fewer persons with a Conditional
Use permit in all residential zone districts except R-1-8 and R-3. It also allows rest homes
and convalescent hospitals (including group homes) for over 15 persons with a
Conditional Use permit in the PO and R-3 zone districts. Rest homes are defined as
those without medical support. For those needing greater assistance, a Sanitarium
includes retreats and other facilities providing medical support with a Conditional Use
Permit in the PO C-1 and C-2, and R-2 and R-3 zone districts. The City does not have
any spacing or concentration limitations on housing of persons with disabilities.
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Although the City does not have any local building requirements for disabled person
accessibility, the City does follow California’s accessibility laws which require the following
for multi-family residential developments:
• Multi-family developments containing 4-20 units require only that all of their
ground floor units are adaptable (interior modifications) and meet accessibility
requirements.
• Multi-family developments containing greater than 20 units require that 2 percent
of the total units are adaptable and the balance of the units are accessible.
• Single-family residential developments are exempt from accessibility
requirements, but accessibility features for a single-family home may be added at
the request of a homeowner.
It should also be noted that when any state or local agency is intending to sell surplus
land, the agency must provide a written offer to sell or lease the property for the purpose
of developing low- and moderate-income housing to any local public entity (as defined in
Section 50079 of the Health and Safety Code) that is located within the jurisdiction.
Priority must be given to development of the land to provide affordable housing for lower
income elderly or disabled persons or households, and other lower income households.
State law requires that when six or fewer persons live in a facility for the developmentally
disabled or a nursing home, it must be considered a residential use. The facility should
not be included within any type of home “which implies that the facility is a business run
for profit or differs in any other way from a single-family home.” However, the State also
wants to avoid an “overconcentration” of “intermediate care facilities/developmentally
disabled habilitative or disabled nursing, congregate living facilities,” that might impair the
integrity of a neighborhood, so that multiple facilities must be separated by at least 300
feet.
In compliance with GC 65583(5), the City must remove constraints or provide
accommodations for housing for persons with disabilities, including land use controls,
building codes and their enforcement, site improvements, fees and other exactions
required of developers, and local processing and permit procedures. These must be
allowed by right. The City’s current zoning requires a Conditional Use Permit for rest
homes, family care facilities, small family rest homes, family day care facilities for greater
than 6 children, and similar facilities that may be utilized by those with disabilities.
As noted above, housing such as group homes, that may be utilized by those with
disabilities currently require a Conditional Use Permit in both the residential and
commercial zoning districts. In addition to other considerations, the cost of a Conditional
Use Permit is $1,108. This requirement may be considered a constraint, and in most
cases do not meet the State regulations requiring that the facility be considered the same
as other residential use. Please see the discussion above, for Group Homes, Rest Homes
and Similar Facilities for the City’s planned amendments to the zoning ordinances under
Action 2.b. Parking requirements, described above, are not considered a constraint. The
City utilizes the California Uniform Building Codes which would not be considered a
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constraint. Construction of units for seniors and those with disabilities is subject to the
standard development fees (Table HE – 46) and planning fees (Table HE – 48) that other
residential development requires. Construction for these units that do not qualify for the
Neighborhood Infill Program’s fee waivers will pay approximately $20,268 per unit for
impact fees.
The City amended the Zoning Ordinance in April 2017. Amendments included the
provision of reasonable accommodation for housing for persons with disabilities. The City
established a written and administrative, reasonable-accommodation procedure in the
zoning code for providing exception for housing for persons with disabilities in zoning and
land use as a by right use, without a Conditional Use Permit or other restriction.
In 2018, the City will modify and/or allow administrative level deviations from setback
requirements and a reduction of parking spaces and maneuvering areas for disabled
persons. Other retrofit, maintenance, rehabilitation, improvements and developments, or
other form of accommodations for existing or new homes for special needs persons will
receive prioritized consideration and flexibility or relief from regular standards and will be
determined at an administrative level by the Director and/or Building Official.
HOUSING FOR EXTREMELY LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS
Assembly Bill 2634 (Lieber, 2006) requires the quantification and analysis of existing and
projected housing needs of extremely low-income households. As shown in Table HE14, in 2013, approximately 430 extremely low-income households resided in Chowchilla,
representing 10.5 percent of the total households (down from 12.7 percent in the last
planning period).
Extremely low income households typically comprise persons with special housing needs
including, but not limited to, persons experiencing homelessness or near-homelessness,
persons with substance abuse problems, and persons with mental illness or
developmental disabilities. The Institute for Local Government’s (ICG) Housing Resource
Center defines a Single Room Occupancy (SRO) as “a type of residential hotel offering
one-room units for long-term occupancy by one or two people and may have a kitchen or
bath facilities (but not both) in the room.”
The City does not explicitly define SROs in the Zoning Ordinance, but has defined
“boardinghouse” in the Zoning Ordinance (Section 18.06.118) as “a building containing a
single dwelling unit and provisions for five but not more than 15 guests, where lodging is
provided with or without meals for compensation, does not include rest homes.” The
City’s Zoning Ordinance currently allows boarding or rooming houses as a permitted use
in the R-3 zone, which is a high density residential zone. Additionally, the Zoning
Ordinance allows boarding houses in the C-1 and C-2, and PO Commercial Zones with
a Conditional Use Permit. The City will add the definition of SRO in the zoning ordinance,
include SRO use under “boardinghouse,” and consider removing the maximum of 15
persons as defined under “boardinghouse.”
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Quantifier:
Responsible
Department:

Development Agreement
City of Chowchilla Community and Economic
Development & Finance Departments

Action/Implementation Measure 2.b The City amended the Zoning
Ordinance in 2017 to be consistent with State law regarding density
bonuses, second units, and emergency, transitional, and supportive
housing. Although these ordinances were adopted under Ordinance
482-17 in April 2017, components of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment
did not meet State Density Bonus law, so that this item will be
addressed in the comprehensive zoning ordinance updates to occur in
2018.
The City will review, update, clarify, and amend as necessary, the
Zoning Ordinance at least annually for written consistency with State
law including density bonuses, second units (accessory units), small
and large group homes and facilities, emergency, transitional, and
supportive housing, lower income, disabled, seniors, and large family
and other special needs populations.
The 2017 Zoning Ordinance updates defined “Residential Care Facility”
and now allows group homes, residential care facilities, transitional and
supportive housing, and similar uses for six or fewer residents by right
as a family dwelling in the same zones as other residential uses in the
R-1, R-2 and R-3 zones, in accordance with State law. The Zoning
Ordinance update will review and revise the terms used to describe all
small group homes, and will clarify that small licensed and unlicensed
group homes will be treated the same for zoning purposes. Because
the amendment did not include allowing small group homes, residential
care facilities, transitional or supportive housing in the C-1 and C-2
zones where other single family units are permitted with a CUP, this will
be addressed in the comprehensive 2018 zoning ordinance updates.
The City will also review definitions (including number of beds/residents
permitted, such as a range of 7-15, standards, and zoning for large
group homes in the 2018 Zoning Ordinance update to ensure they meet
State and federal requirements, and do not constrain development.
Timeline:
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Density bonus, , residential care facilities, group
homes, and similar uses, and transitional, and
supportive housing zoning amendments will be
adopted by the Board within 12 months of
adoption of this Housing Element. (These
amendments are already under review by the
City)
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Timeline:

Funding Source:
Quantifier:

Responsible
Department:

All other zoning changes under Action 2.b,
including revised updates to Density Bonus text
to comply with State Density Bonus Law will be
completed within 12 months of adoption of this
Housing Element and annually thereafter
General Fund
Adoption by Council and subsequent annual
report of findings to Planning Commission
Council.
City of Chowchilla Community and Economic
Development Department

Action/Implementation Measure 2.c
The City of Chowchilla will
develop an informational flyer to be provided on the City’s website, a
list of regional area housing developers, and accomplish a mailing to
encourage developers to make application for USDA programs. The
City will log and track developers who have been notified of this funding
opportunity. The City will take Action/Implementation Measures
necessary to expedite processing and approvals for such projects that
include housing affordable to lower-income households and establish a
procedure to provide pre-application review of projects to expedite their
timely approval.
Timeline:

Funding Source:
Quantifier:
Responsible
Department:

Within 12 months of adoption of this housing
element and annually thereafter to Planning
Commission and 3 additional months to City
Council
General Fund or CDBG Technical Assistance
Developed flyer, developer list, report of mailing
results.
City of Chowchilla Finance Department

Action/Implementation Measure 2.d
The City of Chowchilla will
encourage innovation within the general guidelines of the City’s
community design standards, by the developers to all project
applications for greater assurance for the development of safe,
attractive, and functional residential neighborhoods. The City will
encourage attractive neighborhoods that include alternative
transportation and complete streets, encourage infill and a healthy
lifestyle, and are planned to be functional.
Timeline:
Funding Source:
Quantifier:
City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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Objective A:

Provide accommodation of housing suitable for all special
needs groups.

Policy 5.1 Ensure that new and redevelopment residential developments include
housing accessibility to all special needs populations including, but not
limited to, disabled, large families, overcrowded households, low- and
lower-income households, single parents, homeless, and farmworkers.

Action/Implementation Measure 5.a.
In compliance with GC
65583(5), the City must remove constraints or provide accommodations
for housing for persons with disabilities, including land use controls,
building codes and their enforcement, site improvements, fees and
other exactions required of developers, and local processing and permit
procedures. These must be allowed by right. The City will review its
Zoning Ordinances to ensure that definitions and uses for residential
facilities not providing medical services, such as group homes and
residential care facilities are allowed by right for those with disabilities.
Any references to “handicapped” will be removed or changed to
“disabled.”
The City will amend the Zoning Ordinance to provide reasonable
accommodation for housing for persons with disabilities. Amendments
will include, but not be limited to, construction of new or retrofitting
existing access ramps, handrails, and appliances. The City will also
modify and/or allow administrative level deviations from setback
requirements and a reduction of parking spaces and maneuvering
areas for disabled persons. Other retrofit, maintenance, rehabilitation,
improvements and developments, or other forms of improvements or
accommodations for to existing or new homes for special needs
persons will receive prioritized consideration and flexibility or relief from
regular standards and will be determined at an administrative level by
the Director and/or Building Official.
The City added a procedure for providing accomodations. The 2018
Zoning Ordinance will add, as a part of that process, brochures
describing accommodations. All necessary forms and applications will
be made available at the Building and Planning counter.
The City will require that all multi-family housing projects include at least
2 percent units that meet the needs of persons with physical conditions
which require special design considerations. The City will additionally
invoke all SB 520 requirements and provide reasonable
accommodation regarding residential development for disabled
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persons by expediting permits for any immediate needs of the disabled
population. All applicants will be so notified.

Timeline:

2018 - Amend the Zoning Ordinance within 12
months of the adoption of this Housing Element
update to comply with state law in the permitting
of licensed residential care facilities and group
homes.
Define amendments and require brochures be
provided describing accommodation; Remove
or revise “handicapped” terminology;
Require that all multi-family housing projects
include at least two percent units for those with
physical conditions requiring special design
considerations within 15 months of the adoption
of this Housing Element update

Funding Source:
Quantifier:

Not applicable
Amendments to adopted Zoning Ordinance
and Reasonable Accommodations Ordinance;
two percent of assisted development units
accessible to those with physical conditions;
and requirement to expedite permits for
immediate needs of disabled population.

Responsible
Department:

City of Chowchilla Community and Economic
Development

Action/Implementation Measure 5.b.
In conjunction with Action/
Implementation Measures 1.a, b, and c and Action/Implementation
Measures 2.a, b, and c, the City will additionally identify sites for varying
special needs populations (homeless, farmworkers, disabled, seniors)
and additional group home facilities. Developers will be contacted and
advised of the identified site for these uses.
The City will provide assistance as funds are available, estimated at
$500,000 to organizations seeking to develop or convert residential
buildings for use as group homes for persons with special needs which
prevent them from using conventional housing. Potential assistance to
be provided includes participation in applying for federal or state
funding, and/or waiving of certain fees or development standards. The
City will also include the sites inventory for special needs on the City’s
website.
Timeline:
City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan
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Funding Source:
Quantifier:

Timeline:
Responsible
Department:

special needs): 2017, 2018, 2021 and 2022
CDBG, LHTC, Proposition 46 programs
At least four applications during the planning
Period: minimum of one new group home
accommodating at least 6 persons, or one
conversion to a group home accommodating at
least 10 persons
(add sites inventory for special needs to City’s
Website) July 2017
City of Chowchilla Community and Economic
Development and Finance Departments

Action/Implementation Measure 5.c.
The City will provide
assistance to rental housing developments that contain at least 10
percent of three- and four-bedroom dwelling units affordable to lower
income households without overpayment. City staff will assist in
applying for available federal and/or State programs, as well as project
density bonuses at the amounts required under State law, fee cost
reduction, and/or fast track processing. Information on this program will
be included in the brochure developed and distributed under program
4.c.
Timeline:
Funding Source:
Quantifier:
Responsible
Department:

2017 and ongoing
General Funds
Annual report to Council of assisted units. Total
of 12 new three- or four-bedroom units
City of Chowchilla Finance Development

Action/Implementation Measure 5.d.
The City shall complete
and adopt guidelines for integrating affordable residential projects that
provide housing for lower-income, single working parent households
and child care services. The City shall pursue three federal and state
grant fund sources for child care services, and actively recruit
community-based non-profit and/or private for-profit organizations for
such services. The goal would be for $100,000 annually.
Timeline:
Funding Source:
Quantifier:
Responsible
Department:

City of Chowchilla 2040 General Plan

2017 for guideline completion; 2018 developer
recruitment
CDBG, HOME, Proposition 46 programs
Adopted guidelines, developer agreement, and
$100,000 annually for child care services
City of Chowchilla Community and Economic
Development
Page HE-119

Item 6.1

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

Meeting of: March 27, 2018
AGENDA SECTION:

New Business

SUBJECT:

Consideration of a Madera County Economic Development Commission’s
(MCEDC) 2018-2019 Budget

PREPARED BY:

Brian Haddix, City Administrator

ATTACHMENTS:

MCEDC Memo, Summary of Staff Time, EDC Projected Expenses

REVIEWED BY
ADMINISTRATOR

☒

REVIEWED BY
ATTORNEY

☒

REVIEWED BY
FINANCE

☒

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council direct staff regarding funding the 2018-2019 Budget for continued economic
development marketing services provided by the Madera County Economic Development Commission
(MCEDC) at the rate of $32,678.64.
BACKGROUND:
Bobby Kahn, MCEDC Executive Director, has submitted a memo the Council requesting 2018/2019 Basic
Level Budget Funding. The budget request for the City is $32,678.64; up by $425.06 from last year’s
request of $32,253.58.
The increase is attributed to anticipated operational expense increases, based on the California
Department of Finance’s most recent population data. As of May 1, 2017 the Department of Finance
reported the population of Chowchilla as 18,840; up by 293 from May 1, 2016. As stated in the Memo
provided, pursuant to the May 21, 1996 Tax Sharing Agreement between the County and Chowchilla, there
shall be an adjustment based on the prison population. As of May 1, 2017, the California Department of
Corrections and Rehabilitation reported the prison populations to be 6,506 (up by 124 from last year)
adjusting the Chowchilla population to 12,334, compared to last year’s total population of 12,165.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:
For continued marketing and promotion of vacant facilities and properties within the city to attract new
business and expand and retain current business.
FISCAL IMPACT:
To be included in the 2018-2019 EDBG Fund budget in the amount of $32,647.64.
ALTERNATIVES:
If not approved, the alternatives would be to do the work in-house alone or in conjunction with another.

Item 6.2

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

Meeting of: March 27, 2018
AGENDA SECTION:

New Business

SUBJECT:

Presentation of the City’s Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Financial Statement Audit

PREPARED BY:

Rod Pruett, City Treasurer/Finance Director

ATTACHMENTS:

PDF version of the Audit

REVIEWED BY
ADMINISTRATOR

☒

REVIEWED BY
ATTORNEY

☒

REVIEWED BY
FINANCE

☒

RECOMMENDATION:
Accept the FY 2016/2017 audit as presented.
BACKGROUND:
Annually, the City has a financial statement audit performed by an independent audit firm which is
presented to Council for acceptance.
The Final Draft version of the audit is attached and the Final version, with all signatures on reports, will
be presented at the meeting with official bound copies. Nothing will change numbers wise from the final
Draft to the Final version, just some signatures and cosmetics.
The FY 2016/2017 audit was performed by Price Paige & Company, Inc. Fausto Hinojosa, the Managing
Partner of Price Paige & Company, will be presenting the audit to Council.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:
The FY 16/17 audit has received a “clean”/ unmodified opinion, which is the best opinion you can
receive. There were no findings and minimal journal entries. Accepting the results means that Council
understands the results of the audit.
FISCAL IMPACT:
None
ALTERNATIVES:
Don’t accept the audit
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL:
Any journal entries proposed by the auditors will be uploaded to our system
The books for the FY 16/17 will be formally closed.

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
CALIFORNIA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
JUNE 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................ 1
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position ............................................................................................................. 5
Statement of Activities................................................................................................................... 6
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ....................................................................................... 10
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position .............................................................................................. 11
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ................................................................................... 12
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities ......................................... 13
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds .......................................................................... 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position – Proprietary Funds ............................................................................................. 15
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds ........................................................................... 16
Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary Funds.............................................................................. 18
Statement of Changes in Net Position – Fiduciary Funds .......................................................... 19
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ........................................................................................... 22
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual:
General Fund .............................................................................................................................. 60
CDBG Grants Special Revenue Fund ........................................................................................ 61
Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund ........................................................................................... 62
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information ........................................................................... 63
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability ............................................. 64
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Contributions ............................................................................................................... 65

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
JUNE 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Other Supplementary Information
Combining Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds Statements:
Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds ............................................... 68
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances – Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds .............................................................. 70
Combining Statement of Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ............................................... 72
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds .................................................................................... 73
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ............................................... 74
Combining Statement of Net Position – Internal Service Funds ....................................................... 75
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position – Internal Service Funds ............................................................................................ 76
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds ........................................................ 77
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities – Agency Funds ..................................................... 78
Other Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...................................................... 81
Findings and Questioned Costs
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .................................................................................... 84
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings....................................................................................... 85

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chowchilla, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chowchilla, California (the City) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Chowchilla, California, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information on pages 60-63, schedule of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 64, and
schedule of contributions on page 65 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26, 2018, on our
consideration of the City of Chowchilla, California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Clovis, California
March 26, 2018
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Notes receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Land held for resale
Internal balances
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation

$

9,840,934
443,812
251,240
1,691,647
21,805,832
40,593
104,000
73,412

Business-Type
Activities

$

4,359,138
11,508,617
2,547,580
8,021
120,634
(73,412)

Total

$

14,200,072
11,952,429
2,798,820
1,699,668
21,805,832
161,227
104,000
-

1,411,555
15,206,742

4,837,800
10,199,721

6,249,355
25,406,463

50,869,767

33,508,099

84,377,866

839,417
1,663,812

145,149
315,501

984,566
1,979,313

2,503,229

460,650

2,963,879

630,487
141,384
4,594
1,715,099
22,024

4,098,654
169,783
17,173
9,096

4,729,141
141,384
174,377
1,732,272
31,120

Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

8,016,947
517,532
14,988,716

1,566,180
85,000
14,119,269

9,583,127
602,532
29,107,985

Total liabilities

26,036,783

20,065,155

46,101,938

348,857

61,050

409,907

348,857

61,050

409,907

11,800,115

14,034,371

25,834,486

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deposits
Accrued interest
Unearned revenues

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Highway and streets
Community development
Transit
Construction projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

3,146,921
22,676,293
41,698
3,237,852
(13,915,523)
$

26,987,356

(191,827)
$

13,842,544

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,146,921
22,676,293
41,698
3,237,852
(14,107,350)
$

40,829,900

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Charges for
Services

Expenses
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Community development
Interest and fiscal charges
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Water
Solid waste
Sewer
Airport
Storm drain
Total business-type activities
Total

$

795,499
3,226,534
1,570,114
465,278
856,389
570,097

$

473,496
166,386
423,885
855
260,348
-

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Contributions
Contributions

$

23,934
321,024
1,071,893
5,000
1,456
-

$

703,973
45,722
-

7,483,911

1,324,970

1,423,307

749,695

3,367,004
1,211,317
1,560,135
22,778
47,953

2,124,416
1,364,649
1,399,441
19,586
209,499

5,027
10,000
-

983,310
-

6,209,187

5,117,591

15,027

983,310

$ 13,693,098

$

6,442,561

$

1,438,334

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Transient lodging
Franchises
Documentary stamp
Motor vehicle in lieu - unrestricted
Investment earnings
Rental income
Legal settlement
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year, as restated
Net position, end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

1,733,005

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$

$

(298,069)
(2,739,124)
629,637
(413,701)
(594,585)
(570,097)
(3,985,939)

$

-

(298,069)
(2,739,124)
629,637
(413,701)
(594,585)
(570,097)
(3,985,939)

-

(259,278)
158,359
(160,694)
6,808
161,546

(259,278)
158,359
(160,694)
6,808
161,546

-

(93,259)

(93,259)

(93,259)

(4,079,198)

(3,985,939)

$

-

Total

876,448
1,380,035
306,259
245,167
35,739
1,948,930
497,607
107,470
544,623
144,211
(1,408,258)

8,724
18,392
12,100
1,408,258

885,172
1,380,035
306,259
245,167
35,739
1,948,930
515,999
107,470
544,623
156,311
-

4,678,231

1,447,474

6,125,705

692,292

1,354,215

2,046,507

26,295,064

12,488,329

38,783,393

26,987,356

$

13,842,544

$

40,829,900

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Special Revenue
CDBG
Grants

General
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Notes receivable, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Land held for resale
Advances to other funds
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits
Unearned revenues
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds

Impact
Fees

Debt
Service

Capital
Projects

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

2,040,204
239,505
488,028
836,269
1,375
542,559

$

545,706
3,700
20,156,552
-

$ 3,802,426
-

$

443,812
-

$

11,163
487,531
-

$ 3,325,540
572
712,388
1,649,280
104,000
-

$

9,713,876
443,812
251,240
1,691,647
21,805,832
836,269
1,375
104,000
542,559

$

4,147,940

$ 20,705,958

$ 3,802,426

$

443,812

$

498,694

$ 5,791,780

$

35,390,610

$

312,176
4,500
-

$

$

$

-

$

355
498,330
-

$

$

607,324
4,594
22,024
836,269
542,559

1,296
-

22,024
542,559

293,497
94
337,939
-

316,676

1,296

564,583

-

498,685

631,530

2,012,770

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

-

20,156,552

-

-

-

2,341,842

22,498,394

Total deferred inflows of resources

-

20,156,552

-

-

-

2,341,842

22,498,394

1,375
542,559

-

-

-

-

-

1,375
542,559

-

548,110
-

3,237,843
-

443,812

9
-

2,801,944
322,351
-

2,801,944
870,461
3,237,852
443,812

910,223
119,065

-

-

-

-

-

910,223
119,065

52,116
58,407
2,882
144,735
1,999,902

-

-

-

-

3,831,264

548,110

3,237,843

443,812

9

2,818,408

4,147,940

$ 20,705,958

$ 3,802,426

498,694

$ 5,791,780

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses
Advances to other funds
Restricted for:
Highway and streets
Community development
Construction projects
Debt service
Committed to:
Emergency contingency
Subsequent fiscal year budget deficit
Assigned to:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Community development
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

$

$

443,812

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(305,887)

52,116
58,407
2,882
144,735
1,694,015
10,879,446

$

35,390,610

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:
Total fund balances - governmental funds

$

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

10,879,446

16,604,401

Pension related deferrals are reported as derferred outflows of resources on the
statement of net position:
Contributions to the pension plan subsequent to the measurement date
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

781,162
1,542,585
(325,611)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds. Those liabilities consist of:
Bonds and loans payable
Net pension liability

(15,175,209)
(7,396,681)

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require the use of current financial
resources. Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in the
governmental funds balance sheet.

(1,715,099)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

22,498,394

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net position.
Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(706,032)
$

26,987,356

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Special Revenue
CDBG
Grants

General
REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and penalties
Intergovernmental revenues
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Loan repayments
Legal settlement
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from bonds issuance
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

$

2,981,041
630,140
78,536
2,308,044
126,779
121,231
544,623
136,400

$

Impact
Fees

70,115
2,036
3,700
-

$

Debt
Service

19,834
156,690
25,785

$

Capital
Projects

163
-

$

552,618
11,163

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$

4,450
894,716
8,536
359,812
51,935
16,390

2,981,041
634,590
78,536
3,825,493
157,348
641,433
51,935
544,623
189,738

6,926,794

75,851

202,309

163

563,781

1,335,839

9,104,737

746,830
3,383,451
319,547
510,276
703,741

22,139
-

121,073

-

528,513

941,884
91,472
12,131

746,830
3,383,451
941,884
319,547
623,887
1,365,458

-

-

-

1,550,754
246,796
29,400
7,479

-

157,500
1,453
-

1,708,254
248,249
29,400
7,479

5,663,845

22,139

121,073

1,834,429

528,513

1,204,440

9,374,439

1,262,949

53,712

81,236

(1,834,266)

35,268

131,399

368,390
(1,038,868)
-

89,921
-

(1,597,701)
-

1,158,634
1,120,000

124,268
(112,070)
-

495,144
(895,976)
-

2,236,357
(3,644,615)
1,120,000

(670,478)

89,921

(1,597,701)

2,278,634

12,198

(400,832)

(288,258)

592,471

143,633

(1,516,465)

444,368

47,466

(269,433)

(557,960)

3,238,793

404,477

4,754,308

3,831,264

$

548,110

$

3,237,843

(556)
$

443,812

4,021,492
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

(269,702)

3,087,841

15,506,355

2,818,408

$ 10,879,446

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

(557,960)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of these assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. In the current
period, these amounts are:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

1,226,210
(797,554)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales and donations) is to increase (decrease) net position.

(203,706)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayment of the principal of long-term debt
Amortization on bond discounts

(1,120,000)
1,708,254
(7,322)

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities, but does not require the use of current financial
resources. This amount represents the change in accrued interest payable
not reported in governmental funds.

(280,633)

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
298,170
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

1,045,623

Prior year unavailable revenues previously recognized in the statement of
activities were recognized in the governmental funds in the current fiscal year
when made available.

(594,051)

The net revenue of certain activities of the internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities.

(24,739)

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

692,292

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Other
Solid
Enterprise
Waste
Sewer
Funds

Water
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Prepaid bond insurance

$

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deposits
Accrued interest
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Long-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

1,835,902
8,380,111
2,238,224
81,376

$

$

$

910,785
3,128,506
170,113
36,925

$ 1,456,704
23,878
8,021
2,333

$

4,359,138
11,508,617
2,547,580
8,021
120,634

$

127,058
39,218

12,535,613

271,112

4,246,329

1,490,936

18,543,990

166,276

2,187,303
5,819,886

-

2,043,338
4,096,378

607,159
283,457

4,837,800
10,199,721

13,896

8,007,189

-

6,139,716

890,616

15,037,521

13,896

20,542,802

271,112

10,386,045

2,381,552

33,581,511

180,172

75,487
157,211

4,467

60,079
128,970

9,583
24,853

145,149
315,501

58,255
121,227

232,698

4,467

189,049

34,436

460,650

179,482

3,200,726
169,783
7,005
65,000

136,699
-

761,017
10,168
20,000

212
9,096
-

4,098,654
169,783
17,173
9,096
85,000

24,619
139,928
241,054
-

3,442,514

136,699

791,185

9,308

4,379,706

405,601

811,984
10,722,438

-

650,444
3,396,831

103,752
-

1,566,180
14,119,269

89,985
620,266
-

11,534,422

-

4,047,275

103,752

15,685,449

710,251

14,976,936

136,699

4,838,460

113,060

20,065,155

1,115,852

30,769

590

25,245

4,446

61,050

23,246

30,769

590

25,245

4,446

61,050

23,246

7,292,364
(1,524,569)

Total net position (deficit)

155,747
115,365
-

Total

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Funds

5,767,795

138,290
$

138,290

5,851,391
(140,002)
$

5,711,389

890,616
1,407,866
$ 2,298,482

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance
for the net effect of the activity between the internal
service funds and the enterprise funds over time
Net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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14,034,371
(118,415)
13,915,956

(73,412)
$ 13,842,544

13,896
(793,340)
$

(779,444)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Other
Solid
Enterprise
Waste
Sewer
Funds

Water
Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials, supplies and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

2,124,416
7,177

$

1,364,649
65,605

$

1,399,441
2,550

$

229,085
1,427

Total

$

5,117,591
76,759

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Funds

$

682,456
296

2,131,593

1,430,254

1,401,991

230,512

5,194,350

682,752

574,933
2,233,933
249,224

1,275,976
-

511,463
694,993
167,280

25,850
23,849
21,032

1,112,246
4,228,751
437,536

476,443
234,409
1,117

3,058,090

1,275,976

1,373,736

70,731

5,778,533

711,969

28,255

159,781

(584,183)

Operating income (loss)

(926,497)

154,278

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Taxes
Grants
Interest expense
Bond issuance costs

7,076
(15,973)
(293,494)

1,330
5,027
-

4,031
(13,100)
(171,258)

5,955
8,724
10,000
-

18,392
8,724
15,027
(29,073)
(464,752)

4
-

(302,391)

6,357

(180,327)

24,679

(451,682)

4

(1,228,888)

160,635

(152,072)

184,460

(1,035,865)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before capital contributions and
transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers in

983,310
128,790
(116,788)

Change in net position

$

5,767,795

-

160,635

5,884,583

Net position (deficit), beginning of year
Net position (deficit), end of year

-

(152,072)

(22,345)
$

138,290

5,863,461
$

5,711,389

1,279,468

983,310
1,408,258

1,463,928

1,355,703

(29,217)

(29,213)
(29,213)

834,554
$

(750,231)

2,298,482

$

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity
between the internal service funds and the enterprise funds
Changes in net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(1,488)
$

1,354,215

(779,444)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer

$ 1,358,426
(1,221,679)
(64,659)
65,605

$ 1,364,227
(714,707)
(446,126)
2,550

Water
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to or received from employees
Other operating revenues

$

2,127,959
(213,192)
(448,515)
7,177

Other
Enterprise
Funds

Solid
Waste

1,473,429

137,693

205,944

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Grants received
Transfer from other funds
Loans from other funds
Taxes received

128,790
-

5,027
-

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities

128,790

5,027

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

Internal
Service
Funds

Total

223,752
(29,558)
(73,047)
1,427

$

5,074,364
(2,179,136)
(1,032,347)
76,759

$

682,456
(215,899)
(375,160)
296

122,574

1,939,640

91,693

-

10,000
1,279,468
(35,748)
703

15,027
1,408,258
(35,748)
703

(62,248)
-

-

1,254,423

1,388,240

(62,248)

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal paid
Interest paid
Bond issuance costs

8,416,170
(65,058)
(16,252)
(293,494)

-

3,337,029
(15,198)
(3,971)
(171,258)

-

11,753,199
(80,256)
(20,223)
(464,752)

-

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities

8,041,366

-

3,146,602

-

11,187,968

-

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Rents received

7,076
-

1,330
-

4,031
-

5,955

12,437
5,955

4
-

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

7,076

1,330

4,031

5,955

18,392

4

9,650,661

144,050

3,356,577

1,382,952

14,534,240

29,449

564,522

11,697

682,714

73,752

1,332,685

97,609

155,747

$ 4,039,291

$ 1,456,704

$ 15,866,925

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 10,215,183

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

127,058

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(Continued)

Water

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Other
Solid
Enterprise
Waste
Sewer
Funds

Total

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
Funds

(584,183)

$

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Deposits
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources from pension

$

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

1,473,429

$

137,693

$

205,944

$

122,574

$

1,939,640

$

91,693

$

983,310

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Schedule of Non-Cash Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Contributions of capital assets

(926,497)

$

249,224

154,278

$

-

28,255

$

159,781

$

(29,217)

167,280

21,031

437,535

1,117

(6,853)
(81,376)
(108,031)

(6,223)
10,251

(35,214)
(36,925)
(79,369)

(5,332)
(3,116)

(53,622)
(118,301)
(180,265)

555
3,738
(79,703)

2,102,117
10,396
252,396
(17,947)

54,297
(69,197)
(5,713)

17,211
161,987
(17,281)

(5,709)
(36,331)
(7,750)

2,167,916
10,396
308,855
(48,691)

19,407
35,698
157,164
(17,066)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Successor
Agency Trust
Funds

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments (in City investment pool)
Restricted cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable (net)
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid bond insurance
Land held for resale
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Long-term debt due within one year
Long-term debt due in more than one year
Agency obligations
Total liabilities

$

1,779,523
3,568,504
40,502
-

$

-

153,587
7,340
43,750
20,003
56,202
338,000
256,903
1,360,554

$

5,388,529

$

2,236,339

$

5,388,529

$

32
74,647
260,000
6,173,508
-

$

5,388,529

NET POSITION
Held in trust for Successor Agency activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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6,508,187

$

(4,271,848)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION – FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Successor
Agency Trust
Fund
ADDITIONS
Taxes
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

$

769,499

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expenses
Interest
Depreciation
Bond issuance costs
(Gain) loss on sale of assets

253,501
252,976
29,002
253,079
15,126
803,684

Total deductions
Change in net position

(34,185)
(4,237,663)

Net position, beginning of year, restated
Net position (deficit), ending of year

767,992
1,379
128

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(4,271,848)
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The City of Chowchilla (City) was incorporated on February 7, 1923, as a municipal corporation under the
General Laws of the State of California. The City operates as a self-governing local government unit within the
State of California. A five-member City Council appoints a City Administrator who administers the daily affairs
under the policy guidance of the City Council. The City has limited authority to levy taxes and has the authority
to determine user fees for the services that it provides. Voters elect a City Council that passes laws and
determines broad policies. The City Council also oversees the operations of the City and approves all budgets,
fund transfers, and fund balance reserves. Services provided by the City include public safety, streets and
roads, water, sanitation, public improvements, culture and recreation, parks, building inspections, planning and
zoning, redevelopment, and general administration.
Blended Component Units
A primary government is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on the organization, or if there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary
government. A primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent
on the primary government regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing board, a
governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board, and there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary
government. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief description of each component
unit included within the City’s reporting entity. All such component units have been “blended” as though they
are part of the primary government because the component unit’s governing body is substantially the same as
the City’s primary government and there is a financial benefit or burden relationship between the City and the
component unit, management of the City has operational responsibilities for the component unit, and/or the
component units provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the City or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, benefits the City, even though it does not provide services directly to it, or the City is entirely or
almost entirely responsible for the repayment of the debt of the component unit. Financial information for these
component units can be obtained from the City’s Administrative Services Department and from the City’s
website at http://ci.chowchilla.ca.us.
The Public Financing Authority (Authority) of the City of Chowchilla was formed on August 14, 1989, for the
purpose of assisting the City in the financing of the acquisition, construction and installation of public capital
improvements for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the citizens served by the City. The City Council serves as
the governing board of the Authority and, therefore, is financially accountable for the operations of the Authority.
The Chowchilla Housing Authority (Housing Authority) was established on January 24, 2012. The Housing
Authority was activated pursuant to State Law Section 34240 of the California Health and Safety Code, which
allows for every City to establish a housing authority. The Housing Authority is designed to protect local housing
funds and programs, provide new revenue opportunities for affordable housing programs, serve the public
interest, promote public safety and welfare, and ensure decent, safe sanitary and affordable housing
accommodations to persons of low income.
Since the City Council serves as the governing body of these entities, they are considered blended component
units. As a result, the financial activities of these entities are integrally related to those of the City and are
“blended” with those of the City.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended
purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expense and program revenues for each
different identifiable activity of the City’s business-type activities and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore,
are included in the program expense reported for individual function. Certain indirect costs, which cannot be
identified and broken down, are included in the program expense reported for individual functions and activities.
Program revenues include: 1) fines, fees, and charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by
the programs; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented instead as general revenues.
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund activities,
payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated except
those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are
presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of
Activities those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The
following interfund activities have been eliminated: due to/due from other funds, interfund advances to/advances
from, and transfers in/transfers out.
Fund Financial Statements – The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds. Separate
statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. An
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in funds and changes in fund
balances as presented in these statements to the net position and changes in net position presented in the
government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City except
for those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund accounts for the revenues received by the
various CDBG grants, the uses of those funds (i.e., grants and loans for housing rehabilitation projects), as well
as the receipt and re-use of program income generated by the repayment of CDBG loans.
The Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources from developers for the
expected future capital costs of the City as a result of development. Impact fees collected are restricted for the
use of general, police, fire and parks facilities; and streets and roads, signalization, water, sewer and storm drain
capital projects.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
for the payment of principal and interest on long-term obligations of governmental funds.
The Capital Project Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of the City’s major capital projects, other
than those financed by proprietary funds.
Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and non-major fund.
The City has five enterprise funds – water, solid waste, sewer, storm drain and airport. These funds are used to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise. In an
enterprise fund, the intent of the City Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services
to the general public, on a continuing basis, be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
The City reports the following major enterprise funds:
The Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the provision of water to the residents of the City. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration,
operations, distribution, maintenance, and debt service.
The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses for operation and maintenance of
the solid waste system.
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the provision of wastewater collection and treatment services to the
residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including,
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, and debt service.
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
Internal Service Funds:
The Fleet Management Internal Service Fund accounts for the costs associated with maintaining the citywide
fleet of vehicles and rolling stock heavy equipment. Charges are assessed to each department on the basis of
time/materials necessary to maintain their equipment.
The Information Technology Internal Service Fund accounts for the costs of providing computer and
information services. User charges are recovered from other City departments that utilized the services provided.
The Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund accounts for compensated absences and other employee
benefits that are provided by the City.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Fiduciary Funds:
The Agency Fund accounts for assets held by the City as a trustee or as an agent for special districts.
The Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency accounts for assets and liabilities of the former
redevelopment agency until they are distributed to other units of state and local government as a result of the
dissolution of the redevelopment agency.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
Government-Wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements – The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales taxes are recognized when the underlying transactions take
place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements – Governmental funds are reported using current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Property and sales taxes, interest, and
charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting
period so as to be both measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
claims and judgments and compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital
assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues,
such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of each
fund. Nonoperating revenues, such as interest income, state and federal grants and subsidies, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses include costs for providing services and
delivering goods such as administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flow, the City considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and Investments
The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for all funds. Each fund-type balance in the pool
is reflected on the combined balance sheet as cash and investments. The City apportions interest earnings to all
funds based on their quarterly cash balances.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances
Cash and Investments (Continued)
The City pools cash and investments with the City Treasurer except for investments managed by fiscal agents
under bonded debt agreements. Interest from bank accounts and investments are allocated quarterly to the
various funds based on the fund’s contribution to the pool. The City has stated investments at fair value in the
statement of net position and balance sheet. The fair value of investments is based on published market prices
and quotations from major investment brokers.
Cash and investments with fiscal agent represents funds held by various trustees from proceeds of the issuance
of bonds in order to establish required reserve funds and to pay bond issuance costs per the respective trust
agreements.
Credit Risk: The City’s investment policy limits certain types of investments to various ratings.
Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The City has a deposit policy for custodial risk that requires collateralization
on certificates of deposit and repurchase (and reverse) agreements. In addition, the City maintains custodial
agreements with certain independent third parties.
Concentration of Credit Risk: The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.
Interest Rate Risk: Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 10 years if the maturity of such
investments is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.
Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the general obligation debt and enterprise debt are classified as restricted assets on the
balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants. “Restricted cash and investments” is
used to report resources set aside for potential deficiencies in the repayment ability of the debt service fund and
for payment of construction projects undertaken by the City.
Land Held for Resale
Land held for resale is recorded in the Low and Moderate Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund. Land held for
resale is valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.
Internal Balances
Interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided or used, or reimbursements or transfers. Loans
reported as receivables and payables, as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are
referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from
other funds” (i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the fund financial statements, and are
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available
for appropriation and are not available financial resources.
Services provided or used, deemed to be at market or near
expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one
benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.
transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds
government-wide presentation.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)
Notes Receivable
The City engages in programs designed to encourage construction or improvement of housing for persons with
low to moderate income and also to encourage business development. Under these programs, grants or loans
are provided under favorable terms to homeowners or developers who agree to spend these funds in accordance
with the City’s terms. For financial statement purposes, the City has established an estimated allowance for
potentially uncollectible loans. The balance of notes receivable includes loans that may be forgiven if certain
terms and conditions of the loans are met.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include public domain (infrastructure) capital assets consisting of certain improvements,
including streets (pavements, medians, curbs/gutters, sidewalks, traffic signals, monument signs and bridges),
storm drains and water/sewer systems and improvements, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements.
Generally, capital asset acquisitions in excess of $5,000 (general capital assets) and $30,000 (infrastructure)
are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of one year or more. Acquisitions of capital assets (including
infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost at the time of purchase. Donated capital assets are recorded at
their fair value at the date of donation.
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Land Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery, Equipment, and Vehicles
Infrastructure

20-50 years
20-50 years
6-10 years
20-100 years

Compensated Absences
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused leave time.
Permanent employees earn from 12 to 30 vacation days per year depending upon their length of employment.
Accumulated vacation days can be carried forward up to 2 years. Each year, by September 30, certain
employees may request to receive a cash payment for the value of all or a portion of their accumulated vacation
leave. Upon termination or retirement, employees are compensated for the value of accrued vacation leave.
For full-time employees, sick leave is accumulated at the rate of 12 days per year up to a maximum of 250 days.
Employees may convert 25% of unused sick leave to vacation time during a fiscal year up to the limit of the
employee’s maximum vacation accrual level. Upon retirement, employees may also convert a portion of their
unused sick leave into service credit through the California Public Employees Retirement System.
The vacation and sick leave balances, along with compensatory leave and holiday hours are reflected in the
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund in the Statement of Net Position.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)
Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, longterm debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net
of the applicable bond premium or discounts. Bond issuance costs are expensed immediately.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Pensions
In government-wide financial statements, pensions are recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of
accounting (see Note 9 and the RSI section immediately following the notes to financial statements), regardless
of the amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City
recognizes a net pension liability for the qualified pension plan in which it participates, which represents the
excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the qualified pension plan, measured as the
City’s proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Changes in the net
pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows of resources or
deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred. Those changes in
net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources that
arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual
experience are amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants including retirees,
in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the
period in which they arose. Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a
component of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as
deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension
expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred.
Interest Payable
In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable on long-term debt is recognized as a liability
when incurred and is not recognized in the governmental funds financial statements.
Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue is that for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition
criteria have not been met. The City typically records intergovernmental revenues (primary grants and
subventions) received but not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred).
Unavailable Revenue
In the governmental fund financial statements, unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet
met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City records
unavailable revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available
to meet current financial obligations.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)
Transfers
In the fund financial statements, interfund transfers are recorded as transfers in (out) except for transactions
that are described below:
Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures of the requesting
fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund at the end of the fiscal year.
Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund that is properly applicable to another fund, are
recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the fund that is
reimbursed.
Net Position
The government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position
is capitalized as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.


Net investment in capital assets – groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one component
of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets reduce the net position balance.



Restricted – represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.



Unrestricted – represents net position of the City, not restricted for any project or other purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted first,
and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Fund Balances
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in
governmental fund financial statements are as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance
Amounts cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (such as inventory or prepaid expense,
and long-term loans and notes receivable) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact (such as principal of a permanent fund).
Restricted Fund Balance
Amounts with external constraints placed on the use of these resources (such as debt covenants, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, etc.) or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)
Fund Balances (Continued)
Committed Fund Balance
Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by City Council, the City’s
highest level of decision-making authority, through an ordinance or resolution. These committed amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified uses through
the same type of formal action taken to establish the commitment.
Assigned Fund Balance
Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be used
for specific purposes. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its designee and may be changed at the
discretion of the City Council or its designee. For all governmental funds other than the General Fund, any
remaining positive amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed must be designated as
assigned fund balance.
Unassigned Fund Balance
These are either residual positive net resources of the General Fund in excess of what can properly be classified
in one of the other four categories, or negative balances in all other funds.
In circumstances when expenditures are made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is generally depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned.
Risk Management
The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which
established the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA). The relationship between
the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial reporting
purposes.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)
Property Tax Calendar
Madera County is responsible for assessing, collecting, and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling legislation. Revenue received is based on an allocations factor calculated by the County under the
provisions of Proposition 13 plus a percentage of the increase in market value in specific areas. The City’s
property tax is liened based on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and personal
property located in the City. Property sold after the assessment date (January 1) is reassessed and the amount
of property tax assessed is prorated.
Secured property taxes are levied on October 1 and are due in two installments on November 1 and February 1.
The tax becomes delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured property tax is levied on
July 1, due on July 31, and becomes delinquent after August 31.
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

$

14,200,072
11,952,429
1,933,110
3,575,844

Total cash and investments

$

31,661,455

$

2,200
5,034,640
26,624,615

$

31,661,455

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments
Total cash and investments
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits
The carrying amount of the City’s cash deposits was $5,034,640 at June 30, 2017. Bank balances were
$5,121,400, the total amount of which was insured and/or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institutions in the City’s name as discussed below.
The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the
City’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This code states that collateral pledged in this manner
shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor.
Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the City's name.
The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City’s cash deposits. California law also
allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
the City’s total cash deposits.
The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required to be held
by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash and
investments is allocated on an accounting period basis to the various funds based on the period-end cash and
investment balances. Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the
related fund.
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy
In accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code and the City’s investment policy, the City is
authorized to invest in Certificates of Deposit, the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), U.S. Treasury
Obligations, U.S. Government Agencies, Medium-Term Notes, Bankers’ Acceptances, and Commercial Paper of
“prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the highest letter and numerical rating as provided by Moody’s
Investor Services, Inc. or Standards and Poor’s Corporation. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, the
City will not invest in repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, or any other type of investments
prohibited by California Government Code Section 53601.
Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the maturity date of each investment:

Investment Type

Total

12 Months or
Less

State investment pool
Held by bond trustee:
Treasury Obligation Funds
Money Market Funds
Total

$ 11,096,338

$ 11,096,338

4,012,320
11,515,957
$ 26,624,615

4,012,320
11,515,957
$ 26,624,615
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13 to 24
Months

25 to 60
Months

$

-

$

-

More than
60 Months

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Disclosure Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type:
Ratings as of Year-End
Investment Type

Total

AAAm

AA

Not Rated

State investment pool
Held by bond trustee:
Treasury Obligation Funds
Money Market Funds
Total

$ 11,096,338

$

-

-

$ 11,096,338

4,012,320
11,515,957
$ 26,624,615

4,012,320
$ 4,012,320

11,515,957
$ 11,515,957

$ 11,096,338

Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the City contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S.
Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total City’s
investments are as follows:

Issuer
US Bank Money Market

Reported
Amount
$ 11,515,957

Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total investments by reporting unit (primary
government, government activities, major funds, nonmajor funds in aggregate, etc.) are as follows:
$8,380,111 of cash and investments (including amounts held by bond trustee) reported in the Water Fund
are held in the form of the above-described Money Market Funds.
$3,128,506 of cash and investments (including amounts held by bond trustee) reported in the Sewer Fund
are held in the form of the above-described Money Market Funds.
$3,568,504 of cash and investments (including amounts held by bond trustee) reported in the Agency Fund
are held in the form of the above-described Treasury Obligation Fund.

33

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investment Valuation
Investments, including derivative instruments that are not hedging derivatives, are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments’ fair value measurements are as follows
at June 30, 2017:

Investments
Debt securities:
Treasury Obligation Fund

Money Market Funds
State Investment Pool

Fair Value
$

4,012,320
4,012,320

Fair Value Measurements
Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 inputs
$ 4,012,320
$ 4,012,320

$
$

-

$
$

-

11,515,957
11,096,338
$ 26,624,615

Treasury obligations are valued at marked to market based on quoted market closing prices.
Investment in State Investment Pool
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amount based upon
the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of the portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based in the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Although the City did not participate in any
securities lending transactions or enter into any reverse repurchase agreements during the year, the City does
have an investment in LAIF in the amount of $11,096,338. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has
oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State statute. The
value of the pool shares in LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is
different from the fair value of the City’s position in the pool.
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds and aggregate nonmajor, including applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:
Governmental Activities
CDBG
Grants
Special
Revenue

General
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Notes receivable
Less: allowance for
for uncollectibles

$

239,505
488,028
395,000

$

3,700
20,156,552

Net receivables

$

727,533

$

11,163
487,531
-

-

(395,000)
$

Other
Governmental
Funds

Capital
Projects

20,160,252

$

572
712,388
1,710,446

$

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

251,240
1,691,647
22,261,998

(61,166)

498,694

$

2,362,240

(456,166)
$

23,748,719

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Solid
Waste

Water
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Less: allowance for
for uncollectibles
Net receivables

$

2,259,724
-

$

$

Sewer

120,365
-

$

(5,000)

(21,500)
2,238,224

$

Storm
Drain

115,365

176,113
-

$

24,880
-

(6,000)
$

170,113

Airport
$

798
8,021

(1,800)
$

23,080

Total
$

2,581,880
8,021

$

8,819

(34,300)
$

2,555,601

Receivables are presented on the Statement of Net Position as follows:
Governmental
Activities
Accounts receivable, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Notes receivable, net

Business-Type
Activities

Total

$

251,240
1,691,647
21,805,832

$

2,547,580
8,021
-

$

2,798,820
1,699,668
21,805,832

$

23,748,719

$

2,555,601

$

26,304,320

Receivables in governmental funds which are not expected to be collected in one year are as follows:
Notes receivable in CDBG Grants Special Revenue Fund
Notes receivable in Home Investment Program Grants Special Revenue Fund
Notes receivable in EDBG Grants Special Revenue Fund
Notes receivable in Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund
Total
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$

20,156,552
1,445,172
126,674
77,434

$

21,805,832
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NOTE 4 – INTERNAL BALANCES
Due to and due from balances at June 30, 2017 are as follows:
Due From
Governmental Funds:
Major Funds:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Nonmajor Funds:
Transit System Special Revenue Fund
Low and Moderate Low Income Housing Asset Fund

$

Due To

836,269
-

$

$

Total

836,269

498,330
292,380
45,559

$

836,269

The “due from” balances of $836,269 in the funds listed above represents loans made to other funds to cover
operating cash deficit.
Advances to and due from balances at June 30, 2017 are as follows:
Advances To
Governmental Funds:
Major Funds:
General Fund
Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund
Total

Advances From

$

542,559
-

$

542,559

$

542,559

$

542,559

The balance of $542,559 for advances from other funds in the Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund consists of
cash advances from the General Fund and will be paid back with future impact fees. The City has indicated that
there are no plans to collect on the advance within the next year.
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NOTE 5 – TRANSFERS
Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows:
Transfers In
Governmental Funds:
Major Funds:
General Fund
CDBG Grants Special Revenue Fund
Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Nonmajor Funds:
State Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
RSTP Special Revenue Fund
Street and Road Fund (LTF) Special Revenue Fund
Measure T Special Revenue Fund
Maintenance Assessment District Special Revenue Fund
Public Safety Grants Special Revenue Fund
HOME Investment Partnership Program
Special Revenue Fund
EDBG Grant Special Revenue Fund
Enterprise Funds:
Major Funds:
Water Enterprise Fund
Nonmajor Funds:
Storm Drain Enterprise Fund
Airport Enterprise Fund

$

368,390
89,921
1,158,634
124,268

Transfers Out

(2)
(4)

$

(1),(3)
(3)

433,648 (3)
1,105
(4)

216,363
69,284
150,538
161,084
128,790
19,605

60,391
-

$

Total

1,038,868 (1)
1,597,701 (2),(5)
112,070 (3)

150,312 (4)

128,790 (6)

-

1,249,175 (5)
30,293 (1)

-

3,644,615

(3)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(6)
(2)

$

3,644,615

(1) The General Fund transferred $1,000 to the Airport for assistance in operational costs and $29,293 to
recover expenses incurred in previous years and offset negative cash balance. $1,008,452 was transferred
to the Debt Service Fund for the debt service payments and partial refunding of the 2005 Civic Center Bond.
(2) The Public Safety Grants Fund transferred $19,605 to the General Fund to close out the fund. The Police
Impact Fees fund transferred $112,276 and the Fire Impact Fees Fund transferred $236,250 to the General
Fund for capital replacement of vehicles, equipment and machinery.
(3) The Gas Tax Fund transferred $258,566 to the Street and Roads (LTF) Fund for street maintenance and
operational costs and $7,767 was transferred to cover project specific costs associated with street and road
improvements. The RSTP Fund transferred $28,479 to the Street and Roads (LTF) Fund for street
maintenance and operational costs. Streets and Roads (LTF) transferred $150,169 to the Debt Service
Fund for the PFA Streets debt service payment. The Measure T Fund Transferred $161,084 to the Street
and Roads (LTF) Fund for street maintenance and operational costs.
(4) EDBG Grant Fund transferred $24,770 to the Community Development Block Grant Fund to cover costs
associated with grant maintenance service. $54,092 was transferred from the EDBG Grant Fund to the
Home Investment Partnership Program Fund to cover contracted services for grant maintenance. $71,450
was transferred from the EDBG Grant Fund to the Community Development Block Grant to establish
residual receipts for a loan receivable.
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NOTE 5 – TRANSFERS (Continued)
(5) The Impact Fees Fund transferred $1,249,175 to the Storm Drain Fund for capital replacement revenue
previously collected and recorded in the Impact Fees Fund that management determined more
appropriately belonged in the Storm Drain Fund.
(6) The Maintenance Assessment District Fund transferred $128,790 to the Water Fund to reimburse the Water
Fund for money due from prior year water fees.
NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:
Governmental Activities:
Balance
July 1, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

563,098
523,751
1,086,849

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation

$

528,412
528,412

Balance
June 30, 2017

Reductions

$

(15,651) $
(188,055)
(203,706)

547,447
864,108
1,411,555

1,355,230
6,853,476
3,276,069
15,789,818
27,274,593

8,658
689,140
697,798

-

1,355,230
6,862,134
3,965,209
15,789,818
27,972,391

(839,877)
(2,272,386)
(2,098,013)
(6,756,702)
(11,966,978)

(33,535)
(134,850)
(234,672)
(395,614)
(798,671)

-

(873,412)
(2,407,236)
(2,332,685)
(7,152,316)
(12,765,649)

15,307,615

(100,873)

-

15,206,742

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Additions

$

16,394,464

$

427,539

$

(203,706) $

16,618,297

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary government as
follows:
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Capital assets held by government's internal service funds are charged to the
various functions based on their usage of the assets
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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$

95,825
169,751
480,183
51,795

$

798,671
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Capital assets activity of the business-type activities ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:
Business-Type Activities
Balance
July 1, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

1,947,728
112,829
2,060,557

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets, being depreciated

1,253,762
2,646,600
614,982
14,421,235
18,936,579

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation

(634,322)
(1,304,489)
(330,894)
(6,029,617)
(8,299,322)
10,637,257

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

12,697,814

Additions

$

2,777,243
2,777,243

$

-

$

Balance
June 30, 2017

Reductions

-

$

1,947,728
2,890,072
4,837,800

-

1,253,762
2,646,600
614,982
14,421,235
18,936,579

(41,665)
(51,804)
(39,869)
(304,198)
(437,536)

-

(675,987)
(1,356,293)
(370,763)
(6,333,815)
(8,736,858)

(437,536)

-

10,199,721

2,339,707

$

-

$

15,037,521

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs of the governmental activities and business-type activities of
the primary government as follows:
Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Storm drain
Airport
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$

$
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249,224
167,280
6,349
14,683
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2017:
June 30,
2016
(Restated)
Governmental Activities:
2000 Refunding of 1994 PFA Revenue Bonds
2005 Civic Center Bond
2016 Civic Center Bond
Measure T Interprogram Loan
State of California NSP Loan
Less: Discounts
Compensated absences

$

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt
Business-Type Activities:
2001 USDA Sewer Bond
2001 Water Certificates of Participation
2017 Series Water Bonds
2017 Series Wastewater Bonds
State Water Revolving Loan
Add: Premiums
Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt

Additions

640,212
4,815,000
472,500
9,913,215
(81,798)
295,341

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

June 30,
2017

Reductions

$

1,120,000
269,464

$

(113,754)
(1,250,000)
(187,000)
(157,500)
4,334
(233,766)

$

526,458
3,565,000
933,000
315,000
9,913,215
(77,464)
331,039

$

118,978
157,500
241,054

$

16,054,470

$

1,389,464

$

(1,937,686)

$

15,506,248

$

517,532

$

95,000
405,000
543,151
-

$

8,160,000
3,310,000
1,149,351
622,023

$

(15,000)
(65,000)
(256)

$

80,000
340,000
8,160,000
3,310,000
1,692,502
621,767

$

20,000
65,000
-

$

1,043,151

$ 13,241,374

$

(80,256)

$

14,204,269

$

85,000

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2017 is comprised of the following individual issues:
2000 Refunding of 1994 Public Financing Authority (PFA) Revenue Bonds
In 1994, the City issued Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $3,670,000 to finance the
acquisition and construction of three projects: (1) capital improvements to the City Hall (the Land
Acquisition/Facilities Rehabilitation Project) in the amount of $495,000; (2) Street/Road Improvement Project in
the amount of $1,890,000; and (3) Wastewater Improvement Project in the amount of $920,000. The original
amount of the note ($3,670,000) was secured by each project’s pledged sources of revenue, including the
Street/Road Improvement Project’s pledge of the City’s net revenues from the state gas tax, and Measure A
Funds; the Wastewater Plant Improvement Project’s net revenues from user fees collected by the Sewer
Enterprise Fund; and General Fund revenues pledged for the Land Acquisition Project in the amount of
$3,106,000, to take advantage of lower interest rates and reduce the total future debt service payments.
Semiannual payments range from $4,433 to $288,668 and are payable each March 15 and September 15 through
2021.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2000 Refunding of 1994 PFA Revenue Bonds are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021

$

118,978
129,146
134,187
144,147

$

28,720
21,090
12,992
4,433

Total

$

526,458

$

67,235
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Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2017 is comprised of the following individual issues:
2005 Civic Center Bond
In 2005, the City issued Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $5,890,000 to refund the 2002
$1,900,000 Civic Center Project Private Placement Financing and to finance certain public improvements. The
original amount of the note ($5,890,000) was secured by revenues of the Public Financing Authority consisting
primarily of lease payments to be received by the Authority from the City under a lease agreement dated July 1,
2005, by and between the Authority and the City which are payable from the City’s general fund for lease by the
City of certain real property and public facilities located in the City and then constituting the Civic Center Project.
Semiannual payments range from $7,875 to $357,875 and are payable each January 1 and July 1 through
2035. During the year ended June 30, 2017 the 2005 Civic Center Bond was partially refunded by the 2016
Civic Center Bond for the purposes of savings on future debt service payments.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2005 Civic Center Bond are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2035
Total

Principal
$

1,145,000
1,415,000
1,005,000

$ 3,565,000

Interest
$

158,331
158,331
158,331
158,331
158,331
715,203
451,775
121,388

$ 2,080,021

2016 Refunding of 2005 Civic Center Bond
In 2016, the City issued Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $1,120,000 to partially refund the
2005 Civic Center Bond. This was done to take advantage of lower interest rates and to save on future debt
service payments. As a result, the 2005 Civic Center Bond is considered partially defeased and the liability for
that bond is included in the statement of net position. The total debt service payments were reduced by
$49,165. Semiannual payments range from $1,978 to $194,978 and are payable each January 1 and July 1
through 2022.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2016 Refunding of 2005 Civic Center Bonds are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

179,000
186,000
187,000
188,000
193,000

$

9,563
17,292
13,551
9,727
5,884
1,978

Total

$

933,000

$

57,995
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Measure T Interprogram Loan
The City entered into a loan agreement in 2009, with the Madera County Transportation Commission to receive
an advance of Measure T revenues. The loan will be a lien of the City’s portion of the Regional
Rehabilitation/Reconstruction/Maintenance Program and Safe Routes to School and Job Program which is
4.71% of the total Measure T Sales Tax Revenues. Principal is payable annually on June 30 in the amount of
$157,500, with interest payment calculated as the total principal outstanding times the average LAIF rate for the
prior calendar year, and matures on June 30, 2019.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the Measure T Interprogram loan are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,

Principal

Interest

2018
2019

$

157,500
157,500

$

-

Total

$

315,000

$

-

State of California Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) Loan
In fiscal year 2010-11, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Department of Housing and Community
Development (DHCD). The City could borrow up to $10,000,000 to assist Olivero Ranch, LLC, in financing
construction of 31 multi-family units, of which 30 units will be restricted to households at or below 50% of the
AMI households in the City. The entire outstanding principal balance plus all accrued but unpaid interest is due
in full on the 55th anniversary of the date of the Project’s receipt of certificates of occupancy. There is no
interest due on the loan; however, any program income resulting from the financing provided to Olivero Ranch
will be returned to the DHCD. The loan will be secured on the property on which the Project is located. The
outstanding loan balance as of June 30, 2017 was $9,913,215. All loan payments will be generated by the
operation of the housing development by the private developer which will pass through the City and back to the
State.
2001 USDA Sewer Bond
The City entered into a loan agreement in 2001 for $268,325, with the United States Department of AgricultureRural Development (USDA-RD) for the purpose of constructing capital improvements for the City’s wastewater
system. Principal is payable annually on October 1 in amounts from $10,000 to $20,000, with interest due semiannually at 4.375%, and matures on September 1, 2020.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2001 USDA Sewer Bond are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021

$

20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000

$

3,063
2,188
1,313
436

Total

$

80,000

$

7,000
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2001 Water Certificate of Participation
Certificates of Participation (2000 Water System Improvement Project) in the amount of $1,114,558 were issued
on August 30, 2001, for the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of certain modifications,
improvements and additions to the City’s water treatment storage and distribution facilities systems. Loan
proceeds are utilized for the construction period only and are repaid with a United States Department of
Agriculture Rural Development (USDA-RD) Bond Anticipation Note when the project is complete. The amount of
the note is secured by the pledge of user fees collected by the Water Enterprise Fund. Principal is payable
annually on August 1 in amounts from $50,000 to $70,000, with interest due semi-annually at 4.375%, and
matures on August 1, 2021.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for certificates of participation are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

65,000
65,000
70,000
70,000
70,000

$

13,453
10,609
7,656
4,594
1,531

Total

$

340,000

$

37,843

Water Revenue Bonds 2017 Series
In 2017, the Chowchilla Public Financing Authority issued Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$8,160,000 to finance capital projects in the Water fund. The original amount of the bonds ($8,160,000) were
secured by installment payments to be made by the City of Chowchilla under an installment sale agreement.
These installment payments are secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the Water Fund.
Principal is payable annually on June 1 in amounts from $10,000 to $775,000, with interest due semi-annually at
variable rates between 2.6% - 5.0%, and matures on June 1, 2047.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2017 Series Water Revenue Bonds of are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
2043-2047

$

10,000
25,000
140,000
620,000
1,140,000
2,355,000
3,870,000

$

333,533
361,663
361,663
361,403
360,720
1,791,179
1,722,042
1,532,469
1,119,195
338,525

Total

$

8,160,000

$

8,282,392
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Wastewater Revenue Bonds 2017 Series
In 2017, the Chowchilla Public Financing Authority issued Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$3,310,000 to finance capital projects in the Sewer fund. The original amount of the bonds ($3,310,000) were
secured by installment payments to be made by the City of Chowchilla under an installment sale agreement.
These installment payments are secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the Sewer Fund.
Principal is payable annually on June 1 in amounts from $75,000 to $275,000, with interest due semi-annually at
variable rates between 2.33%-4.58%, and matures on June 1, 2047.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2017 Series Wastewater Revenue Bonds of are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
2043-2047

$

95,000
100,000
70,000
180,000
335,000
530,000
840,000
1,160,000

$

141,388
143,380
141,865
140,143
137,931
666,655
616,706
528,446
386,376
168,086

Total

$

3,310,000

$

3,070,976

State Water Revolving Loan
The City entered into a loan agreement in July 2014 with the State Water Resources Control Board for the
purpose of undertaking a project which will enable the City to meet safe drinking water standards established
pursuant Chapter 4 of Part 12 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code and the California Code of
Regulations, Title 22, or to address other health concerns. The City was awarded a loan in the amount of
$3,205,991 for the purpose of installing water meters citywide. The loan is to be repaid over a 20-year period at
an interest rate of 0%, which does not begin until the project is completed. As of June 30, 2017, the City has a
balance of $1,692,502 with no payment due as the project has not been completed.
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Special Assessment District Debt
On August 26, 2003, the City issued $6,595,000 of 2003-1 Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2003 Local
Obligations”) pursuant to the provisions of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 to refund the outstanding 1994-1
Local Obligations Series A and B (collectively, the “1994-1 Local Obligations”), for the purpose of creating annual
debt savings. The 2003 Local Obligations are secured by assessments levied against private property owners in
the Greenhills Assessment District No. 2003-1. The Authority will receive the reserve fund upon final maturity.
The City acts as agent for the property owners in collecting assessment installments of principal and interest and
forwarding collections to the bond trustee. The City’s liability in the event of delinquent assessments shall not
exceed the balance of the established Reserve Fund. During the year ended June 30, 2017 the 2003 Local
Obligation bonds were fully refunded by the 2017 Refunding Revenue Bonds (Reassessment District No. 2003-1
Greenhills).
On March 15, 2017, the Chowchilla Public Financing Authority issued $3,138,000 of 2017 Refunding Revenue
Bonds (Reassessment District No. 2003-1 Greenhills) for the purpose of creating annual debt savings. The total
debt service payments were reduced by $140,898. The 2017 Refunding Bonds are secured by a pledge of and
first lien on the revenues to be derived from the Local Agency Bonds (2003 Local Obligations). The Authority will
receive the reserve fund upon final maturity. The City acts as agent for the property owners in collecting
assessment installments of principal and interest and forwarding collections to the bond trustee. The City’s
liability in the event of delinquent assessments shall not exceed the balance of the established Reserve Fund.
The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is $3,138,000.
On April 30, 2014, the City issued $3,962,800 of 2013-1 Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2013 Local
Obligations”) pursuant to the provisions of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 to refund the outstanding 2002-1
Local Obligations Improvement Bonds (the “2002-1 Local Obligations”), for the purpose of creating annual debt
savings. The 2013 Local Obligations are fully secured by the unpaid special assessments levied on privately
owned properties within the District. These 2013 Local Obligations have no governmental commitment. The
2013 Local Obligations are not secured by the general taxing power of the City, the State of California, or any
political subdivision of the State. The City acts as agent for the property owners in collecting assessment
installments of principal and interest and forwarding collections to the bond trustee. The City’s liability in the
event of delinquent assessments shall not exceed the balance of the established Reserve Fund. The amount
outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is $3,389,828.
In 2007, the City issued Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 Improvement Area 1 Special Tax Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of $8,615,000 to finance certain capital expenses of the District, to pay costs of
issuance of the Bonds, and to fund two years’ capitalized interest on the Bonds. The Bonds are authorized to be
issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended. The Bonds ($8,615,000) are
secured under the Trust indenture by a pledge and lien upon Net Taxes levied on parcels within the District and
all moneys in the Special Tax Fund. The Bonds were issued for the purpose of financing the acquisition,
construction, expansion, improvement, or rehabilitation of facilities to serve the area within the District and its
neighboring areas. Semiannual payments range from $13,375 to $560,486 and are payable each March 1 and
September 1 through 2037. The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is $7,235,000.
Since the City is not obligated in any manner for special assessment debt, the debt is not recorded in these
financial statements.
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NOTE 8 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has pension related items that qualify to be
reported in deferred outflows of resources. The pension related deferred outflows of resources are described in
detail in Note 9.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of items that qualify for reporting in this
category and they are unavailable revenues and pension deferrals.


Unavailable revenues arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting and is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred inflows of resources reported in the governmental funds
for unavailable revenues are as follows:
CDBG
Grants
Special
Revenue
Intergovernmental
Notes
Total



$

20,156,552

$ 20,156,552

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

692,562
1,649,280

$ 2,341,842

Total
$

692,562
21,805,832

$ 22,498,394

The City has pension related items that qualify to be reported in deferred inflows of resources. The
pension related deferred inflows of resources are described in detail in Note 9.
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NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public
Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool
(police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any
employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or
miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor
more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The City of Chowchilla (City) sponsors seven
rate plans (three miscellaneous and four safety). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website.
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of
total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments
for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows:

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Miscellaneous
1st Tier

Miscellaneous
2nd Tier

Miscellaneous
PEPRA

Prior to
January 1, 2011
2.5% @ 55
5 years service
monthly for life
50 to 55
2.0% to 2.5%
8.000%
10.069%

January 1, 2011 thru
December 31, 2012
2% @ 60
5 years service
monthly for life
50 to 63
1.092% to 2.418%
7.000%
7.159%

On or after
January 1, 2013
2% @ 62
5 years service
monthly for life
52 to 67
1.0% to 2.5%
6.250%
6.555%

Safety (Police)
1st Tier

Safety (Police)
2nd Tier

Safety (Police)
PEPRA

Prior to
January 1, 2013
3% @ 55
5 years service
monthly for life
50 - 55
2.4% to 3.0%
9.000%
17.689%

January 1, 2011 thru
December 31, 2012
2% @ 55
5 years service
monthly for life
50 to 55
1.426 % to 2.0%
7.000%
12.055%

On or after
January 1, 2013
2.0% @ 57
5 years service
monthly for life
50 - 57
1.426% to 2.0%
9.500%
9.418%

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of payroll
for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions toward the
unfunded liability and side fund, if applicable. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The City’s
required contribution for the unfunded liability was $544,967 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
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NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
The City’s contributions to the Plan recognized as a part of pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2017
were $848,864.
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
As of June 30, 2017, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability
of the Plan of $9,583,127.
The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability for the Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, rolled
forward to June 30, 2016, using standard update procedures. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 was as follows:
Proportion - June 30, 2015
Proportion - June 30, 2016
Change - Increase (Decrease)

0.1170%
0.1107%
-0.0063%

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $826,690. At June 30, 2017, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Changes of assumptions
Differences between actual and expected experience
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments
Change in employer's proportion

$

2,963,879

293,038
25,235
67,972

143,755
$

48

$

1,484,327
345,632

Differences between the employer's actual contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions
Total

984,566
5,599

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

23,662
$

409,907
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NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)
$984,566 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:
Year Ended
June 30
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

272,279
235,292
676,473
385,362
-

C. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations were determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Projected Salary Increase
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality

June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
Entry Age Normal
Cost Method
7.65%
2.75%
3.00%
(1)
3.30% to 14.20%
(2)
7.50%
Derived using CalPERS' Membership
(3)
data for all Funds

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS
specific data.
The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using
Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation
were based on the results of January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further
details of the Experiences Study can be found on the CalPERS website.
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NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
D. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the test revealed the assets would not run out.
Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate
calculation is not deemed necessary. The long- term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed
report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the
GASB 68 section.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’
asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both shortterm and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was
set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter
of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2015.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity
Total

New Strategic
Allocation

Real Return
Years 1-10(a)

47.00%
19.00%
6.00%
12.00%
11.00%
3.00%
2.00%
100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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5.25%
0.99%
0.45%
6.83%
4.50%
4.50%
(-0.55%)

Real Return
Years 11+(b)
5.71%
2.43%
3.36%
6.95%
5.13%
5.09%
(-1.05%)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
D. Discount Rate (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the
current rate:
Discount Rate -1%
6.65%
$

13,744,308

Current Discount
Rate
$

Discount Rate +1%
8.65%

9,583,127

$

6,152,984

E. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial reports.
F. Payable to the Pension Plan
The City had an outstanding amount of contributions of $10,531 due to the pension plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 10 – POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
The City provides no post-employment benefits for its employees. However, former employees may be
maintained on the City’s health insurance programs through the City’s Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA) insurance continuation plan.
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NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is a member, along with fifty-eight other public entities, of Central San Joaquin Valley Risk
Management Authority (the Authority) organized under a joint powers agreement pursuant to the California
Government Code for the purpose of operating and maintaining a cooperative program of self-insurance and
risk management which benefits its member cities through cost reductions, insurance coverage stability, and
loss control techniques. The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors, consisting of one member appointed
by each member city. The Authority maintains pooled coverage programs for its member cities for workers’
compensation, liability, auto-physical damage, property, employment practices liability, and errors and
omissions coverage. For workers’ compensation and liability programs, each program and program year is
accounted for and administered as a separate operation.
Under the pooled liability program, expected claims are actuarially determined as are required deposits to cover
those claims along with all estimated operating costs. Each year is retrospectively adjusted five years following
its conclusion and any funds remaining are returned to the member city. Likewise, funds paid out in excess of
their original deposits are collected from the member city.
The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $500,000 of each workers’
compensation claim through the Authority. The City has the right to receive refunds or the obligation to pay
assessments based on a formula which, among other expenses, charges the City’s account for liability losses
under $1,000,000 and workers’ compensation losses under $500,000. The Authority is a member of the Local
Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess Joint Powers Authority (LAWCX) for the purpose of providing excess
coverage. Any claims of $500,000 up to $150,000,000 are covered under a purchased policy through the
membership with the LAWCX. The Authority is a member of the California Affiliated Risk Management
Authorities (CARMA) for the purpose of providing excess coverage in a risk sharing pool. The CARMA program
provided coverage in excess of the Authority’s retained limit up to $19,000,000.
The financial position results of operations of the Authority are as follows for June 30, 2017:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Total net position

$ 100,984,219
83,009,648
$ 17,974,571

Revenues
Expenses
Change in net position

$ 44,757,809
42,218,070
$ 2,539,739

At the termination of the joint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess or deficit will
be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing documents.
The City has established the following retained limits for the coverages shown: $25,000 for liability; $100,000 for
worker’s compensation; $1,000 for property damage; $500 deductible on vehicles.
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NOTE 12 – DEFICIT IN FUND EQUITY
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Transit System Special Revenue Fund – A deficit in fund balance at June 30, 2017 in the amount of $305,887 is
due solely to the fact that revenues were recorded but not received within 60 days from the end of the year and,
therefore, were treated as unavailable revenue in the financial statements.
Internal Service Funds
Fleet Maintenance Internal Service Fund – A deficit in net position at June 30, 2017 in the amount of $160,334
in the fund is primarily due to the net pension liability of $213,598 recorded by the City at June 30, 2017. A
reduction in the net pension liability in future years will assist in eliminating the deficit.
Information Technology Internal Service Fund – A deficit in net position at June 30, 2017 in the amount of
$275,359 in the fund is primarily due to the net pension liability of $406,668 recorded by the City at June 30,
2017.
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund – A deficit in net position at June 30, 2017, in the amount of $343,751,
exists because the fund was established on a pay-as-you go basis for the purpose of funding the annual
accrued leave liability. As employees are paid for their accumulated leave in the future, the home program of
the employee makes a transfer to the Employee Benefit Fund to offset the expense.

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Federal Awards and Grants
The City participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance
audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the government’s compliance with applicable
grant requirements will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the government anticipates such amounts, if
any, will be immaterial.
Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration for the General Fund,
special revenue funds, and capital projects funds. At June 30, 2017, certain amounts which were previously
restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes have been encumbered in the governmental funds.
Significant encumbrances included in governmental fund balances are as follows:
Encumbrances Included in:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Fund Balance
General Fund
Other governmental funds

$

228,332
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$

-

$

258,140
-
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NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X26 (“the Bill”) that dissolved all
redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action impacted the reporting entity of the City of
Chowchilla that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a
blended component unit.
The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are distributed to other
units of state and local government. On January 10, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor
Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part of City Resolution
Number 5-12.
After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of California
cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a newly established
oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at the date of
dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable
contractual commitments.)
In future years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all
enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been
liquidated.
The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to renew the propriety of any transfers of assets
between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public
body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure of
encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to
the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill.
Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former redevelopment
agency due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor agency trust under the
requirements of the Bill. The City’s position on this issue is not a position of settled law and there is
considerable uncertainty regarding this issue. It is reasonably possible that a legal determination may be made
at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would resolve this issue favorably to the City.
In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on December
29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal
entity as of February 1, 2012.
After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a
fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.
Cash and Investments
A reconciliation of the Successor Agency Trust Fund’s cash and investment balances as of June 30, 2016 is as
follows:
Cash on hand
Cash with fiscal agent
Total cash

$

153,587
7,340

$

160,927
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NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(Continued)
Capital Assets
Capital assets reported in the Successor Agency Trust Fund at June 30, 2017 were comprised of the following:
Governmental Activities:
Balance
July 1, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Total capital assets, being depreciated

272,029
272,029

$

1,450,103
1,450,103

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Total accumulated depreciation

1,389,556
$

1,661,585

$

Balance
June 30, 2017

Reductions

-

$

(15,126) $
(15,126)

-

(60,547)
(60,547)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Additions

-

(29,002)
(29,002)

-

(29,002)

-

(29,002) $

(15,126) $

256,903
256,903

1,450,103
1,450,103

(89,549)
(89,549)
1,360,554
1,617,457

Long-term debt reported in the Successor Agency Trust Fund at June 30, 2017 was comprised of the following:

June 30,
2016
2005 RDA Bond
2016 Successor Agency Tax Refunding Bond
Less: Discounts
Add: Premiums
Total

Additions

Reductions

June 30,
2017

$ 6,810,000
(37,505)
-

$

6,190,000
243,508

$ (6,810,000)
37,505
-

$

6,190,000
243,508

$ 6,772,495

$ 6,433,508

$ (6,772,495)

$ 6,433,508

Amounts
Due Within
One Year
$

260,000
-

$ 260,000

2005 RDA Bond
In 2005, the City issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $7,945,000 to finance the
acquisition and construction of public capital improvements within the Redevelopment Project Area. The
original amount of the note ($7,945,000) was secured by a pledge of tax revenues consisting of tax increment
payments to be received by the RDA. Semiannual payments range from $12,000 to $492,000 and are payable
each February 1 and August 1 through 2037. As a result of the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Chowchilla as of February 1, 2012, the 2005 RDA Bond of the former redevelopment agency was
transferred to the Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Chowchilla. After the date of
dissolution, the bond and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary fund
(private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City. During the year ended June 30, 2017 the
2005 RDA Bond was refunded by the 2016 Refunding
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NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(Continued)
2016 Successor Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
In 2016, the Successor Agency of the City of Chowchilla issued Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of $6,190,000 to refund the 2005 RDA Tax Allocation Bonds. This was done to take
advantage of lower interest rates and to save on future debt service payments. As a result, the 2005 RDA Tax
Allocation Bonds are considered defeased and the liability for that bond is not included in fiduciary fund (privatepurpose trust fund) statement of net position. The total debt service payments were reduced by $365,124. The
original amount of the note - $6,190,000 – was secured by a pledge of tax revenues consisting of tax increment
payments to be received by the Successor Agency. Semiannual payments range from $5,294 to $390,294 and
are payable each February 1 and August 1 through 2036.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2016 Successor Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
are as follows:
Ending June 30

Principal

Interest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037

$

260,000
240,000
240,000
250,000
260,000
1,430,000
1,685,000
1,825,000

$

177,756
172,756
165,556
155,756
146,856
591,756
337,094
125,316

Total

$

6,190,000

$

1,872,847

Insurance
The Successor Agency is covered under the City of Chowchilla’s insurance policies. Therefore, the limitation and
self-insured retentions applicable to the City also apply to the Successor Agency. Additional information as to
coverage can be found in Note 11.
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NOTE 15 – FUND CONSOLIDATION AND RECLASSIFICATION
Community Facilities Development Agency Fund
During the current fiscal year, management determined that the Community Facilities Development Fund was
previously incorrectly classified as a capital projects fund. Rather, due to the nature of the activity of this fund
and the City’s role in only maintaining its financial records, it would more appropriately be classified as a fiduciary
fund. Accordingly, all assets in this fund are now being reported in the City’s Agency Fund. The result of this
new classification was a decrease in the opening fund balance of the Capital Project Fund of $4,068,949 and a
decrease of the opening net position of the governmental activities of $3,422,361.
Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund
During the current fiscal year, management determined that the City’s impact fees would be more appropriately
classified as special revenue funds rather than as capital projects funds, of which they had previously been
reported. Additionally, management consolidated all of the impact fees funds into one major special revenue
fund because it determined the consolidation would provide better information to the users of the financial
statements. The following illustrates the opening fund balance for the previous impact fees funds that were
consolidated into the new Impact Fees Fund:
Police Impact Fees
Fire Impact Fees
Streets and Roads Impact Fees
Signalization Impact Fees
Wastewater System Capital Impact Fees
Park Development Impact Fees
Water System Capital Impact Fees
Storm Drain Capital Impact Fees
Public Building Impact Fee

$

362,933
544,663
1,125,789
384,504
720,957
8,758
211,473
1,939,929
(544,730)

Opening fund balance at July 1, 2016

$

4,754,276

Capital Projects Fund
During the current fiscal year, the City decided to consolidate its remaining capital projects funds into one fund for
financial statement purposes and designate the new fund as a major fund. Management determined that this
consolidation would provide more clear information to the users of the financial statements regarding ongoing
governmental capital projects. The opening fund balance of this new fund at July 1, 2016 was ($47,457).
Home Investment Partnership Program Special Revenue Fund
During the current fiscal year, management decided to consolidate all of its funds that include resources related
to the Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) grants into one fund for financial statement presentation
purposes. Management determined that consolidating these funds would provide clearer information to the users
of the financial statements regarding its HOME program activity. The following illustrates the opening fund
balance for the previous HOME related special revenue funds:
Home Investments Program Grants
HOME Grants
Opening fund balance at July 1, 2016

$

67,738
(4,844)

$

62,894
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NOTE 16 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Beginning net position of the Governmental Activities and fund balance in in the Capital Projects Fund have
been restated to record prior period adjustments as presented in the reconciliation below:

Description
Beginning fund balance

GovernmentWide

Governmental
Funds

Governmental
Activities

Capital Projects
Fund

$

22,900,543

$

4,021,492

Prior period adjustments:
Overstatement of unavailable revenues
Community Facilities District Fund reclassification

3,394,521

27,840
(4,096,789)

Total prior period adjustments

3,394,521

(4,068,949)

Beginning fund balance, as restated

$

58

26,295,064

$

(47,457)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE – BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and penalties
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Legal settlement
Miscellaneous

$

2,800,860
551,915
29,200
2,240,268
92,900
131,200
514,000
54,885

Final
Budget

$

2,800,860
564,015
29,200
2,323,526
120,900
133,100
514,000
54,885

Actual

$

2,981,041
630,140
78,536
2,308,044
126,779
121,231
544,623
136,400

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

180,181
66,125
49,336
(15,482)
5,879
(11,869)
30,623
81,515

Total revenues

6,415,228

6,540,486

6,926,794

386,308

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay

865,185
3,847,915
350,933
495,623
118,000

943,281
3,741,599
356,757
744,482
846,900

746,830
3,383,451
319,547
510,276
703,741

196,451
358,148
37,210
234,206
143,159

Total expenditures

5,677,656

6,633,019

5,663,845

969,174

1,262,949

1,355,482

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

737,572

(92,533)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

101,800
(369,338)

562,810
(1,038,876)

368,390
(1,038,868)

(194,420)
8

Total other financing sources (uses)

(267,538)

(476,066)

(670,478)

(194,412)

(568,599)

592,471

Net change in fund balance

$

470,034

$

3,238,793

Fund balances, beginning
$

Fund balances, ending
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3,831,264

$

1,161,070

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE – BUDGET TO ACTUAL
CDBG GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Charges for services

$

Total revenues

Final
Budget

70,115
500
3,700

$

1,200
500
3,700

Actual

$

70,115
2,036
3,700

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

68,915
1,536
-

74,315

5,400

75,851

70,451

21,585

23,160

22,139

1,021

221,585

223,160

22,139

201,021

(147,270)

(217,760)

53,712

271,472

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community development
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

-

18,471

89,921

71,450

Total other financing sources (uses)

-

18,471

89,921

71,450

(199,289)

143,633

Net change in fund balance

$

(147,270)

$

404,477

Fund balances, beginning
$

Fund balances, ending
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548,110

$

342,922
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE – BUDGET TO ACTUAL
IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

Final
Budget

8,275
36,400
5,100

$

8,275
160,400
27,100

Actual

$

19,834
156,690
25,785

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

11,559
(3,710)
(1,315)

49,775

195,775

202,309

6,534

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital outlay

536,250

446,000

121,073

324,927

Total expenditures

536,750

446,500

121,073

325,427

(486,975)

(250,725)

81,236

331,961

Total revenues

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

-

(361,050)

(1,597,701)

(1,236,651)

Total other financing sources (uses)

-

(361,050)

(1,597,701)

(1,236,651)

(611,775)

(1,516,465)

Net change in fund balance

$

(486,975)

$

4,754,308

Fund balances, beginning
$

Fund balances, ending
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3,237,843

$

(904,690)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A.

BUDGETARY INFORMATION
The City establishes annual budgets for the General, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects
Funds. Except for encumbrances and long-term projects in progress, which are carried forward to the
following year, all appropriations remaining will lapse at year-end. The following procedures are followed
in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the budgetary comparison schedules:
1)

The department heads prepare a budget request based upon the previous year’s expenditures.

2)

A meeting is held between the department heads, Finance Director and the City Administrator for
the purpose of reviewing and prioritizing the budget requests.

3)

The City Administrator submits the proposed City Budget to the City Council, who makes
decisions regarding department budgets.

4)

The approved budget is placed in the City accounting system and monitored by the Finance
Department as well as by the department heads.
Department heads may, with the City Administrator’s authorization, transfer amounts between line
items which do not change the original operational budget appropriation limit of the department.
The transfers between departments and funds require approval of the City Council.

5)

B.

Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is
expected, and expenditures are budgeted in the year that the applicable purchase orders are
expected to be issued. The Debt Service Fund budget is prepared to provide funding for general
obligation debt service when liabilities are due for payment. Budgeted amounts are maintained as
originally adopted and as further amended by the City Council. The level of control (level at which
expenditures may not exceed budget) is at fund level for the General Fund, fund level for the
Special Revenue Funds, and project level for the Capital Projects Funds.

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
The City did not incur any expenditures in excess of appropriations for the year ended June 30,
2016.

63

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

2015
Proportion of the net pension liability

2016

0.1141%

2017

0.1170%

0.1107%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

7,165,731

$

8,032,145

$

9,583,127

Covered payroll

$

3,644,535

$

3,617,983

$

3,411,501

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as percentage of
covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

196.62%

222.01%

280.91%

78.02%

74.09%

70.07%

Notes to Schedule:
Change in Benefit Terms - None
Change in Assumptions - None
*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

2014

2015

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll

$ 3,644,535

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

788,942

$

(788,942)
$

-

21.65%

2016

745,347

$

(745,347)
$

-

$ 3,617,983

20.60%

2017

848,864

$

848,864
$

-

$ 3,411,501

24.88%

942,347
942,347

$

-

$ 3,728,201

25.28%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

State
Gas Tax
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivables
Notes receivable, net
Land held for resale
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits
Due to other funds

$

RSTP

352,398
-

$

327
-

$

-

-

Maintenance
Assessment
District

Measure T
Fund

303,932
572
255,676
-

$ 1,487,934
94,335
-

-

-

$

912,397
13,648
-

Transit
System

$

348,729
-

-

$

352,398

$

327

$

560,180

$ 1,582,269

$

926,045

$

348,729

$

9,991
-

$

-

$

252,070
-

$

$

12,237
-

$

14,557
94
292,380

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Restricted for:
Highway and streets
Community development
Unassigned
Total fund balances (deficit)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Street &
Road (LTF)

$

-

9,991

-

252,070

-

12,237

307,031

-

-

250,642

94,335

-

347,585

-

-

250,642

94,335

-

347,585

342,407
-

327
-

57,468
-

1,487,934
-

913,808
-

(305,887)

342,407

327

57,468

1,487,934

913,808

(305,887)

560,180

$ 1,582,269

352,398

$

327
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$

$

926,045

$

348,729

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Home
Investment
Partnership
Program

Public
Safety
Grants
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Notes receivable, net
Land held for resale
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Due to other funds

EDBG
Grants

Total

$

-

$

71,201
1,445,172
-

$

197,351
126,674
-

$

77,434
104,000

$ 3,325,540
572
712,388
1,649,280
104,000

$

-

$ 1,516,373

$

324,025

$

181,434

$ 5,791,780

$

-

$

$

-

$

45,559

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Restricted for:
Highway and streets
Community development
Unassigned
Total fund balances (deficit)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Low and
Moderate
Income
Housing
Asset Fund

$

4,642
-

$

293,497
94
337,939

-

4,642

-

45,559

631,530

-

1,445,172

126,674

77,434

2,341,842

-

1,445,172

126,674

77,434

2,341,842

-

66,559
-

197,351
-

58,441
-

2,801,944
322,351
(305,887)

-

66,559

197,351

58,441

2,818,408

-

$ 1,516,373

181,434

$ 5,791,780
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$

324,025

$

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

State
Gas Tax
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Loan repayments
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highway and streets
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit), beginning
of year
Fund balances (deficit), end of year

$

Street &
Road (LTF)

RSTP

300,836
2,037
-

$

327
-

$

4,450
16,082
3
14,793

Maintenance
Assessment
District

Measure T
Fund

$

352,389
330

$

4,242
341,029
-

Transit
System

$

206,267
18,783
1,267

302,873

327

35,328

352,719

345,271

226,317

-

-

315,713
-

-

234,103
-

392,068
12,131

-

-

-

157,500
1,453

-

-

-

-

315,713

158,953

234,103

404,199

302,873

327

(280,385)

193,766

111,168

(177,882)

(216,363)

(69,284)

433,648
(150,538)

1,105
(161,084)

(128,790)

-

(216,363)

(69,284)

283,110

(159,979)

(128,790)

-

86,510

(68,957)

2,725

33,787

(17,622)

(177,882)

255,897

69,284

54,743

1,454,147

931,430

(128,005)

57,468

$ 1,487,934

342,407

$

327
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$

$

913,808

$

(305,887)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Home
Investment
Partnership
Program

Public
Safety
Grants
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Loan repayments
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highway and streets
Community Development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit), beginning
of year
Fund balances (deficit), end of year

$

18,542
7
-

$

600
304
-

Low and
Moderate
Income
Housing
Asset Fund

EDBG
Grants

$

1,616
51,935
-

$

-

Total

$

4,450
894,716
8,536
359,812
51,935
16,390

18,549

904

53,551

-

1,335,839

-

57,630
-

33,842
-

-

941,884
91,472
12,131

-

-

-

-

157,500
1,453

-

57,630

33,842

-

1,204,440

18,549

(56,726)

19,709

-

131,399

(19,605)

60,391
-

(150,312)

-

495,144
(895,976)

(19,605)

60,391

(150,312)

-

(400,832)

(1,056)

3,665

(130,603)

-

(269,433)

1,056

62,894

327,954

-

$

71

66,559

$

197,351

$

58,441

3,087,841

58,441

$ 2,818,408

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Storm
Drain
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Prepaid items

$

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
$

Total net position (deficit)

72

Airport

1,456,704
23,080
-

$

Total

798
8,021
2,333

$

1,456,704
23,878
8,021
2,333

1,479,784

11,152

1,490,936

154,208
103,595

452,951
179,862

607,159
283,457

257,803

632,813

890,616

1,737,587

643,965

2,381,552

9,583
22,962

1,891

9,583
24,853

32,545

1,891

34,436

34
-

178
9,096

212
9,096

34

9,274

9,308

103,752

-

103,752

103,752

-

103,752

103,786

9,274

113,060

4,278

168

4,446

4,278

168

4,446

257,803
1,404,265

632,813
3,601

890,616
1,407,866

1,662,068

$

636,414

$

2,298,482

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Storm
Drain
Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials, supplies and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Taxes
Grants
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net position
Net position (deficit), beginning of year
Net position (deficit), end of year

$

73

209,499
1,407

Airport

$

19,586
20

Total

$

229,085
1,427

210,906

19,606

230,512

34,711
6,893
6,349

(8,861)
16,956
14,683

25,850
23,849
21,032

47,953

22,778

70,731

162,953

(3,172)

159,781

5,955
-

8,724
10,000

5,955
8,724
10,000

5,955

18,724

24,679

168,908

15,552

184,460

1,249,175

30,293

1,279,468

1,418,083

45,845

1,463,928

243,985

590,569

834,554

1,662,068

$

636,414

$

2,298,482

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Storm
Drain
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other operating revenues

$

197,345
(11,954)
(58,976)
1,407

Airport

$

Total

26,407
(17,604)
(14,071)
20

$

223,752
(29,558)
(73,047)
1,427

127,822

(5,248)

122,574

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Grants received
Transfer from other funds
Loans from other funds
Taxes received

1,249,175
-

10,000
30,293
(35,748)
703

10,000
1,279,468
(35,748)
703

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities

1,249,175

5,248

1,254,423

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

5,955

-

5,955

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

5,955

-

5,955

1,382,952

-

1,382,952

73,752

-

73,752

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
$

1,456,704

$

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources from pension

$

162,953

$

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

-

$

1,456,704

$

159,781

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

74

(3,172)

6,349

14,682

21,031

(12,154)
(7,167)

6,822
4,051

(5,332)
(3,116)

(5,061)
(11,354)
(5,744)

(648)
(24,977)
(2,006)

(5,709)
(36,331)
(7,750)

127,822

$

(5,248)

$

122,574

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Fleet
Maintenance
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Prepaid expenses

$

321
-

127,058
39,218

13,896

-

13,896

-

13,896

-

13,896

321

52,635

127,216

180,172

20,206
41,389

38,049
79,838

-

58,255
121,227

61,595

117,887

-

179,482

822
-

23,797
-

139,928
241,054

24,619
139,928
241,054

822

23,797

380,982

405,601

213,598

406,668

89,985
-

89,985
620,266

213,598

406,668

89,985

710,251

214,420

430,465

470,967

1,115,852

7,830

15,416

-

23,246

7,830

15,416

-

23,246

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Total current liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources

(160,334)
$

$

-

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions

Total net position (deficit)

87,998
39,218

166,276

Total assets

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

$

127,216

Total noncurrent assets

Total liabilities

38,739
-

Total

38,739

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent liabilities

$

Employee
Benefits

321

Total current assets

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

Information
Technology

(160,334)

75

13,896
(289,255)
$

(275,359)

(343,751)
$

(343,751)

13,896
(793,340)
$

(779,444)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Fleet
Maintenance
Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

$

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials, supplies and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

192,252
100

Information
Technology

$

Employee
Benefits

490,204
196

$

Total

-

$

682,456
296

192,352

490,400

-

682,752

171,355
63,547
-

269,390
170,862
1,117

35,698
-

476,443
234,409
1,117

234,902

441,369

35,698

711,969

(42,550)

49,031

(35,698)

(29,217)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

4

-

-

4

4

-

-

4

Income (loss) before transfers

(42,546)

49,031

(35,698)

(29,213)

Change in net position

(42,546)

49,031

(35,698)

(29,213)

(117,788)

(324,390)

(308,053)

(750,231)

Net position (deficit), beginning of year
Net position (deficit), end of year

$

(160,334)
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$

(275,359)

$

(343,751)

$

(779,444)

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Fleet
Maintenance
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to or received from employees
Other operating revenues

$

192,252
(63,466)
(143,370)
100

Information
Technology

$

490,204
(152,433)
(236,980)
196

$

100,987

(14,484)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Employee
Benefits

Total

5,190
-

$

5,190

682,456
(215,899)
(375,160)
296
91,693

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Loan from other funds

-

(62,248)

-

(62,248)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities

-

(62,248)

-

(62,248)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

4

-

-

4

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

4

-

-

4

38,739

5,190

29,449

-

82,808

97,609

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(14,480)
14,801

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

321

$

38,739

$

87,998

$

127,058

$

49,031

$

(35,698)

$

(29,217)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

(42,550)

-

$

77

1,117

-

1,117

(28,672)

(51,031)

555
3,738
-

555
3,738
(79,703)

81
62,021
(5,364)

18,429
95,143
(11,702)

897
35,698
-

19,407
35,698
157,164
(17,066)

(14,484)

$

100,987

$

5,190

$

91,693

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

June 30, 2016
Community Facilities District
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations
Greenhills Assessment District
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations
Pheasant Run Assessment District
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations
Developer Deposits
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations
Total Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations

Additions

Deletions

June 30, 2017

$

964,167
3,133,843
3,862

$

3,088,210
3,440
42,183

$

(3,068,966)
(16,314)
(32,968)

$

983,411
3,120,969
13,077

$

4,101,872

$

3,133,833

$

(3,118,248)

$

4,117,457

$

4,101,872

$

3,133,833

$

(3,118,248)

$

4,117,457

$

400,544
267,129
7,501

$

1,226,616
250,701
8,321

$

(1,218,694)
(267,131)
(7,501)

$

408,466
250,699
8,321

$

675,174

$

1,485,638

$

(1,493,326)

$

667,486

$

675,174

$

1,485,638

$

(1,493,326)

$

667,486

$

415,495
196,781
11,957

$

506,554
55
19,104

$

(508,320)
(11,957)

$

413,729
196,836
19,104

$

624,233

$

525,713

$

(520,277)

$

629,669

$

624,233

$

525,713

$

(520,277)

$

629,669

$

(21,485)
138,873

$

146,625
398,647

$

(151,223)
(537,520)

$

(26,083)
-

$

117,388

$

545,272

$

(688,743)

$

(26,083)

$

117,388

$

545,272

$

(688,743)

$

(26,083)

$

1,758,721
3,597,753
162,193

$

4,968,005
254,196
468,255

$

(4,947,203)
(283,445)
(589,946)

$

1,779,523
3,568,504
40,502

$

5,518,667

$

5,690,456

$

(5,820,594)

$

5,388,529

$

5,518,667

$

5,690,456

$

(5,820,594)

$

5,388,529
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chowchilla, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chowchilla,
California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 26, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
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objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis, California
March 26, 2018
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Yes

X

No

Yes

X

None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Yes

X

No

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.
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CITY OF CHOWCHILLA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.
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Item 6.3
CLICK HERE
TO RETURN TO
THE AGENDA

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
Meeting of: March 27, 2018
AGENDA SECTION:

New Business

SUBJECT:

Presentation of the City’s Mid-Year Budget for FY 17/18 and Consideration
of a Resolution Accepting Budget Changes as Part of the Mid-Year Budget
Update for the 2017-2018 Fiscal year

PREPARED BY:

Rod Pruett, Finance director

ATTACHMENTS:

Power Point presentation
Resolution
Exhibit A- Budget Amendment

REVIEWED BY
ADMINISTRATOR

☒

REVIEWED BY
ATTORNEY

☒

REVIEWED BY
FINANCE

☒

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council, by motion, approve the mid-year budget and any applicable budget amendments
BACKGROUND:
In June 2017 Council approved the fiscal year 2017/2018 Operational and Capital Outlay Budget. A budget
is an estimate of expenditures and revenues for the upcoming year and is monitored throughout the year
for unforeseen activities. Annually, a mid-year review of the budget is performed to identify modifications
that need to be made to the budget to reflect year-to-date activity and resulting year-end projections.
The mid-year review for the fiscal year 2017/2018 budget was performed through January 2018. This
provides the most up to date and accurate information regarding actual revenue and expenses the City
has incurred, which allows for the most accurate year-end projections.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:
It is necessary to analyze where the City is at with the current year budget and any potential changes that
will be needed for the rest of the year. Even if there are no budget amendments proposed, it is vital to have
an update on the City’s financial position half way through the fiscal year. This information is relied upon
for forecasting the next year’s budget.
FISCAL IMPACT:
All funds are evaluated in the mid-year review. Significant funds (General Fund & Enterprise Funds) are
gone over in detail in the attached Power Point presentation. Any other significant items will be included in
the presentation as well.
ALTERNATIVES:
If proposed budget amendments are not approved, the budget will remain status quo.

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL:
Update the budget for approved budget amendments

Mid Year Review
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Thru January 2018

By Rod Pruett,
Finance Director

General Fund
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Approved Budget

Projected

FY 2017-2018

FY 2017-2018

Total Revenues and Transfers In

7,793,219

11,418,879

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

7,918,469

10,886,543

Net Change in fund balance

(125,250)

Fund Balance Per FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statement
Restricted Fund Balance
Committed Fund Balance-Emergency Contingency + Budget Deficit
Assigned Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance

543,934
1,029,287
258,140
1,999,903

Total Fund Balance

3,831,264

FY 16/17 Unassigned Fund Balance

1,999,903

Projected FY 17/18 Surplus/(Deficit)

532,336

Projected FY 17/18 Unassigned Fund Balance

2,532,239

Projected FY 17/18 Unappropriated Fund Balance

3,561,526

Unappropriated Fund Balance- % of Expenses

51%

GFOA Recommended minimum amount of reserve-2 months expense

17%

General Fund Operating Expenses Reconciliation
Amount of expenditures
Capital Outlay-JCI related projects and use of VLF settlement monies
Operating Expenditures

10,886,543
(3,915,660)
6,970,883

532,336

General Fund Summary
 Revenues
 Higher Than Budgeted
 Bond Proceeds







The JCI bond issue was not originally budgeted for- $3.5M

Property Tax- $40k
Transient Lodging- $30k
Permits- More construction that anticipated- $70k
Administrative Fines- Code Enforcement fines
increased significantly- $65k

General Fund Summary (con’t)
 Revenues
 Lower Than Budgeted
 Sales Tax




FY 16/17 came in lower than projected during the mid year
 Used for baseline of FY 17/18 projection
$200k short in FY 17/18 projections
Muni Reports show decline in Auto Sales and Gas Stations
 Seems to be a localized problem

General Fund Summary (con’t)
 Expenses
 Higher Than Budgeted
 City Clerk


Cont Srvcs- Addit’l $22k for comp and class survey & job
descriptions update

 City Attorney


More retainer expense- Change in billing method and more
hours incurred- $28k

 General Services


JCI project costs were not budgeted for- $3.5M

 Police Sworn



Health Insurance- $50k
Bldg Imprvmnts- $30k- Use of previous VLF monies for bullet
proof glass & security upgrades

General Fund Summary (con’t)
 Expenses
 Lower Than Budgeted
 General Services


Bldg Imprvmnts- $240k
 $300k of VLF settlement monies allocated to JCI project
but not used
 $60k used towards increased cost of Civic Ctr roof
replacement
 $50k used towards sales tax add-on consultant

 Salary Savings


Various departments had savings from vacancies.
 Most notably the Economic Development Director
position
 Filled beg April 1

General Fund Summary (con’t)
 Fund Balance
 Unassigned- $2.5M
 Unappropriated- $3.6M
 52% of operating expenses


GFOA minimum recommendation- 17% (2 months)

 Total- $3.8M

Water Fund
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Approved Budget

Projected

FY 2017-2018

FY 2017-2018

Total Revenues and Transfers In

4,005,900

10,632,184

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

4,188,637

14,052,158

Net Change in fund balance

Fund Balance Per FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statement

(182,737)

Accrual Basis
5,894,213

Projected FY 17/18 Surplus/(Deficit)
Total Projected Fund Balance

(3,255,540)
2,638,673

(3,419,974)

Cash Basis
1,010,542
50,537
1,061,079

Fund Balance- % of Operating Expenses

49%

GFOA Recommended minimum amount of reserve-2 months expense

17%

NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Fund Balance is long-term assets and liabilities
NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Surplus is as follows:
Depreciation
Principal payment on debt service
Loan & Bond proceeds for Water Meters not
recorded as revenue
Capital assets expensed
Operating Expenses Reconciliation:
Fund 280 Operating Expenses

249,224.00
65,000.00
3,221,287
99,434

2,144,468

Water Funds Summary
 Revenue and Expenses

 Increased due to JCI Projects being recorded

 Cash Basis Surplus
 Salary Savings

 Accrual Basis Deficit

 Water meters are expensed, not capitalized and revenue is
from a loan which is a liability
 Expenses but no revenue

 Fund Balance

 49% is very good
 Operations differ from total expenditures
 Includes capital expenses and depreciation

Sewer Fund
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Approved Budget

Projected

FY 2017-2018

FY 2017-2018

Total Revenues and Transfers In

1,382,153

3,557,121

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

1,581,560

5,593,362

Net Change in fund balance

Fund Balance Per FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statement

(199,407)

Accrual Basis
5,776,721

Projected FY 17/18 Surplus/(Deficit)

(2,036,241)

Cash Basis
1,027,479

(27,763)

Total Projected Fund Balance

5,748,958

78,046
1,105,525

Fund Balance- % of Expenses

83%

GFOA Recommended minimum amount of reserve-2 months expense

17%

NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Fund Balance is long-term assets and liabilities
NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Surplus is as follows:
Depreciation
Principal payment on debt service
Bond proceeds for JCI Project not recorded as revenue
and showing as expensed not capitlaized
Capital assets expensed
Operating Expenses Reconciliation:
Fund 240 Operating Expenses

167,280.00
20,000.00
1,947,007
41,471

1,326,147

NOTE:
The increase in both revenues and expenses is due to the recording of the JCI projects
The reason for the large accrual loss is for the JCI project- No Revenues since funding source
is a Bond

Sewer Funds Summary
 Revenue and Expenses

 Increased due to JCI Projects being recorded

 Cash Basis Surplus

 ½ Salary Savings
 ½ Operations and Maintenance

 Accrual Basis Deficit

 Mostly caused by depreciation which was $167k

 Fund Balance

 83% of operations is very good
 Operations differ from total expenditures
 Includes capital expenses and depreciation

Solid Waste
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Approved Budget

Projected

FY 2017-2018

FY 2017-2018

Total Revenues and Transfers In

1,416,400

1,386,162

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

1,413,405

1,353,083

2,995

33,079

Net Change in fund balance

Fund Balance Per FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statement

Accrual Basis

Projected FY 17/18 Surplus/(Deficit)
Total Projected Fund Balance
Fund Balance- % of Expenses
GFOA Recommended minimum amount of reserve-2 months expense

Cash Basis

73,632

134,413

33,079

33,079

106,711

167,492
12%
17%

NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Fund Balance is long-term assets and liabilities

Solid Waste Fund Summary
 Revenues and Expenses
 Both are slightly down
 Commercial Recycle and Organics not implemented

 Surplus
Higher than budgeted
Didn’t switch the landfill contract until January 1

 Fund Balance
Slightly below GFOA recommendation.
Since outsourced, not a need for a huge reserve as capital
expenses are paid for by contractor

Storm Drain
Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Approved Budget

Projected

FY 2017-2018

FY 2017-2018

Total Revenues and Transfers In

210,700

124,360

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

240,159

135,570

Net Change in fund balance

(29,459)

(11,210)

Fund Balance Per FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statement

Accrual Basis
1,637,807

1,479,753

(11,210)

(4,861)

1,626,597

1,474,892

Projected FY 17/18 Surplus/(Deficit)
Total Projected Fund Balance

Cash Basis

Fund Balance- % of Expenses

1088%

GFOA Recommended minimum amount of reserve-2 months expense

17%

NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Fund Balance is long-term assets and liabilities
NOTE: Difference between Accrual and Cash Basis Surplus is as follows:
Depreciation

6,349.00

Storm Drain Fund Summary
Revenues
Slightly higher- Interest increased
Transfer of Capital Reserve from Impact Fees Fund

Expenses
Lower due to $50k less in Engineer & Design
work for drainage project

Fund Balance
712% due to transfer of Capital Reserve
$1.25M

Mid Year Budget Review Assumptions
Personnel: All vacant positions are budgeted
for the remaining 5 months of the year
Consultants: All current consulting contracts
will remain in effect. (QK, Yamabe & Horn,
APA)
Solid Waste: The new contract and rates wont
get done until next fiscal year

Vehicle License Fees Settlement
Monies FY 17/18
Department
Opening Balance:

FY 17/18
892

Revenue:

514,667

Total available revenue

515,559

Ependitures:
Contribution to JCI project

Economic Development

300,000

Additional amount for Specific Plan

Economic Development

50,000

Zoning ordinance updates

Economic Development

105,000

Patrol vehicle

Police

60,000
515,000

Balance remaining

559

Vehicle License Fees Settlement
Monies FY 17/18
JCI Project Contribution
That was determined to not be needed as
originally planned for the General Fund
Could still use towards JCI project for Water Fund
$60k used towards additional cost on the Civic Center
roof replacement
$50k used towards sales tax add-on consultant

Budget Amendments for FY 16/17
Budget Amendments
FY 2017-2018

Account Number
100-1705-0000-6600-000
100-1705-0918-8990-000
240-5705-0000-6600-000
240-5705-0242-8990-000
242-5705-0240-7000-000
282-7705-0000-5002-000
280-7605-0283-8990-000
283-7605-0280-7000-000
283-7605-0282-7000-000
300-3618-0582-7000-000
310-3625-0000-3007-000
310-3625-0000-8101-000
400-4810-0000-6300-000
400-4815-0000-8651-000
582-3620-0300-8990-000
582-3620-0000-5350-000
918-1705-0000-3800-000
918-1705-0000-3810-000
918-1705-0000-4074-000
918-1705-0100-7000-000
918-1705-0000-8300-000
918-1705-0000-8500-000
918-1705-0000-8800-000
956-9950-0957-7000-000
957-9951-0956-8990-000

Account Description
Construction in Progress
Transfer- - In
Construction in Progress
Transfer In from 242
Fund Transfers Out-240
Water Meters
Transfer in from Water Bond
Transfer Out- Water Operations
Transfer Out- Water Meters
Transfer Out- Fullre St Project
Lighting & Pole Maintenance
Property Tax All Districts
Building & Improvements
CDBG PI
Transfer - In RSTP
Construction Costs
Cost of issuance
Bond insurance
Bond Interest
Transfer - Out
Bond Premiums
CREB Subsidy Revenue
Bond Proceeds
Transfer-Out Debt Svc 957
Transfer-In

Additional Needed
Expense
Revenue
3,502,315.00
3,502,315.00
1,947,007.00
1,947,007.00
1,947,007.00
1,421,287.00
6,408,046.00
6,408,046.00
1,517,007.97
301,889.00
21,482.52
28,767.36
121,563.27
179,778.85
301,889.00
79,026.00
172,589.73
25,740.29
130,998.96
3,502,315.00
173,715.30
44,720.74
3,630,000.00
88,132.03
88,132.03

Comment
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
Fuller Street Project
To Repair & Replace Lights
Additional Collected from LLMD
To Rehab Additional Homes
Offsets the Cost to Rehab Homes
Fuller Street Project
Fuller Street Project
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
Debt Service for Successor Agency
Debt Service for Successor Agency

COUNCIL RESOLUTION # -18
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHOWCHILLA, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE PROPOSED MID-YEAR BUDGET CHANGE AS PART OF THE 2017-2018 FISCAL
YEAR BUDGET UPDATE

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budget on June 27, 2017 and that budget reflected
total appropriations of $25,243,413; and
WHEREAS; staff has completed a review of the prior year spending and revenue performance of
the Water Fund and has also reviewed the current year budget to identify line items that are in need of
changes to reflect the current conditions of the city; and
WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to reflect the recommended changes as shown in Exhibit
A to this resolution which are incorporated by reference herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Chowchilla that it hereby resolves,
finds and orders:
1. Each of the foregoing facts, finding and determinations is
hereby found and declared to be valid and true.
2. The budget is amended as shown in Exhibit A to this
resolution.
3. The Finance Director is hereby directed to take all steps
necessary to properly record the budget amendments.
4. The resolution is effective immediately upon adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chowchilla this 27th day of March, 2018 by
the following vote to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
APPROVED:

Dennis Haworth, Mayor
ATTEST:

Joann McClendon, CMC
City Clerk

Budget Amendments
FY 2017-2018

Account Number
100-1705-0000-6600-000
100-1705-0918-8990-000
240-5705-0000-6600-000
240-5705-0242-8990-000
242-5705-0240-7000-000
282-7705-0000-5002-000
280-7605-0283-8990-000
283-7605-0280-7000-000
283-7605-0282-7000-000
300-3618-0582-7000-000
310-3625-0000-3007-000
310-3625-0000-8101-000
400-4810-0000-6300-000
400-4815-0000-8651-000
582-3620-0300-8990-000
582-3620-0000-5350-000
918-1705-0000-3800-000
918-1705-0000-3810-000
918-1705-0000-4074-000
918-1705-0100-7000-000
918-1705-0000-8300-000
918-1705-0000-8500-000
918-1705-0000-8800-000
956-9950-0957-7000-000
957-9951-0956-8990-000

Account Description
Construction in Progress
Transfer- - In
Construction in Progress
Transfer In from 242
Fund Transfers Out-240
Water Meters
Transfer in from Water Bond
Transfer Out- Water Operations
Transfer Out- Water Meters
Transfer Out- Fullre St Project
Lighting & Pole Maintenance
Property Tax All Districts
Building & Improvements
CDBG PI
Transfer - In RSTP
Construction Costs
Cost of issuance
Bond insurance
Bond Interest
Transfer - Out
Bond Premiums
CREB Subsidy Revenue
Bond Proceeds
Transfer-Out Debt Svc 957
Transfer-In

Additional Needed
Expense
Revenue
3,502,315.00
3,502,315.00
1,947,007.00
1,947,007.00
1,947,007.00
1,421,287.00
6,408,046.00
6,408,046.00
1,517,007.97
301,889.00
21,482.52
28,767.36
121,563.27
179,778.85
301,889.00
79,026.00
172,589.73
25,740.29
130,998.96
3,502,315.00
173,715.30
44,720.74
3,630,000.00
88,132.03
88,132.03

Comment
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
JCI Project
Fuller Street Project
To Repair & Replace Lights
Additional Collected from LLMD
To Rehab Additional Homes
Offsets the Cost to Rehab Homes
Fuller Street Project
Fuller Street Project
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
General Fund CREB Bond
Debt Service for Successor Agency
Debt Service for Successor Agency

